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Reliance Jute Mills (International) Limited

CIN: L1T125WB1996PLC081382,
Registered Office: Ideal Pluzg, South Block, 4™ Floar, 111, Sarat Bose Road, Kolkata-700020

Website : www.reliancejute.com, Email ; finnncehod reliancejute.com, Tel: +91 33 2280 7017/18

NOTICE OF 24™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 24™ Annual General Meeting of Reliance Jute Mills (Interational) Limited
will be held on Tuesday, 29" September, 2020 at 4.00 p.m. through Video Conference / Other Audio Visual
Means, to transact the following business. The venue of the meeting shall be deemed to be the Registered
Office of the Company at Ideal Plaza, South Block, 4" Floor, 11/, Sarat Bose Road, Kolkata-700020.

ORDINARY BUSINESS

To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year
ended 1151 March, 2020 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon,

To appoint a Director in place of Smi. Smita Poddar (DIN : 01204391, who retires by rotation and
being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3I

To consider and if thought fit 1o pass with or without modification(s), the following resolutions as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Shri Suvendu Kumar Chatterjee (DIN: 00518597}, who was appointed as an
Additional Director of the Company with effect from 12" June, 2020 pursuant to the provisions of
Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act™) and the Articles of Association of the Company and
who holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting, and being eligible, offer himself for
appointment and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a Member,
pursuant to the provisions of Section 160 of the Act, signifying his intention to propose the candidature
of Shri Suvendu Kumar Chatterjee for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Director
of the Company, liable to retire by rotation, with ¢ffect from the date of this Meeting,

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolutions as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198, 203 and other applicable
provisions, If any, read with Schedule V 1o the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”™), the Rules made
thereunder, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2013 (including any statutory medification(s) or re-enactment thereof for
the time being in force), also read with the Articles of Association of the Company, the
recommendations and / or approvals of the Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee, the Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) and subject 1o such other
approval(s) as may be required, approval of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to
the appointment of Shri Suvendu Kumar Chatterjes (DIN: 00518597), as a Whole-time Director of the
Company, liable to retire by rotation, for a period of 2 (two) consecutive years commencing from 12"
June, 2020 on such terms and conditions together with the remuneration payable to him as contained in
the Agreement executed by and between Shri Chatterjee and the Company, salient features of which
are provided in the Explanatory Statement under Section 102 of the Act as annexed to this Notice, with
liberty to the Board to vary the terms and conditions of the said appointment including remuneration
within the overall limits of Section 197 of the Act, as may be mutually agreed with Shri Chatterjec
from time 1o time,

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board (which term includes o duly constituted cominittee
thereof) be and is hereby authorised 1o do all such acts, deeds and things and give such directions, as it
may in its absolute discretion, deem necessary to give effect to this Resolution and settle any question
that may arise in this regard.”™
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To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as a
Special Resolution

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 13 sub-section (1), read with Section 55,
61, 64 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), Authorised Share Capital of the
Company be and is hereby increased from the existing Rs. 13,01,00,000/- {Rupees Thirteen Crores One
Lac) only divided into 30,10,000 (Thirty Lacs Ten Thousand) Equity Shares of Rs, 10/- (Rupees Ten)
each and 10,00,000 {Ten Lacs) Redecmable Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- (Rupees One Hundred)
each to Rs. 18.01.00.000/- (Rupees Eighteen Crores One Lac) only divided into 30,10,000 (Thiny
Lacs Ten Thousand) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ (Rupees Ten) each and 15,00,000 (Fifteen Lacs)
Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 100/~ (Rupees One Hundred) sach, by creation of additional
5.00,000 (Five Lacs) Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs, 100/- (Rupees One Hundred) each and that
Clause 5 of the Memarandum of Association of the Company be and is hereby altered accordingly™.

To consider and, if thought fir, to pass with or without modification, the following Resolution as a
Special Hesolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 55 and all other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) and the
Articles of Association of the Company. approval of the members be and is hereby accorded to
authorise the Board of Directors of the Company to create, offer, issue and allot 10,00,000 (Ten Lacs)
Redeemable Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs.100/- each to be issued a1 par for an aggregate
amount not exceeding Rs.10,00,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Crores) only as the Board may decide to various
entities/persons which may include the Promoter/Promoter Group end Assoclates, whether or not they
are Member(s) of the Company, on private placement basis and subject 10 the following terms and
conditions:

o Premium: Redeemable Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs.100/- each shall be issued at par with
no premium.

o Dividend: Dividend not exceeding (@ 2% per annum. The said shares shall rank for dividend in
priority to the equity shares for the time being of the Company.

Redemption: At the option of the Board, al any time within twenty years from the date of
allotment the said preference shares shall be redeemed at par,

=]

o Put and call option: The holder of Preference Shares and the Board/Company has an option Lo
redeem the Preference Shares at any time prior to their maturity provided one month notice
showing the intention regarding the redemption of Preference Shares is given.

o Conversion: The said preference shares shall be non-convertible,

o Entitlement in case of winding-up: The said shares shall in winding up be entitled to rank, as
regards repayment of capital and arrears of dividend, whether declored or not, up to the
commencement of the winding-up, in priority to the equity shares but shall not be entitled to any
further participation in profits or assets or surplus fund.

o Voting rights: The voting rights of the persons holding the said shares shall be in accordance with
the provisions of Section 47 of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s)
or re=enactments thereof for the time being in force).”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this Resolution, the Board be
and are hereby authorised 1o do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as they may, in their absolute
discretion, deem necessary, proper or desirable and to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may
arise in regard to the offer, issue, allotment and utilization of the issue proceeds towards the

Company’s corporate needs as they may deem fit.”
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T

To consider and If thought fit to puss with or without modification(s), the following resolutions as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuani to the provisions of Section 148(3) and all other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 14 of the Companies { Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thercof, for the time being in force) the
remuneration payable to M/s. N, Radhakrishnan & Co., Caost Accowntams, (Firm Registration No.
000056) appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company as Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of
cost records of the Company for the financial year ending 31 March, 2021, amounting to Rs.30,000/-
{Rupees Thiny Thousand ) only as also the payment of applicable taxes and reimbursement of out-of-
pocket expenses incurred in connection with the aforesaid audit, be and is hereby ratified.”

NOTES:

B

An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, (‘the Act’) relating 1o
the Special Business to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting (*AGM”) is annexed hereto, The
Board of Directors have considered and decided to include the ltem Nos. 5 and 6 given above ns
Special Business in the forthcoming AGM, as they are unavoidable in nature,

In view of the continuing restrictions on the movement of people at several places in the country, due
to outbreak of COVID-19, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), vide its General Circular No.
20/2020 dated Sth May, 2020 read with Genernl Circular No. 14/2020 dated 8th April, 2020 and
General Circular No. 17/2020 dated 13th April, 2020 and other applicable circulars issued by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), has allowed the Companies to conduct the AGM
through Video Conferencing (V) or Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) during the calendar year
2020. In accordance with the said circulars of MCA, SEB! and applicable provisions of the Act and
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations), the
24" AGM of the Company shall be conducted through VC / OAVM. National Securities Depositories
Limited (*NSDL") will be providing facility for voting through remote e-voting, for participation in the
AGM through VT [ OAVM facility and e-voting during the AGM. The procedure for participating in
the meeting through YC/ OAVM is explained at Note No. © below and is also available on the website
of the Company &t www.reliancejute.com.

As the AGM shall be conducted through VC / OAVM, the facility for appointment of Proxy by the
Members is not available for this AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip including
Route Map are not annexed to this Motice,

Instimutional / Corporate Members are requested to send a scanned copy (FDF / JPEG format) of the
Board Resolution authorising ils representatives to attend and vote at the AGM, pursuant to Section 113
of the Act, at financeho@reliancejute.com, 1o the Scrutinizer by email st kothari.navini@yahoo.com with
a copy marked 1o evotingfnsdl.co.in,

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from
Wednesday, 23" September, 2020 to Tuesday, 29™ September, 2020 (both days inclusive).

ELECTRONIC IMSPATCH OF AMNUAL REPORT AND PROCESS FOR REGISTRATION OF
EMAIL ID FOR OBTAINING COPY OF ANNUAL REPORT:

6.

In accordance with, the General Circular No. 20/2020 dated 5™ May, 2020 issued by MCA and
Circular No. SEBIVHO/CFDY CMDI/CIR/P/2020/79 dated 12° May, 2020 issued by SEBI, owing to
the difficulties involved in dispatching of physical copies of the financial statements (including Report
of Board of Directors, Auditar's report or other documents required 10 be attached therewith), such
statements including the Notice of AGM are being sent in electronic mode to Members whose e-mail
address is registered with the Company or the Depository Participant(s).

Members holding shares in physical mode and who have not updated their email addresses with the
Company are requested 1o update their email addresses by writing 0 the Company at
financeho@reliancejute.com along with the copy of the signed request letter mentioning the name and
address of the Member, self-aftested copy of the PAN card, and sell-attested copy of any document
{e.g.: Driving License, Election Identity Card, Passport) in support of the nddress of the Member,
Members holding shares in dematerialised mode are requested 1o register / update their email addresses
with the relevant Depository Participants. In case of any queries / difficulties in registering the e-mail
address, Members may write to financeho@reliancejute.com.
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The Notice of AGM along with Annual Report for the financial year 2019-20, is available on the
website of the Company at www.reliancejute.com, on the website of Stock Exchange i.e. The Caleutin
Stock Exchange Limited and on the website of NSDL st www.evoling. nsdl.com,

PROCEDURE FOR JOINING THE AGM THROUGH VO /OAYM:

q.

14.

Members will be provided with a facility 1o attend the AGM through VC / OAVM through the NSDL
e-voling system. Members may access the same at hitps:/'www.evoting.nsdl.com under Members login
by using the remote e-voting credentials, The link for VC / OAYM will be available in Members login
where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the Members who do not have the
User ID and Password for e-voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same
by following the remote e-voting instructions mentioned in the notice. Further Members can also use
the OTP based login for logging into the e-voting system of NSDL.,

Far convenience of the Members and proper conduct of AGM, Members can login and join at least 30
(thirty) minutes before the time scheduled for the AGM and shall be kept open throughout the
proceedings of AGM.

Members who need assistance before or during the AGM with use of technology, can:
Send a request a1 evotingi@nsdl.co.in or use Toll free no.: 1800-222-990; or

Contact Mr. Amit Vishal, Senior Manager, NSDL at the designated email ID: evoting@nsdlco.in
or AmitV@nsdl.co.in or at telephone number +91-99202 64780; or

Contact Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Manager, NSDL a1 the designated email 1D: evoting@nsdl.co.in or
pallavid@nsdl.co.in or at telephone number +%1-73066 82281,

Insthutional Members are encouraged to attend and vote at the AGM through VC / OAVM. In case any
Institutional Members, facing issues for pamicipating in AGM can  write 10
financeho@reliancejute.com.

Please note that panicipants connecting from Mobile devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting
via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audlo / Video loss due to fluctuation in their respective network. It
is therefore recommended (o use stable Wi-Fi or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid
glitches.

Members antending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted {or the pur'pm of reckoning the
quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

PROCEDLURE TO RAISE QUESTIONS / SEER CLARIFICATIONS WITH RESPECT TO ANNUAL
REPORT:

15.

6.

17.

As the AGM is being conducted through VT / OAVM, for the smooth conduct of proceedings of the
AGM, Members are encouraged 1o express their views / send their queries in advance mentioning their
name, demat account number | folio number, email id, mobile number at financeho@ reliancejute.com.
Questions / queries received by the Company till 5,00 p.m. on Sunday, 27" September, 2020 shall
only be considered and responded during the AGM.

Members who would like 1o express their views or ask questions during the AGM may register
themselves ns a speaker by wisiting the link hitps://www.evoting.nsdl.com between 900 a.m. on
Thursday, 24™ September, 2020 and 5.00 p.m. on Sunday, 27" September, 2020,

The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and number of speakers, as
approprinte for smooth conduct of the AGM

PROCEDURE FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND E-VOTING DURING THE AGM:

Pursuant to Section 108 of the Act, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014, ns amended and Regulation 44 of Listing Regulations, the Company is pleased 1o provide
the facility 10 Members (o exercise their right 1o vote on the resolutions proposed 1o be passed at AGM
by electronic means.
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19,

21.

The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / list of Beneficial Owners as on
Tuesday, 22™ September, 2020, i.e. the date prior (0 the commencement of book closure, being the
cut-off date, are entifled to vote on the Resolutions set forth in this Notice. A person who is not a
Member as on the cut-off date should treat this Notice of AGM for information purpose only,

Members may cast their votes on electronic voling system from any place (remote e-voting). The
remole e-voting period will commence at 9,00 a.m. on Saturday, 26" September, 2020 and will end
at 5.00 p.m, on Monday, 28" September, 2020. In addition, the facility for voting through electronic
voting system shall also be made available during the AGM. Members attending the AGM who have
not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be eligible to cast their vote through e-voting during the
AGM. Members who have voled through remote e-voting shall be eligible to attend the AGM,
however, they shall not be eligible 1o vote at the meeting. Members holding shares in physical form are
requested to mceess the remote e-voting facility provided by the Company through NSDL e-voting
system at https:/'www evoting.nsdl.com/,

The details of the process and manner for remote e-voting are explained herein below:

Step 1: Log-in to NSDL e-voting system at hitps://www. evoting.nsdl.com

How 1o Log-in 1o NSDL e-voting website?

Visit the e-voiing website of NSDL. Open web browser by iyping the URL:
hitps.//www.evoting.nsdl.com/ gither on a Personal Computer or on @ Mobile,

Once the home page of e-voting system Is launched, click on the jcon ‘Login® which Is

o)

{b)

te)

(d)

available under *Sharcholders® section.

A new screen will open. You will have 1o enter your User 1D, your Password and a Verification

Code as shown on the screen.

Alernatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices ie. IDEAS, you can log-in at
hitps:/feservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices
after using your log-in credentials, click on e-voting and you can proceed to Step 2 ie. Cast

vour vole electronically.

Your User |D details are given below :

Manner of holding shares

| &) For Members who hold
shares in demat sccount with
NSDL.

d | 16 Digit Beneficiary ID

Your User 1D is:

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID '
For example;

if your DP 1D is IN3J00*** and Client D is 12%#¢%e
then your User 1D is IN3OQ®** 2% *==,

For example:
if your Beneficiary ID is 12%%*#sessnsssns fheoy
your User ID is | 29sesssessnsnns

" ¢) For Members holding shares
in Physical Form,

Your password details are given below

| your User ID is 101456001***

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered
with the Company

For example:

if folio number s 001*** and EVEN is 101456 then

I, If you are already repistered for e-voting, then you can use your existing password to login

and cast your vote.

i, If you are using NSDL e-voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the
‘imitial password” which was communicated to you. Once you reirieve your ‘initial
password’, you need to enter the “initial password” and the system will force you to change

your password.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20 -



R | RELIANCE JUTE MILLS (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITELD
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lii. How to retrieve your *initial password'?

= If your email 1D is registered in your demat account or with the Company, your ‘initial
password” js communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to vou from
NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a _pdf file. Open
the .pdf file. The password io open the pdf file is your § digit client 1D for NSDL
account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in
physical form. The pdf file contains your “User 1D* and your *initinl password®,

= If your email 1D is not registered, please follow steps mentioned in Note No. 7 above.

If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the ‘Initial password’ or have forgotten your
password:

I, Click on 'Forgot User Details/Password?' {If you are holding shares in your demat account
with WSDL ar CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

ii. Physical User Reset Password? (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com,

iii. If vou are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send & reguest
ot evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN,
your name and your registered address.

iv. Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the voies on
the e-Voting system of NSDL,

Step 2: Cast your vole electronically on NSDL e-voting system.

How to cast yvour vole electronically on NSDL e-voting system?

(@)

(k)

(c)
(d}
(e}

in
(g

(h)

After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see the Home page of e-voting. Click on e-
voting. Then, click on Active Vating Cycles.

After click on Active Voting Cycles, you will be able 10 see all the companies *EVEN’ in which
you are holding shares and whose voting eycle is in active status.

Select “EVEN" of Company for which you wish to cast your vote,
Now you are ready for e-voling as the voting page opens.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify / modify the number
of shares for which you wish to cast your vole and click on *Submit’ and also ‘Confirm® when

prompted.
Upon confirmation, the message *Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the
confirmation page.

Onee you conlirm your vole on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your volte.

The instructions for Members for e-voting on the duy of the AGM are as under:

(a)

(b)

{c)

{d)

The procedure for e-voling on the day of the AGM |s same as the instructions mentioned above
for remolte e-voting.

Only those Members, who will be present in the AGM through VC / OAVM facility and have
not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-voting and are otherwise not barred
from doing so, shall be eligible 1o vote through e-voting system in the AGM,

Members who have voted through remote e-voting will be eligible to attend the AGM.
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

For details of the person who may be contacted for any assistance connected with the facility
for e-voting on the day of the AGM, please refer Note No. || above.
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GENERAL INFORMATION:

22.

23,

24,

25,

It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to
keep your password confidential. Login 1o the e-voling website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful
attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the ‘Forgot User
Details'Password?" or *Physical User Resel Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com o
reset the password.

The voting rights shall be as per the number of equity shares held by the Member(s) as on Tuesday,
22" September, 2020, being the cut-off date, Members are eligible to cast vate electronically only if
they are holding shares as on that date.

The Company has sppointed Shri Navin Kothari, Practising Company Secretary (FCS 5935 and CP
No. 3725), 1o act as the Scrutinizer, to scrutinize the entire e-voting process in a fair and transparent
manner. The Members desiring 1o vole through remote e-voting are requested to refer to the detailed
procedure given hereinafier

The results of the electronic voting shall be declared within 48 hours to the Stock Exchange after the
conclusion of AGM. The results along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall also be placed on the website
of the Company at www.reliancejute.com and on the website of NSDL.

FROCEDLURE FOR INSPECTION OF DOCUMENTS:

26,

28.

All the documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and Explanatory Statements, shall be
ovailable for inspection through elecironic mode basis, the request be sent on
financehof@reliancejute.com.

During the AGM, the Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their Shareholding
maintained under Section 170 of the Act, the Register of Contracts or arrangements in which Directors
are interested under Section 189 of the Act and the Certificate from Auditors of the Company
certifying that the ESOP Schemes of the Company are being implemented in accordance with, the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 shall be
available for inspection upon login st NSDL e-voting system at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com.

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to intimate any change of sddress and / or bank
mandate to 5. K. Infosolutions Private Limited, Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company or
Secretarial Department of the Company immediately by sending a request on email at
financeho@@reliancejute.com or contact skedilip@gmail.com.

OTHERS:

2

3L

3z,

il

Members of the Company had spproved the appointment of Mf, ) K V 8§ & Co., Chartered
Accountants, as the Siatutory Auditors at the Twenty First AGM of the Company which is valid till
Twenty Sixth AGM of the Company. In accordance with the Act, the appointment of Statutory
Auditors Is not required 1o be ratified at every AGM,

In terms of Section 152 of the Act, Smt. Smita Poddar is liable to retire by rotation at this Annual
General Meeting and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

Shri Suvendu Kumar Chatterjee, Whole-time Director has been appointed as per the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and shall serve in accordance with the terms of comract of employment with the
Company,

Details as required in Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard on General
Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India in respect of the Directors seeking re-
appointment al the AGM are provided hereunder. Requisite declarations have been received from the
Directors seeking re-appointment. The Independent Directors of the Company have been appointed for
o consecutive term of 5 years and are not eligible to retire by rotation,

As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed companies can be
transferred only in dematerialised form with effect from, Ist April, 2019, except in case of request
received for transmission or transposition of securities. In view of this and to eliminate all risks
associated with physical shares and for ease of ponfolio management, members holding shares in
physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings to dematerialised form.
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34, The Securities and Exchange Board of Indin (SEBI) vide its circular dated 20th April, 2018 has
mandated registration of Permanent Account Number (PAN) and Bank Acéount Details for all
securitics holders, Members holding shares in physical form are therefore, requested to submit their
PAN and Bank Account Details to S. K. Infosolutions Private Limited, Registrar and Share Transfer
Agent [ Secretarial Department of the Company by sending a duly signed letter along with self-
anested copy of PAN Card and original cancelled cheque through email o
financeho(@reliancejute.com. The original cancelled cheque should bear the name of the Member. In
the alternative Members are requested to submit a copy of bank passhook / statement attested by the
bank. Members holding shares in demat form are requested to submit the aforesaid information to their

respective Depository Participant,
Registered Office: By Order of the Board
Ideal Plaza, South Block, 4™ Floor For Reliance Jute Mills {International) Limited
1171, Sarat Bose Road (S, K. Agarwal)
Kolkatu-700020 President { Finance) &
Dated: 29" August, 2020 Company Secretary

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO
SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

ltem No. 3

Shri Suvendu Kumar Chatterjee (DIN: 00518597) was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company
with effect from 12* June, 2020 by the Board of Directors under Section 161 of the Act and Article 120 of the
Articles of Association of the Company. In terms of Section 161(1) of the Act, Shri Suvendu Kumer
Chatterjee holds office only upto the date of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting but is eligible for
appointment as a Director. A notice under Section 160{1) of the Act has been received from a Member
signifying his intention to propose Shri  Chatterfec’s appointment as a Director. Shri Suvendu Kumar
Chatterjee who is associated with the Company as President (Works) is having more than 30 years of his
experience in the field of manufacturing and production and who is Jute Technologist and Chartered Engincer.
The Directors are of the view that the appoiniment of Shri Chatterjee as a Director will be beneficial to the

Company.
The Board of Directors thus recommends the Resolution at ltem No. 3 of this Notice for your approval,

MNone of the Directors of the Company andior their relatives are concerned or interested, financial or otherwise,
in the resolution set out at ltem No. 3.

Item Mo, 4:

Shri Suvendu Kumar Chatterjee was appointed by the Board of Directors of the Cmnlpmy as a Whole-time
Director of the Company for a period of 2 (two) consecutive years with effect from 12" June, 2020 subject to
approval of the Members of the Company at the general meeting. This appointment is liable to determination
by retirement of directors by rotation at every Annual General Meeting of the Company, In compliance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended) (the “Act™) and the Rules framed thereunder, SEBI
{Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations. 2015 (as amended) (the “Listing
Regulations™), Articles of Association and Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company, the Board
of Directors of the Company (the “Board™), based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (NRC) and approval of the Audit Committee at their respective meetings held on 12" June, 2020,
subject to approval of the Members of the Company, has appointed Shri Chatterjee as o Whole-time Director
of the Company, liable to retire by rotation, for a period of 2 (two) consecutive years commencing from 12*
June, 2020 upto 12" June, 2022 or till the date of expiry of the tenure of his service with the Company,
whichever is earlier, Shri Chatterjee is a Bachelor of Science (B.S¢.), Jute Technologist, D.LS,, F.LE.
{Chartered Engineer) with over 30 years of experience n the field of manufacturing, production planning, etc.
Shri Chatterjee has worked with different positions in different Companies and has had an extremely
successful and rewarding career, Having worked across and led manufacturing units in diferent organization
during his career, he has gained a wide breadth of experience before his present assignment in the Company.
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In terms of the provisions of the Act, Shri Chatterjee has filed requisite consent(s) and disclosures before the
Board. The Company has also received an intimation from Shei Chatterjee in Form DIR - 8 to the effect that he
is not disqualified and further confirming that he is not debarred by virtue of any order passed by the Securities
and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, any Court or any such other Statutory Authority,
to be appointed as a Director in any company. Necessary information in terms of Regulation 36(3) of the
Listing Regulations and SS-2 issued by the ICS, relating to Shri Chatterjee has been provided as an Annexure
hereto and in Report on Corporate Governance forming part of this Annual Report. The Company has received
a Notice in writing under Section 160 of the Act from a Member proposing the candidature of Shri Chatterjee,
as a Director of the Company. The Company has entered into an Agreement dated 12" June, 2020 with Shri
Chatterjee containing the terms and conditions of his appointment including remuneration, authority, rights
and obligations of Mr. Chatterjee during his tenure as 8 Whole-time Director of the Company. The proposed
resolution as contained in the Notice provides that the Board will have a liberty to vary the terms and
conditions of the appointment and remuneration of Shri Chatlerjee as mentioned herein or under the
Agreement entered, from time to time, as it may deem (it and necessary and as may be agreed to by and
between Shri Chatterjee and the Board.

The Board, on the recommendation of the NRC and approval of the Audit Committes, approved the following
remuneration of Shri Chatterjee, subject to approval of the Members:

i Salary: The Whole-time Director shall be paid salary of Rs.1,30,000/<Rupees One Lac Thiny
Thousand) only per month or such other sum as would be determined by the Chairman from time fo
time.

fil)  Perquisites: The Whole-time Director shall also be entitled 1o conveyance allowance, medical
allowance, leave travel allowance for self and family, ex-gratia, uniform allowance, provision of car
and any other perquisite as may be decided by the Chairman from time to time subject to an amount
equal to the annual salary,
Provision of Company car for official purpose shall not be included in the computation of perquisites
for the purpose of calculation of the said ceiling. Perquisites shall be evaluated as per Income Tax
rules, wherever applicable.

The remuneration mentioned above including the value of the perquisites will be subject to the overall
ceilings laid down under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with Schedule V
thereto.

{iii)  The Whole-time Director will also be entitled to the following perquisites which shall not be included
in the computation of the ceiling on remuneration as specified above:

(a)  The Company's contribution towards Provident Fund as per the rules of the Company but
restricted to the extent this is not taxable under the Income Tax Act, 1961,

(¢} Leave with pay as per rules of the Company.

{iv) The Whole-time Director shall not be paid any sitting fee for attending the meeting of the Board or any
Committee thereof,

The aforesaid remuneration of Shri Chatterjee falls within the ceiling limits as specified under Section 197 and
other applicable provisions of the Act and Rules framed thereunder read with Schedule V 1o the Act
Documents referred to in this Explanatory Statement (including the Agreement relating to appointment of Shri
Chanerjee) shall be made available for inspection by the Members of the Company, without payment of fees
upto and including the date of AGM. Members desirous of inspecting the same may send their requests at
financeho@reliancejute.com from their registered e-mail addresses mentioning their names and folio numbers/
demat account numbers.

Exeept Shri Chatterjee no other Director or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, or their relatives, is
concemned or interested financially or otherwise, in Resolution No. 4 as contained in the Notice,

Considering the qualifications of Shri Chatterjee, his knowledge of various aspects relating to the Company's
affairs and long business experience, expertise, background and understanding of the Company’s business, the
Board is of the opinion that for smooth and efficient running of the business of the Company, the services of
Shri Chatterjee and his continued association would be beneficial in the interests of the Company and it is
considered desirable to avail his services as a Whole-time Director of the Company. Further, in terms of
General Circular No. 202020 dated May 3, 2020 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the matter
regarding appointment of Shri Chatterjee, including fixing his remuneration, is considered unavoidable by the
Board. Accordingly, in terms of Sections 2(94), 196, 197, 198 and 203 read with Schedule V to the Act, the
sppointment of Shri Chatterjee as a Whole-time Director of the Company is now being proposed before the
Members of the Company for their approval.

The Board recommends the Resolution Mo. 4 as an Ordinary Resolution for approval by the Members of the
Company.
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ltem No. 8

Company's land requirements:

In order to improve the workings of the company and also 1o meet the working capital requirements for
achieving the production targets, it is propesed to raise funds through preferential allotment of Redeemable
Cumulative Preference Shares (o the Promoter(s) of the Company, in one or more tranches, as may be decided
by the Board or Comminee thereof,

Incrense in Authorised Share Capital;

In light of the above, it is proposed to increase the Authorised Share Capital of the Company from the existing
Rs. 13,01,00,000/- (Rupees Thineen Crores One Lac) only divided into 30,10,000 (Thirty Lacs Ten
Thousand) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ (Rupees Ten) each and 10,00,000 (Ten Lacs) Redeemable Preference
Shares of Rs. 100/- (Rupees One Hundred) each to Rs. 18,01,00,000/- (Rupees Eighteen Crores One Lac) only
divided into 30,10,000 (Thirty Lacs Ten Thousand) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each and
13,00,000 (Fifieen Lacs) Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 100/~ (Rupees One Hundred) each, by creation
of additional 5,00,000 (Five Lacs) Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- (Rupees One Hundred) each, as
indicated in the Resolution at ltem No. 5 of the Notice. Consequently, it is proposed to make appropriate
alterations in the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company to reflect the changes in the
Authorised Share Capital of the Company.

The proposed Resolutions are in the interest of the Company and your Directors commend Resolutions at ltem
No. 5 for your approval.

None of the Directors and the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company including their relatives is
concerned or interested in aforesaid Resolutions,

Item Mo, &

In order to meet the fund requirement of the Company it is proposed to raise the funds by issue of Redeemable
Cumulative Preference Shares. The Preference Shares may be issued in one or more tranches to various
entities/persons which may include Promoter/Promoter Group and Associates whether or not they are
Member(s} of the Company on private placement basis.

DISCLOSURE AS PER CLALUSE %3 OF THE COMPANIES (SHARE CAPITAL AND
DEBENTURE) RULES, 2014:

{a) Size of the issue and number of Preference :  10,00,000 Redeemable Cumulative
Shares 1o be issued and nominal value of each Preference Shares of Rs.100/- each to be
share issued at such rate not exceeding Rs. 100/~ per

share for an amount not exceeding
Rs.10,00,00,000/- to warious entities /
persons including Promoter/Promoter Group
{ Associates whether or not they are
Members of the Company.

(b)  Nature of such shares ie. cumulative or non- :  Cumulative, non-participating and non-

cumulative, participating or non-participating, convertible,
convertible or non-convertible

tcl  Objective of the issue :  To meet the working capital requirements,
indebtedness and for other approved general
corporate objectives from time to time.

{d) Manner of issue ¢ Private placement,

(e} Price at such shares are proposed 1o be issued t  As per Resolutions,

{fy  Basis on which the price has been arrived at :  Price determined on the basis of valuation by

& registered valuer in accordance with the
extant provisions as applicable,
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(g} Terms of issue, including terms and rate of :  As per Resolutions.
dividend on each share, premium, ic.
{h) Terms of redemption, including the tenure of :  As per Resolutions.

redemption, redemption of shares at premium
and if the Preference Shares are convertible, the
terms of conversion

(i) Manner and modes of redemption :  Out of profit and/or out of fresh issue of
capital,
{ji  Current shareholding pattern of the Company : Equity Shareholding Pattern as on 31"
March, 2020:
‘Category | No, of Shares | % to Equity
| Promoter | 19,40,878 74.95
| Public 648612 2505
Total 2589490 | 10000

*Detailed shareholding pattern as on 31%
March, 2020 is available on website of the
Company i.e. on www.reliancejute.com and
also on the website of The Calcuna Stock
Exchange Limited

{k} Expected dilution in equity shares capitnl upon : Notapplicable.
conversion of preference shares

The Directors may be deemed to be concerned to the extent of Redeemable Cumulative Preference Shares that
will be offered 1o them and applied for and allotted 1o them.

The Board commends the Special Resolution set owt at ftem No. 7 of the Notice for approval by the
shareholders.

Item No. 7

The Board of Directors. on recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the appointment of M/s. N,
Radhakrishnan & Co., Cost Accountants, a5 Cost Auditors 10 conduet the audit of the cost accounts and cost
records maintained by the Company in respect of its products for the financial year ended 31" March, 2021

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 rend with the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has to be ratified by the Members of
the Company. Accordingly, consent of the Members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out
at Item No. 7 of the Notice for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial
year ended 31" March, 2021.

The Board recommends the approval of the remuneration payable to M/s N. Radhakrishnan & Co., Cosr
Aceountants for conducting the cost audit and passing of the Resolution set out at Item No. 7 of the Notice.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are in any way concerned or interesied in
the passing of the Resolutions.
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Additional information about the appeintment/resappointment of Directors pursuant to Regulation 36
of Securities and Exchange Board of lodin (Listing Obligatiens and Disclosure Hequirements)
Regulations, 2013 and Clause 1.2.5 of Secretarial Standards of General Meeting (information as on date

of the Naotice)
Same of the Directors
Diate of Birth

Date of First  Appointment
(appolntment as an Additonal
Director on the Board)

Diite of last re-uppointment

Qualification{s)

Relationship with other
Direciors, Manager and Key
Mmnagerial Personnel

Expertise in specific functional
areas

Shares held in the Company as
on the date of Notice

Directorships beld in other
Companies* excluding foreign
Companies

“Omnly eguity listell companies
are considered

Membership of Committee in
other listed companles®

(*Only Audit Commitiee and
Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committee memberships  in
equity listed companies have
béen considered )

Remuneration last drawn for the
financial year ended 31" March,
2020 (including sitting fees)

Remuneration sought ™ be
paid

Terms and conditions of
appointment.
Registered Office:

Ideal Plaza, South Block, 4™ Floor
11/1, Sarat Bose Road
Kolkata-700020

Dated: 297 August, 2020

Smi. Smita Poddar
18.06.1964

30.03.2015

25092018, Re-appointed after

retiring by rotation,

B.Sc., MBA(LISA)

Daughter of Shd Pawan Kumar
Kanoria, Executive Chairman

Smt. Smita Poddar is a Foreign
Nationnl and she has wide

experience of business.

Nil

Nil

Mil

Rs. 18,000/
Thousand ) only.

{Rupees Eighteen

Sitting fiees.

As per appointment letter.

Shri Sovendn Kumar
Chatterjee
22.01.1955

12.06.2020

12,06.2020, Appointed as an
Additional Director by the Board
of Directors ot its meeting held on
12" June, 2020.

B.5c, Jue Tech., D.L5., FIE
{Chartered Engineer)

Mone

Shri Chatierjee has over 30 years
of experience in the field of
manufacturing, production
planning, etc.

Nil

Nil

Wil

Mot applicable.

As per appointment letter.

As per appointment letter.

By Order of the Board

For Reliance Jute Mills (Intemnational) Lid.

5. K. Agarwal
President {Finance) &
Company Secretary
Membership No. 12790
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BOARD'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Dear Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 24" Annual Repon covering the operational and financial
performance of the Company along with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended nt

March, 2020,

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

{Amount in Rs. *000)

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31" March, 2020 31" March, 2019
Revenue from operations 18,590,769 21,81,993
Other Income 1,160 72,636
Total 18,91,929 22,54,629
Profit/(Loss) before Taxation (64,664) (1,80,247) |
Provision for Taxation 18 383 |
Net Profit/(Loss) (64,682) (1.80,630)
Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) (net of tax) (5,666) (7.526)
Total Comprehensive Income / (Loss) {7T0.348) (1,88,156)

Your Company has prepared the Financial Statements for the year ended 31% March, 2020 in terms of Sections
129, 133 and Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended.

DIVIDEND
Your Directors don’t recommend dividend on equity shares,
SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company as on 31" March, 2020 stood at Rs.13,01,00,000 divided into
30,10,000 equity shares of Rs.10 each and 10,00,000 &% Redeemable Cumulative Preference Shares of
Rs.100 each. The lssued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of the Company is Rs.7,58,94.900 divided into
25,89,490 equity shares of Rs. 10 each and 5,00,000 6% Redeemable Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs. 100
each.

OPERATIONS AND STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS

Performance of the company during the year under review was unsatisfactory. The period of April, 2019 was
full of difficulties and the Mill reopened after nearly so many days which resulted in lower production in this
month. There were general election in May, 2019 and also an election of Bhatpara constituency in West
Bengal, All these resulted in frequent commation and riots in Bhatpara and nearby areas, As a result during the
period Mill had run partially. In July 2019 also three shifts could not be run for half of the month. Further, due
to labour trouble, the operation had been suspended from 8™ January, 2020 to §* February, 2020, A complete
lockdown was announced from 24 March, 2020 due to Covid- | 9which adversely affected working during the
current year also, The operation at the Mill started from 19" may, 2020.

Covid-19 spread its wings in India since February, 2020 and the Government had to announce complete lock
down from 23" March, 2020 and asked people to stay at home. Global threat from Covid-19 is continuing to
grow. Lockdowns due to corona virus have driven professional and social life out of the physical world and
into the virtual realm, The economic fallout of this is still difficult to assess as the situation is still evolving.
However, your company is striving to survive focusing on health and hygiene of its employees and is also
working on various cost optimization measures.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

a)

b)

c)

Industry structure and developments:

Jute, a natural fibre, is a precious gift of Mother Nature to the mankind. For last thousands of years, it
has been used by human society us o packaging material not only in India but nlso in many countries
abroad. In the 1970s and 80s. when plastics, cardboard efc. emerged as aliernate packaging materials
which were not anly cheaper bul were very convenient 1o use, the demand for jute packaging started
going down, But with the emergence of strong environmental concerns against the nen
biodegradability and high toxicity of plastic ete. Jute demand started picking up. During that period, it
was seen that due to environmental concerns |ot of countries are looking to cut down the use of single-
use plastic and are also banning plastics in their countries. More and more couniries are joining this
campaign. But India already has a sustainable substitute that cannot be ignored anymore-the “golden
fibre™ known as jute.

In our country, due to the growing environmental concerns, state and central government started
making laws and banning the use of certain kinds of non degradable plastics. The Ministry of Textiles,
the Government of India has prescribed that 100% of the packaging materials should be jute and not
piastics. By now most of the State Governments have banned the use of plastics, This has given & boost
to the demand of jute by the jute indusiry.

In recent time, the jute industry is facing problems of shortage of labour. Inflow of labour from
neibhouring states is gradually diminishing due to availability of altemate opportunities elsewhere,
Moreover, inclination of modern generation is growing towards other sector resulting in shortage of
workers in jute industry,

Global outburst of Covid-19 has casted shadows on the development of the jute industries as due to
lock down announced by the Govi. over a period of two months, all jute mills remained closed and
Government gave relaxation 1o plastics industries by allowing plastics bags for packaging of food
grains. Such decision of the Government will adversely affect jute industries until the Government
withdraws its decision.

Opportunity and Threats /Risks and Concerns

Because of stiff competition from plastic and other cheaper materials which emerged for packaging on
large scale, jute suffered a decline in demand and accordingly the production of jute and jute goods
declined. But with an era of environmental awareness emerging, Jute bounced back again due to is
environment friendly and bio-degradable qualities, Jute has been facing ups and downs in the last few
decades but it has all the potentials of becoming the sustainable golden fibre of the future.

There are opportunities for growth in Industry also because the Government has seized of the industry
difficulty. The Government has Imposed anti-demplng duty on import from Bangladesh and Nepal.
The MNational Jute Board provide subsidy for replacemeni of old machineries with modern machineries.
Steps token by the Govi. of India to assist the jute mills to upgrade old/obsolete machineries and 1o
promote jute diversified products, jute geo textiles and soil saver will provide opportunity to increase
market for jute goods.

The following areas of risks and concemns continue to pose threat to Jute Industry.

¥ Frequent revision of JPMA guidelines (1o add or dilute items for jute packing) leaves the industry
in confusion whether io invest further on the Jute Technology development/product
developmentmarket expansion or wait for new policies ete.

¥ Cut throat competition from Bangladesh in export market which continues 10 enjoy benefiis in the
form of lower costs and government subsidies.

¥ Increase in wage cost without linking to productivity which constitutes high proportion of
production costs in a labour intensive industry,

v Shorage of workers resulting in lower capacity utilization in the Mills.

Shortage of raw jute due to poor crop,

Segment-wise or Product-wise Performance
Jute goods remain the Company's only area of business in the year under review, hence requires no
disclosure under AS 17 in respect of business segment.
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d} Outlook
Jute crop during the current season seems to be poor thin previous year due to unpredictable behavior of
monsoon the country has witnessed recenty. Therefore, the raw jule prices are expected to remain on
higher side than the previous year. Laboures are not available adequately resulting into lower capacity
utilization in many jute mills. The demand of raw jute will also be affected.

Demand for packaging of food grain will continue to be normal. Only concern is the time limit under
which Covid-19 pandemic will come into control.

el Internal contral system and their adeguacy

The Company has an adequate system of internal control which not only ensures proper and timely
recording and reponting of transactions bul also provide avenue for exercising effective safe guards over
Company’s assets. For this purpose, the Company has appoinied independent Internal Auditors.
Observations of internal auditor are circulated to senior management for their perusal and necessary action.
Corrective actions are taken as per requirements. In consuliation with Internal Auditor, the Audit
Committee formulates the scope, functioning, periodicity and methodology for conducting the internal
audil.

M} Discussion on Financial Performance with respect to Operational Performance
During the year under review, overall performance of the Company was worse than previous year due to
low labour productivity coupled with lock down declared by the Government due to Covid-19 pandemic in
the last month of the fourth quarter of the financial year.

gl Material Development in Human Resources/Industrial Relations front, including number of people
employed
Industrial relations remained more or less cordial during the year under review except during some part of
the year when the management was forced to declare suspension of work due to sudden stoppage of work
and illegal strike by workers of the Company.

The Company provides benefits and facilities to deserving staffs. Workers employed at new scale are
imparted with in-house training to bring all round improvement in their working knowledge and skill.

Collective participation is encouraged at all level and workers are given incentive for good performance.
Labour issues are mostly addressed by negotiations and conciliation.

h) Cautionnry Statement
Staterment made above in this section of the repont with regard 1o future outlook and performance is on the
basis of prevailing industry scenario and market conditions as envisaged by us. Actual results may differ
materially from those expressed in the sistement,

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION BETWEEN
END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND DATE OF REPORT

Except those disclosed in this Annual Report, there has been no material changes and/or commitments which
may affect the financial position of the Company between the end of the financial yvear, i.e. 31" March, 2020
and the date of this Repon..

CREDIT RATING

During the year under review, CARE Ratings Lid. has reaffirmed the Credit Rating BB (CARE A4) for Fund
Based and Non-fund based Credit Facilities of the Company,

DEPOSITS

Your Company has not accepted any deposits covered under "Chapter V - Acceptance of Deposits by
Companies’ in terms of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014 during the financial year ended 31 March, 2020.

BOARD OF IMRECTORS

Your Company’s Board is duly constituted and is in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act,
2013, the Listing Regulations and provisions of the Articles of Assoclation of the Company. Your Board has
been constituted with requisite diversity, wisdom, expertise and experience commensurate o the scale of

operations of your company.
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Executive Chalrman

Shri Pawan Kumar Kanoria, (holding DIN: 00305207) was appointed as the Executive Chairman of the
Company for a further period of 5 (five) years with effect from 1" April, 2017 and his present term will be
completed on 31 March, 2022,

Muanuging Director

Shri Sanjay Hada, (holding DIN: 00305476) was re-appointed as Managing Director and Chief Executive
Officer (CEO) of the Company for a further period of 5 (five) years with efTect from 1® lanuary, 2019 the
present term of his appoiniment as Managing Director and CEO will be completed on 31" December, 2023.

Whole-Time Director

Shri Vijendra Kumar Chaukhani, (holding DIN: 00309895) who was re-appointed as Whole-time Director of
the Company for a period of 2 years with effect from 1% August, 2018 and whose period of office was liable to
determination by retirement of directors by rotation, resigned from the directorship and ceased to be director of
the company with effect from 12 June, 2020, The Board expressed ts appreciation for the long term services
rendered by Shri Chaukhani to the Company during his enure of association,

Shri Suvendu Kumar Chatterjes, (holding DIN:00S18597) has been appointed as Whole-time Director of the
Company for a period of 2 years with effect from 12" June, 2020 and whose period of office is liable to
determination by retirement of directors by rotation,

Mon-Executive Director
Smi Smita Poddar (holding DIN: 01204391 ), Non-Executive Woman Direclor whose period of office is liable
to determination by retirement of directors by rotation.

Smt Smita Poddar (holding DIN: 01204391), retires from the Board by rotation at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting and being eligible, offers herself for re-appoinimeni. Your Board recommends re-
appointment of Smt. Smita Poddar as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation

Necessary Resolution(s) alongwith disclosure(syinformation(s) in respect of the directors secking
appointment/re-appointment at the ensuing AGM are being given in the Notice convening the ensuing AGM.,

Statement of Declarations Given by Independent Directors

Dr. Pranab Kumar Mookerjee, Shri Pradeep Kumar Juin, Shri Piyush Bharia and Shri Rohit Banka,
Independent Directors of your Company have declared 1o the Board of Directors that they meet the criteria of
Independence as laid down in Section |49(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulations 16(1)b) and 25(8)
of the Listing Regulations and there is no change in the status of their Independence and have confirmed that
they are not aware of any eircumstance or situation which exists or may be reasonably anticipated that they
could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties,

The Board of Directors further confirms that the Independent Directors also meet the criteria of expertise,
experience, intogrity and proficiency in terms of Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as

amended).

EVALUATION OF THE PERFORMANCE OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND
INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

MNomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Board have devised the criteria for evaluation of the
independent Directors, the Board and its Committees. The Board has carried out annual evaluation of its own
performance and that of its Committees and individual Directors, More details on the same are given in
Corporate Governance Report,

COMPANY™ POLICY ON IMRECTORS APPUNTMENT AND REMUNERATION INCLUDING
CRITERIA FOR DETERMINING QUALIFICATIONS, POSITIVE ATTRIBUTES, INDEPENDENCE
OF DIRECTORS AND OTHER MATTERS

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19(4) read with
Para A, Part D of Schedule Il of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee review the composition and diversity of the Board and identify
persons who are qualified to become directors in accordance with the criteria laid down by the Board of
Directors of the Company. Nomination and Remuneration Committee recommends to the Board about the
appointment /re-appointment of eligible candidates including their terms of appointment and remuneration.
The remuneration policy including criteria for determining qualifications, positive atributes, independence of
a director have been disclosed in the report on Corporate Governance,

ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20 -



m I RELIANCE JUTE MILLS (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

DRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of Sec.134{3)ic) and 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 10 the best of their
knowledge and belief and according to information and explanation received from the day to day operating
management, your directors state that:

ia) in the preparation of annual accounts, the applicable accounting siandards have been followed along with
proper explanation relating to material departures;

the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
end estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the stte of affairs of the
company ot the end of the financial year and of the loss of the Company for that period;

(b} the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in nccordance with the provisions of this Act, for safe-guarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(¢} the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(d) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and

(e} there is & proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such
systems are adequate and operating effectively.

SNUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

The Board of Directors met 6 (six) times during the yvear under review, More details are available in the
Corporate Governance Repaort.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONEL

As on date of this Report, Shri Pawan Kumar Kanoria (DIN: 00305297), Executive Chairman, Shri Sanjay
Hada ( DIN:00305476), Managing Director & CEOQ, Shri Suvendu Kumar Chatterjee (DIN:00518597), Whaole-
time Director and Shri Shiv Kumar Agarwal, President (Finance) & Company Secretary, Compliance Officer
and CFO are the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of your Company:,

Shri Vijendra Kumar Chaukhani (DIN: 00309895}, Whole-time Director has resigned from the directorship of
the Company and his resignation has been accepled by the Board of Directors of the Company with effect
from 12" June, 2020. Shri Suvendu Kumar Chatterjee | DIN:005 1 8597) was appointed as Whole-time Director
of the Company with effect from 12" June, 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Corporate Governance Report and certificate from Mis. N. K. & Associates, Practicing Company
Secreraries, certifying compliance of conditions of Corpornte Governance as required under Regulation 34(3)
read with Point C of Schedule V 10 the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2013, is anached as Annexure — f which forms part of this report.

AUDIT AND AUDITORS

In terms of the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with provisions of the Companies
{Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, M/s. ] K V S & Co., (ICA| Firm Registration No. 318086E),
Chartered Accountanis, wis lpnpainmd as the suditors of the Company for n consecutive period of StﬁwE
vears from conclusion of the 21" Annual General Meeting held in the year 2017 until the conclusion of the 26'
Annual General Meeting to be held in 2022.

Your Company has received a certificate from Mfs. J K V § & Co,, (ICA| Firm Registration No. 318086E),
Chartered Accountants, confirming their eligibility to continue as the Auditors of the Company in terms of the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder and also & copy of the certificate
issued by the Peer Review Board (1ICAI) as required under Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations,
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SECRETARIAL AUDMTOR

In terms of the provisions of Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerinl Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors of the
Company at its meeting held on 317 July, 2020 appointed M/s, N. K. & Associates, Companmy Secretaries, as
the Secretarial Auditor of the Company to conduct the Secretarial Audit for the financial vear ended 31*
March, 2021 and to submit Secretarial Audit Report in Form No. MR-J.

QUALIFICATION, RESERVATION DR ADVERSE REMARK IN THE AUDITOR'S REPORTS
AMDSECHRETARIAL ALIMT REPORT

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by M/s. ] K V 5 & Co., Statutory Auditors
in their report for the financial year ended 31" March, 2020. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 143(12) of
the Companies Act, 2013, the Statutory Auditors have not reported any incident of froud to the Audit
Committee during the vear under review.,

A copy of the Secretarial Audit Report received from M's, N, K, & Associates in the prescribed Form No,
MR-} is annexed to this Board's Report and marked as Ammexure — Il There are no qualifications or
observations or remarks made by the Secretarial Auditor in the Repor,

COST AUMTORS

In terms of Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 rcad with rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, on the recommendation of Audit Committee the Board of Directors has appointed M/s
N. Radhakrishnan & Co., Cost Accountants (Registration No. 000056). being eligible and having sought re-
appointment, as Cost Auditor of the Company, for a remuneration of Rs. 30,000/ plus applicable taxes and
re-imbursement of oul of pocket expenses incurmed by them to conduct an audit of the cost accounting records
maintained by the Company for the current financial year beginning from 1™ April, 2020 and ending on 31"
March 2021 as required in terms of the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Amendment Rules, 2013,

As required under Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to Cost Auditor is being placed ai the ensuing Annual
General Meeting for ratification by the Members. M/s N. Radhakrishnan & Co., Cost Accountfanis have
furnished a declaration as required under Section 141(3)(g) read with Section 148(3) and 148(5) of the
Companies Act. 2013,

As per the Companies (Cost Audit Report) Rules, 2011, the due date for filing the Cost Audit Report for the
previous financial year ended 31" March, 2019 with the Central Government was 30™ September, 2019 and
the said report was filed by the Cast Auditor within the due date.

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

The extract of the Annual Return in Form No. MOT-9 of the Company as on 31% March, 2020 as provided
under sub-section 3 of Section 92 and 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is uploaded on the Company's website
www,reliancejute.com pursuant to Notification No, G.S.R. 538(E) dated 28" August, 2020 and not attached 1o
the Board’s Report.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL LITIGATIONSORDERS

During the year under review, an award has been passed by the Arbitrator in favour of the Company in the
matter of outstanding insurance claim against The Oriental Insurance Company Limited in respect of the fire
broke out on 2* September, 2014 which has significant impact on the future operations of your Company and
except this award there were no significant material orders passed by the Regulators/Courts and no litigation
was outstanding as on 31% March, 2020, which would impact the going concern status and future operations of
your Company. The detalls of litigation on tax matters are disclosed in the Auditor's Report and Financial
Statements which forms part of this Annual Report.

MSCLOSURE

Following disclosures ure made under the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;
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i The financial summary or highlights are discussed at the beginning of this report;

(i) There is no change in the nature of business;

(i) There is no company which has become or ceased to be the Company's subsidiary, joint venture or
associate company during the year.

(iv) No significant and material order was passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the
going concern status and the Company's operations in future.

LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

In terms of Section |86 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, particulars of loans given
and investments made by the Company have been disclosed in the Note No.1 | to the Financial Statements for
the year ended 31" March, 2020, which forms part of the Annual Report. Your Company has not given any
guarantee or provided any security during the year under review,

ALDIT COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors of the Company has a duly constituted Audit Comminee in terms of the provisions of
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules framed thereunder and Regulation 18 of the
Listing Regulations. The term of reference of the Audit Commifiee has been approved by the Board of
Directors. Composition of Audit Committee, number of meetings held during the year under review, brief
terms of reference and other requisite details have been provided in the Corporate Governance Report which
forms part of this Annual Report. Recommendations made by the Audit Committee are accepted by the Board,

RISK MANAGEMENT AND ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

The Company’s internal FAnancial control ensures that all assets of the Company are safeguarded and
protected, proper prevention and detection of frauds and errors and all transactions are authorized, recorded
and reporied appropriately. The Company has an adequate system of internal controls commensurate with its
size and scale of operation, procedures and policies, ensuring orderly efficient conduct of its business,

The Board is of the opinion that the Internal Financial Controls, affecting the Financial Statements of the
Company are adequate and are operating effectively.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Although the Company doesn't qualify for mandatorily formulation and adoption of Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder, it
takes CSR programmes which benefit the Communities.

POLICY ON PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE

The Company is committed to provide a safe and secure environment to its women employees as they are
considered as integral and important part of the Organization. The Company has been conducting awareness
programme in its manufrcturing unit and office premises to encourage its employees to be more responsible
and alert while discharging their duties.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the financial year ended 31" March, 2020, all transactions with the Related Parties as defined under the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules framed thereunder were in the ordinary course of business and at arm's
length basis and were in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ((Act) and the
SEBI { Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2013 (Listing Regulations).

Form AQC-2 containing the details of the material Related Party Transactions entercd into during the
Finzancial Year 2019-20 as per the Related Party Transactions Policy is attached as Annexure — [ 1o this
Report and forms a part of it. The Related Party Transaction Policy as approved by the Board is available on
the website of the Company.

SUBSIDIARIES

The Company doesn't have any subsidiary company,
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY., TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The prescribed particulars of Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Eamings
and Outgo required under Sec. 134(3)m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule £(3) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 is attached as 4 nnexure= IV and forms part of this Board” Report.

DISCLOSURES ON REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES OF THE COMPANY

Diselosure in terms of provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 5(1), 5(2)
and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuncration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and
subsequent amendments thereto has been made in Anrexure — ¥ forming pan of this Repon.

ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has established a vigil mechanism / whistle blower policy. The policy allows intimation of
concern or misconduct made in good faith by affected persons through a written communication. Audit
Commintee oversees the vigil mechanism for disposal of the complaint, Direct access to the Chairperson of the
Audit Commitiee is also allowed in exceptional cases. The vigil mechanism/whistle blower policy is available
on Company's website www.réeliancejute.com.

CALTIONARY STATEMENT

There are Statements which have been made in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report describing
the estimates, expectations or predictions, may be read ns ‘forward-looking statements” within the meaning of
applicable laws and regulations, The actual results may differ materially from those expressed or implied. The
important factors that would make a difference 0 the Company’s operations include demand-supply
conditions, raw material prices, changes in Government Policies, Governmeni Laws, Tax Regimes, global
economic developments and other factors such as litigation and labour negotiations.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS OX BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS
During the year under review, the Company has duly complied with the applicable provisions of the
Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the Board of Directors (85-1) and General Meetings (55-2) issued by
The Institwte of Company Secretaries of India (1CS1).

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors record their sincere appreciation of the dedication and commitment of all employees at all

levels in achieving and sustaining excellence in all areas of the business. Your Directors thank shareholders,
customers, suppliers, bankers and other stakeholders for their continuous support to the Company.

For and on behall of the Board

P. K. KANORIA
Ideal Plaza, 11/1, Sarat Bose Road, Chairman
Kolkata, the 29" day of August, 2020 {DIN:00305297)
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ANNEXURE —{

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

|Pursuant to Part C of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, “Listing Regulations™)

Company® Philosophy on Code of Governance

Reliance Jute Mills (intemational) Ltd. firmiy believes in the implementation of best practices of corporate
govemnance 5o that the company could achieve its corporate goals and further enhance stakeholders' value,
it has been its endevour to attach a greal deal of importance on ensuring faimess, transparency,
accountability and responsibility towards all stakeholders, besides consistently implementing the best
possible practices by providing optimum level of information and benefits to all the stakeholders.

Dated of Report

The information provided in this Report on Corporaie Governance for the purpose of unanimity is as on
31" March, 2020. This Report is updated as on the date of the Repont wherever applicable,

.

Board of Directors

Composition and Category of Directors
The Board of Directors (the Board) consists of § (eight) Directors of which there are four Non-
Executive Independent Directors, one is Executive Director belonging to promoter group (Executive
Chalrman), one Executive Director (Managing Director & CEO) and one Executive Director (Whole-
time Director) and one Non-Executive Woman Director belonging to promoter group and one
Alternate Woman Director in place of Non-Executive Woman Director belonging to promoter group.

Mo Director is, inter-se, related to any other director on the Board, except Shri Pawan Kumar Kanoria
{Executive Chairman), Shri Sanjay Hada, Managing Director & CEO, Smt. Smita Poddar, Non-
Executive Woman Director and Smt. Sonal Hada, Alternate Director in place of Smt, Smita Poddar,
Director of the Company,

Details of Directors
Shri Pawan Kumar Kanoria was re-appointed as Executive Chairman of the Company w.e.f. 1™ April,
2017 for a period of 5 (five) years. He is vested with powers of overall management of the affairs of
the Company subject to the superintendence and guidance of the Board of Directors, He is also
invalved in policy planning, vision & strategy and long term development activities of the Company,
besides Corporate Governance and Board co-ordination. He is the Chairman of the Board of Directors
of the Company.

Shri Sanjay Hada, was re-appointed as Managing Director of the Company for a period of 5(five) years
with effect from 1* January, 2019, The present term of his appointment as Managing Director and CEQ
will be completed on 31° December, 2023. He is responsible for production, purchase and resource
management. He is also responsible for and involved in improving the production and productivity,
policy planning, vision & sirategy and long term development activities of the Company.

Shri Vijendra Kumar Chaukhani who was re-appointed as Whole-time Director of the Company for a
period of 2(two) years with effect from 1" August, 2018, resigned from the directorship of the
Company and his resignation was sccepted by the Board of Directors with effect from 12" June, 2020
taking on record his valuable services for long period of his association with the Company.

Shri Suvendu Kumar Chatterjee was appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company at its
meeting held on 12" June, 2020 as an Additional Director in the category of Executive Director
designated as Whole-time Director. He halds his office upto the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
His re-appointment proposal has been incorporated in the item of agenda of the notice convening the
Annual General Meeting.

All Independent Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Code for Independent
Directors mentioned in Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and that they are not disqualified 1o
act a5 an Independent Director in compliance with the provisions of Sec. 142 of the Companies Act,
2013,
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c.

In compliance with Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations read with the Secretarial Standard on
General Mectings (55-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI), the required
information about the Director proposed to be re-appointed has been annexed to the Notice convening
the 24™ Annual General Meeting,

Declaration on complinnce with Code of Conduct

All Directors and Senior Management have adhered to the Code of Conduct of the Company during the
year and have signed declarations of compliance 1o the Code of Conduct, The declaration signed by
Shri Sanjay Hada, Managing Director & CEO affirming the compliance of the Code of Conduct by the
Board Members and Senbor Management is given separately in the Annual Report,

Sharcholding of Directors nnd Key Managerial Personnel
As on 31" March, 2020 following shares of the Company were held by Directors and Key Managerial

Personnel of the Company:

Name Designation Na, of shares held

as on 3L.03.2020
Shri Pawan Kumar Kanoria Executive Chairman 8.15.566
Smit, Smita Poddar Non-Executive Director -
Dr. Pranab Kumar Mooketjes Independent Director 1,126
Shri Vijendra Kumar Chaukhani* Whaole-time Director 20
Shri Shiv Kumar Agarwal President (Finance) & 50

Company Secretary

*Resigned w.e.f. 12" June, 2020,

Board Meetings, Annunl General Meeting and Attendance

During the financial year ended 31" March, 2020, six Board Meetings were held on 24" April, 2019,
14" May, 2019, 13" August, 2019, 24" September, 2019, 13" November, 2019 and 14" February,
2020,

Maximum time gap between two meetings was less than 120 days. In terms of Schedule V of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a separate meeting of the Independent Directors was held on 9*
March, 2020 which was attended by all Independent Directors,

The Atiendance of the Directors at the Board meetings and the Annual General Meeting and
remuneration paid to them for attending the Board meetings is given below:

Mame of Directors No, of Meetings Fees Paid  Attendance at last
Held  Attended Rs. AGM held on
24.09.2019
Shri Pawan Kumar Kanorin 6 6 Nil Yes
Shri Sanjay Hada 6 6 Nil Yes
Smt. Smita Poddar with Alt. Dir, 6 B 18,000 Mo
Shri Vijendra Kumar Chaukhani 6 6 il Yes
Dr. Pranab Kumar Mookerjee & 5 15,000 Yes
Shri Pradeep Kumar Jain 6 5 15,000 Yes
Shri Piyush Bhartia [ 5 15,000 Yes
Shri Rohit Banka 6 6 18,000 Yes.

The Company Secretary is the Secretary of the Board of Directors and attended all meetings of the
Board of Directors.

The Directors have access 1o the complete agenda for meetings along with all relevant annexure and
other important information through email ahead of the meeting to enable them to make private notes
and comments of the meeting.
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Board Comminee

The Board of Directors had already constituted the Audit Comminee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee in compliance with the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Corporate Governance requirements under Listing Repulations,

The comiposition, terms of reference, attendance and other details of these Committees are mentioned
later in this Report,

Directorships and Committee membership in other Companies

Mone of the Directors on the Board is a member of more than 10 Committees and Chairman of more
than 5 Committees as specified in Regulation 26(1) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Reguirements) Regulations, 2015,

None of the Directors is presently holding directorship in more than 7 listed companies and also none
of the Directors is holding directorship in more than 10 public companies.

As required under Para C(2) of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, based on the latest disclosures
received by the Company, following are the number of other directorships and the names of the listed
entities where Directors of the Company are also a Director and the category of their directorships

therein.

Name of Directors No. of other Directorships and its category ln listed
Directorships entities other than the Company
including the

Company*

Shri Pawan Kumar Kanorin 2 =

Shri Sanjay Hada 3 I. Uma Properties & Traders Limited

Shri Vijendra Kumar Chaukhani ** | -

Shri Suvendu Kumar Chatterjee*** i =

Dr. Pranab Kumar Mookerjee Ll 1. Huldibari Industries & Plantation Co Lid

2. Mcleod & Co Lid

Shri Pradeep Kumar Jain 1 -

Shri Piyush Bhartia 2 -

Smt. Smita Poddar | -

Shri Rohit Banka 1 -

®Excludes memberships of the managing committee of wvarious chambers'bodies corporate,
directorships in private limited companies, foreign companies, companies registered under section §
of the Act and alternate directorships.

**Ceased to be Director w.e.f. 12" June, 2020,

*e*Appoinied weell. 12" June, 2020.

In order to encourage active participation from the Independent Directors and also 1o enable them 1o
understand the business environment of the Company, a Familiarization Programme for the
Independent Directors has been adopted and the same is available on the website of the Company on
www. reliancejute.com. Independent Directors of the Company are familiar with the operations of the
Jute Industry, its modus operandi and their responsibilities as Independent Director, Familiarization
Programme for Independent Directors will be imparted as and when considered necessary by the Board
of Directors of the Company.

In pursuance of Para C (2), Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, the Board Directors has identified
the core skills/expertise/competencies that are desirable for the Company to function effectively in the
context of the business of the Company and its sector, These core skills/expertise/competencies are
actually available with Board in the following manner:
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Sl No.

Ares of core skills/ expertise/ competencies

Manufacturing / Operations

Finance and Accounts

Sales and Marketing

Business
Management

Regulptory Compliance, Governance and

Stakeholders Management

4. Audit Commitiee
a) Constitution and Composition
The details of composition of the Audit Committee under the provisions of Sec, 177 of the

Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations are as under:

Name of Directors Designation
Shri Pradeep Kumar Jain Chairman
Shri Sanjay Hada hMember

Dr. Pranab Kumar Mookerjee Member
Shri Piyush Bhartia Member
Shri Rohit Banka* Member

Strategy, Planning and Risk

Name of the Directors who have such
skills/expertise/com petence

Shri Sanjay Hada

Shri Suvendu Kumar Chatterjee

Shri Pawan Kumar Kanoria
Shri Sanjay Hada

Dr. Pranab Kumar Mookerjee
Shri Pradeep Kumar Jain

Shri Piyush Bhartia

Shri Rohil Banka

Shri Pawan Kumar Kanoria
Shri Sanjay Hada
Smt. Sonal Hada

Shri Pawan Kumar Kanoria
Shri Sanjay Hada
Smt Smita Poddar

Shri Pawan Kumar Kanoria
Dr. Pranab Kumar Mookerjee
Shri Pradeep Kumar Jaln
Shri Piyush Bhartia

Shri Rohit Banka

Category
Independent Director
Executive Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director

*Shri Rohit Banka was appointed meniber of the Audit Committee w.e.f. 24" April, 2019,

bl Terms of Reference
The role and terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in accordance with the provisions of
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as specified under Part C of Schedule 11 of the Listing
Regulations, The role of the Audit Committee includes the following:

* Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

* Recommending to the Board the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the replacement
or removal of the stafutory auditors and the fixation of audit fees;

¢ Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory
auditors;

* Reviewing, with the management, quarterly financial statements before submission to the
board for approval;
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Reviewing, with the management, annual financial statements and auditor's report thercon
before submission to the board for approval;

Reviewing, with the managemeni, the statement of uses / application of funds raised
through an issue (public issue. rights issue, preferential issue, etc.);

Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance, and
effectiveness of audit process;

Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related
parties;

Serutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary:
Evaluation of intemal financial controls and risk management systems;

Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy
of the internal control systems;

Reviewing the adequacy of imtemnal audit function, if any, including the structure of the
internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department,
reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;
Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors Into matters
where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of intemal control systems of
a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board;

Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and
scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion 1 ascertin any area of concem;

To review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;

Approval of appointment of chief financial officer afler assessing  the
qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate;

Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit,
Reviewing utilization of the loans and/or advances from investment by holding company in

subsidiary company exceeding Rs.100 Crores or 10% of asset size of subsidiary, whichever is
lower.

In nddition, the Audit Committee alse mandatorily reviews the following:

"

Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Commitiee),
submitted by management;

Management letters/letters of internal control weaknesses, if any, issued by the Statutory
Auditors;

Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses: and

The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of Internal Auditor,
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Internal Audit
The Internal Auditor appointed by the Company conducts the internal audit and submit its report to
the Audit Committee on half-yearly basis,

i Meetings and attendance
During the financial year 5 Irm:tinhg!: of the Audit Committee were held on 24" April, 2019, 14"
May, 2019, 13" August, 2019, 13" November, 2019 and 14™ February, 2020. The Anendance of
the Directors at these Audit Committe¢ meetings and remuneration paid to them is given below:
Name of Directors No. of Meetings Fees Paid
Held Attended Rs.
Shri Pradeep Kumar Jain 5 4 4.000
Shri Sanjay Hada 5 3 -
Dr. Pranab Kumar Mookerjee 5 4 4,000
Shri Piyush Bhartia s 4 4,000
Shri Rohit Banka* 3 4 4,000
*Shri Rohit Banka was appointed as the member of the Audit Committee w.e.f. 24™ April, 2019,
Representative of the Statutory Auditors was invited to the meeting of the Audit Commitiee.
Minutes of the Audit Committee are placed before the Board meeting for noting. The Chairman of
the Audit Committee was present at the last Annual General Meeting. The Company Secretary acts
as the Secretary of the Audit Commitiee meeting and accordingly, Shri Shiv Kumar Agarwal,
President (Finance) & Company Secretary, had attended all these meetings.
5 Nomination and Remuneration Committes
n) Constitwtion and Composition

The details of composition of Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee pursuant to the provisions
of Sec, 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations are as under:

Name of Directors Designation Category

Shri Pradeep Kumar Jain Member Independent Director
Dy, Pranab Kumar Mookerjee Member Independent Director
Shri Piyush Bhartia Member Independent Director
Shri Rohit Banka®* Member Independent Director

*Shri Rohit Banka was appointed as the member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
with effect from 14™ February, 2020.

Terms of Reference

The role and terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Commiites are in accordance
with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder
read with Regulation 19 and as specified under Part D{A) of Schedule 11 of the Listing Regulations.
The role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee includes the following:

»*  Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes  and
independence of a director and recommend to the Board of Directors a policy
relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerinl personne! and other
employees;

*  Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and the
Board of Directors;

»  Devising a policy on diversity of Board of Directors;
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*  ldentifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be
sppointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down and
recommend 1o the board of directors their appointment and removal:

. Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the Independent Director on
the basis of the repon of performance evaluation of Board of Directors.

b} Atrendance

€

During the financial year ended 31" March, 2020, one meeting of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee was held on 13® August, 2019.

Wame of Directors No. of Meetings Fees Paid®
Held Attended Rs.

Shri Pradeep Kumar Jain 1 I -

Dr, Pranab Kumar Mookerjee 1 1 -

Shri Piyush Bhartia i - -

*Members waived their sitting fees for this meeting.

Nomination and Remuneration Policy

In compliance with the requirements of Section 178 of the Act, including Rules framed thereunder
and pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 19(4) of the Listing Regulations, the Board of
Directors of the Company has adopted a Nomination and Remuneration Policy for the Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel {KMPs), Senior Management Personnel (SMPs), Functional Heads and
other employees of the Company. The policy provides for Board diversity criteria and
qualifications for appointment of Directors, KMPs and SMPs, remuneration paid/payable to them,
etc. The said policy has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.reliancejute.com,

Non-Executive Non-Independent Directors

The Board of Directors decides on the remuneration of the Non-Executive Director in accordance
with the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company and with the approval of the
Members of the Company, if so required. Presently, such Director is paid no remuneration except
sitting fees for attending the Board meeting.

Non-Executive Independent Directors

Remuneration by way of sifting fees for anending the Board and Committee Meetings are paid to
the independent Directors. They are also entitled to @ Commission on Net Profits not exceeding 1%
in aggregate of the Net Profits computed in the manner referred to in Section 198 of the Act and
Rules framed thereunder, which is distributed among them after the AGM, in such proportion as
determined by the Board on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

Executive Directors

Nomination and Remuneration Committee determines the remuneration to be paid to the Executive
Directors of the Company in accordance with their qualifications, experience, managing skills, and
the scope of the work and responsibilities assigned to them. The liabilities for Gratuity and Leave
Encashment are provided on actuarial basis by the Company as a whole, the amount pentaining to
the Directors are not included to the salary and perquisites paid in terms of the Agresment entered
with the Executive Directors, Remuneration and perquisites of the Executive Directors include
retirement benefits and items which donot form part of their remuneration and perquisites under
Section 197 and 198 of the Act and Rules framed thereunder. The Agreement with the Executive
Directors are contractual in nature. These Agreements may be terminated at any time by either
party giving the months notice without any cause.

Performance Evaluation of the Board, Committee and Directors
The Company understands the requirements of an effective Board Evaluation process and
accordingly conducts a Performance Evaluation every year in respect of the following:
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i Board of Directors as a whole
iil. Committee of the Board of Direciors
iii, Individual Directors including the Chairman of the Board of Directors

In compliance with the requirements of the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Listing Regulations and the Guidance Note on Board Evaluastion issued by SEBI in Junuary,
2017, the Company has carried out 2 Performance Evaluation for the Board'Committees of the
Board/Individual Directors including the Chairman of the Board of Directors for the financial year
ended 31™ March, 2020,

6. Remuneration to Directors
n) Non-Executive Directors are entitled to sitting fees for every mesting of the Board or Committee
thereof attended by them. They are also entitled to commission not exceeding 1% of the net profits of
the Company. The Chairman, Managing Director & CEO and Whole-time Director don’t receive
sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board or any Committee thereof.

b} Details of remuneration paid to Non-Executive Directors
Toml Remuneration paid to Non-Executive Directors for anending meetings of the Board and
Commitees during the year ended 31" March, 2020 is given below:

Name of Directors Sitting Fees Commission Total
(Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.)
Dr. Pranab Kumar Mookerjee 19,000 - 15,000
Shri Pradeep Kumar Jain 19,000 - 19,000
Shri Piyush Bhartia 19,000 - 19,000
Smt. Smita Poddar with Alt. Dir. 18,000 - 18,000
Shri Rohit Banka 22,000 - 22,000

c) Details of remuneration paid to Executive Directors

Particulars Shiri P, K. Kanoria Shri 8. Hada  Shri V. K. Chaukhani
(Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.)

Salary and Allowances 66,70,968 70,45,161 21,34,191

Cont. to Provident Fund 6,67,097 704,516 1,53.457

Cont. to Superannuation Fund 1,50,000 1,50,000 1,00,000

Total T4.88,065 T8.99.677 23,87,648

The appointment of the Executive Directors is governed by the Articles of Assoclation of the Company
and the resolutions passed by the Board of Directors and the members of the Company.

All appointments and terms of remuneration are being considered by the Board based on the
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Commiitee.

As per termis of appointment, the Company and the Executive Directors have the right to terminate the
appointment by giving one month's prior notice in writing to the other. There is no provision for
payment of severance fees under the resolutions governing the appointment of Executive Directors.

The Company has not issued any stock options to its Directors.

Mone of the Non-Executive Directors except Dr. Pranab Kumar Mookerjee holds any share in the
Company.

The Company has not entered into any material pecuniary relationship or transactions with the
Mon-Executive Directors except rental agreement with Smt, Smita Poddar on arm’s length basis.
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7. Constitution of Stakeholders Relationship Committee

a)

b)

€)

Composition

Dr. Pranab Kumar Mookerjee, an Independent Director of the Company, is the Chairman of the
Stakcholders Relationship Committee. The composition of Stakeholders Relationship Committee is
as follows:

Name of the Directors Designation Category

Dr. Pranab Kumar Mookerjee Chairman Independent Director
Shri Vijendra Kumar Chaukhani® Member Whole-time Director
Shri Pradeep Kumar Jain Member Independent Director
Shri Piyush Bhartia Member Independent Director
Shri Rohit Banka# Member Independent Director

*Censed with effect from 12" June, 2020 by virue of resignation from the directorship of the

Company.
#Appointed as the member with effect from 13" August, 2019.

Meetings and attendance

During the financial year 4 (four) meetings of Stakeholders Relationship Committee were held on
14" May, 2019, 13® August, 2019, 13* November, 2019 and 14" February, 2020. The Attendance of
the Directors at these Stakeholders Committee meetings and fiees paid to them is given below:

Name of Directors No. of Meetings Fees Paid
Held Attended Rs.
Dr. Pransb Kumar Mookerjee 4 3 -
Shri Vijendra Kumar Chaukhani® 4 4 -
Shri Pradeep Kumar Jain 4 3 -
Shri Piyush Bhartia 4 3 -
Shri Rohit Banka# 4 2 -

*Ceased with effect from 12" June, 2020 by virtue of resignation from the directorship of the

Company.
#Appointed as the member with effect from 13" August, 2019,

Shri Shiv Kumar Agarwal, President (Finance) & Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the
meeting,

Dr. Pranab Kumar Mookerjee. Chairman of the Commitiee was present af the 23" Annual General
Meeting of the Company held on 24" September, 2019,

Scope of Stakeholders Relationship Committee

The Committee looks into various aspects of interest of sharcholders relating to shareholders’ and
investors' queries and grievances such as transfers and transmissions of shares, issue of duplicate
share certificates, sub-division and consolidation of certificates, non- receipt of annual reports,
dividend warrants etc.

The Commitiee also reviews the status of dematerialisation / re-materialisation of shares and suggest
measures for improvement of procedures and systems.

Apan from above, the Stockholders Relationship Committee has the following role:
» Reviewing of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.

* Reviewing of adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various
services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.
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* Reviewing of the various measures and initistives taken by the Company for reducing the
quantum of unclaimed dividends and emsuring timely receipt of dividend warrants‘annual
reparts/statutory notices by the shareholders.

d}  Compliance Officer
Shri Shiv Kumar Agarwal, President (Finance) & Company Secretary acted as the Secretary 1o all the
Committees and Compliance Officer of the Company and his contact details are as given below:

Shri Shiv Kumar Agarwal

President (Finance) & Company Secretary
Reliance Jute Mills (Intemational) Lid.

Ideal Plaza, South Block, 4" Floor

11/1, Sarnt Bose Road

Kolkata-700 020

Tel. Mo. : (033) 2280 7017718, Dir.: 84201 18850
Fax No.: (033) 2280 T016

E~mail : financeho(@reliancejuie.com

¢} Pledge of shares:
No pledge of shares has been created over the Equity Shares held by the Promaters as on 31" March,
2020,

N} Details of complaints from shareholders

No. of complaints remaining unresolved as on 1* April, 2019 Wil
No. of complaints received during the year Nil
No. of complaints resolved during the vear Nil
No, of complaints unresolved as on 3 1% March, 2020 Nil

8. Risk Managemeni Committee

Pursuant to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, constitution of
Risk Management Committee was made applicable to only top 100 listed entities, determined on the basis
of market capitalisation, as at the end of immediate previous financial year. Since the Company doesn't
fall under the category of aforesaid listed Companies, it was decided to discontinue existing Risk
Management Committee which was formed by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 5™ May, 2015.
Audit Committee, apart from its existing responsibilities, also monitor the areas of risks, its assessment
and mitigation,

9. General Body Meetings
#) Location and date/time where last three Annual General Meetings (AGM) were held and No. of

Specinl Resolutions passed:
AGM  Relatingto  Date Time Venue No. of
No. Financial Special
Year Resolutions
passed
Keshari Devi Kanoria Hall,
123, Dr. Meghnad Saha Sarani
21" 31.03.2017 14092017 400PM  (Southem Avenue), Nil
Kolkata-700 029
Rotary Sadan, 5. 5. Hall
22" 31.03.2018 25092018 400PM 9472, Chowringhee Road 6
Kolkata-700 020
Sitaram Seksaria Auditorium of
23 30320019 240920019 400PM wﬂ Sovrienriy Nil
4* Floor, Kolkata-700017

No Special Resolution was passed at the Annual General Meeting held on 14" September, 2017,
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)

At the Annual General Meeting held on 25" September, 2018, 6(six) Special Resolutions were passed.
Omne Special Resolution was passed for appointment of Shri Sanjay Hada as Managing Director & CEO
of the Company for a period of 5(five) vears with effect from 1% January, 2020. One Special
Resolution was passed for appointment of Shri Vijendra Kumar Chaukhani ns Whole-time Director of
the Company for a period of 2(two) years with efTect from 1 August, 2018, Three Special Resolutions
were passed for appoiniment of Dr. Pranab Kumar Mookerjee, Shri Pradeep Kumar Jain and Shri
Piyush Bhartia as Independent Directors of the Company for a period of 5(five) years with effect from
1" April, 2020. One Special Resolution was passed authorizing the Board of Directors of the Company
1o sell, lense or otherwise dispose of the assets of the Company.,

No Special Resolution was passed st the Annual General Meeting held on 24" September, 2019,

Mo Extre-ordinary General Meeting {EGM) was held by the Company during the financial year ended
31" March, 2020.

Postal Ballot

During the year under review, two Special Resolutions under Section 180(1)(c) and 180(1)}a) of the
Companies Act, 2013 were passed through conducting Postal Ballot under Section 110 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder. The result of the Postal Ballot was declared on §°
June, 2019,

10, Disclosures

a)

h)

c)

d)

n)

Details of transactions with related parties have been reported in the MNotes to Accounts. These
disclosures are also made for the purpose of Regulation 10(1)(a) of the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Substantizl Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 201 1.All the transactions with
related parties are at arm's length basis and there are no materinlly significant related party transactions
which may have potential conflict with the imerests of the Company at large,

There were no instances of non-compliance by the Company or any penalties or strictures imposed on
the Company by Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority on any matter related to capital
markets during the last three years,

The Company has in place an Employee Concern {Whistle Blower Policy) which is also available on
the Company's website www rellancejute.com. No personnel have been denied access to the Audit
Committee to lodge their grievances.

The Company has made compliance with corporste governance requirements as specified in
Regulations 17 to 27 and clause (b) to (i) of sub-regulaton (2) of Regulation 46 read with Schedule V of
Lisung Regulaions,

All mandatory requirements and all the non-mandatory requirements have appropriately been complied
with except that the Company doesn’t bear the expenses of the Chairman's Office and doesn't send the
half yearly financial performance to each household of sharcholders who have not registered their
E~mail ID with the Company or the Depository Participants.

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms a pant of the Board's Repor.
Mo presentations were made to institutional investors and analysts during the year,
The Company doesn’t have any subsidiary.

There was no public issue, rights issues or other public offerings during the past five years. The
Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs"Warmnts or any convertible instruments.

Plant location of the Company are given separately in the Annual Accounts of the Company and are
also available on the Company’s website www.reliancejule.com

. Means of Communication:

The quarterly, half yearly and annual financial results of the Company are forwarded to The Calcutta
Stock Exchange Limited (CSE) upon approval by the Board of Directors and are published in
Newspapers in English and Bengali (Regional Language). The financial results are displayed on the
Company's website www reliancejute.com. The sharcholding patterns are also displayed on the
company’s website on quarterly basis.
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b}

c)

d)

Shareholders communication including Notices and Annual Reports are being sent to the E~mail
address of Members available with the Company and the Depositories. Annusl Accounts are sent to
Members at least 25 days before the date of Annual General Meeting.

The Company's website www.reliancejute.com makes online announcement of Board meeting dates,
results of the meelings. quarterly fnancial results, announcement of the date of Annual General
Meeting, changes in Directors and other announcements, Copies of Notices and Annual Reports sent to
Shareholders are also available on the website,

Address for Communication

All communication regarding share transactions, change of address, bank mandates, nominations etc.
should be addressed 1o the Registrars and Share Transfer Agents of the Company at the following
address:

8. K. Infosolutions Pvt, Ltd,
3471 A, Sudhir Chatterjee Street
Kolkata-700 006

Tel. No.: (033) 2219 6797

Fax No. : (033) 22194815
E~mail : skedilip@@gmail.com

Complaints, if any, may also be addressed to the Company Secretary at the Registered Office at Ideal
Plaza., South Block, 4" Floor, 11/1, Sarat Bose Road, Kolkats-700 020 or sent by E-mail at
financehod@relinncejute.com,

12. General Shareholders Information:

a) AGM: Date, Time and Venue : | 29" September, 2020 at 4.00 P. M. through video

conferencing or other sudio-visual means as per
details given in the notice calling the annual general

meeting of even date.
b) Financial Year :  The Financial Year of the Company is from 1"
April 1o 31" March.
Financial Calendar for Financial Year By end of August 2020
2020-21 By mid-November 2020
1™ Quarter Financial Results By mid February 202
2" Quarter Financial Resulls By end of May 2021
3™ Quarter Financial Results
4" Quarter Financial Results
¢) Date of Book Closure :  From 23" September, 2020 to 29* September, 2020
(both days inclusive).
d})  Dividend payment date ¢ Mo dividend was recommended for declaration for
the year ended 31" March, 2020,
e) Listing of Securities :  The Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd.
7. Lyons Range
Kolkata-700 001

Annual Listing Fee has been paid within extended
time limit by Stock Exchange due to the Covid-19
pandemic situation and lockdown measures across
the country and all requirements of the Stock
Exchange where the shares of the Company are
listed, including submission of quarterly reports and
certificates particularly pertaining to the last quarter
of the financial year were complied with delayed
due 1o above reason,
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h}

i

1

m)

L]

0)

Stock  Code-Physical Dems  [SIN

Mumber for NSDL & CDSL

s "_'__'tﬂﬁhft.ow
each month in 20019-20)

Stock performance of the Company in

comparison to CSE Sensex. (April,
2019 1o March, 2020)

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

Share Transfer Sysiem
Distribution of Shareholding as on
31" March, 2020

Dematerialization of shares and
liquidity

Outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants
or any convertible instruments,
conversion dute likely impect on
equity

Plant location

Address for correspondence

Information in respect of cliuse 12(g)
During the financial year ended 31™ March, 2020, there was no transaction of Equity Shares of the
Company at The Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd. The last traded price of the Equity Shares of the
Company at the above Stock Exchange was Rs.2.65 per share,

Information in respect of clause 12(j)

Share Transfer Sysiem
Share transfers in physical and demat form are processed by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent,
Mis S. K. Infosolutions Pvt. Ltd. on regular basis. The transfer/transmission of shares is approved in
accordance with the powers delegated by the Board of Directors to the Chairman, Managing Director &
CEOQ, Whole-time Director and President (Finance) & Company Secretary.

28387 at The Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd.
INEZ9TEQIOI6

Information has been given at the end of Clause 12

Such information s not available with the CSE.

M/, S, K. Infosolutions Pve. Lid.
34/1A, Sudhir Chatterjee Street
Kolkata-700 006

Tel. No. (033) 2219 6797

Fax No.{033) 22194815

E-mail: skedilip@iemail com

Information has been given at the end of Clause 12

Information has been given at the end of Clause 12

As on 31* March, 2020, 90.65% of the Company's
paid-up share capital representing 23,47,397 shares is
held in dematerinlized form.

Not issued

The Company”s plant is located at the following place:
80, West Ghosh Para Road
Bhatpara

24, Parganas (North)
West Bengal-743 123

Relisnce Jute Mills {Intemational) Lid,
CIN: LIT125WB 1 996PLCO81182
“VINSS" Business Centre

Idenl Plaza, South Block, 4™ Floor
1171, Sarat Bose Road

Kolkata-700 020

Phone: (033) 2280 701718

Fax: (033) 2280 7016

E~mail: financeho(@reliance]ute.com
Website: www reliancejute. com
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The shares lodged for tramsfers/dematerialisation are processed within 15 days from the date of their
lodgement, if transfer instruments are found valid and complete in all respects.

As stipulated by SEBI, M/s. N, K. & Associates, Company Secretaries, carries out the secretarial audit
to reconcile the total admitted capital in dematerialised form (held with NSDL and CDSL) and total
number of shares in physical form and to confirm that the total listed and paid-up capital are in
agreement with the aggregate number of shares. This audit is carried out in every quarter and the report
is submitted to The Calcuna Stock Exchange Limited,

Pursuant (o the provisions of Regulation 40(9) of the Listing Regulations, M/s. N. K. & Associates,
Company Secretaries, also conducts audit of the Share Operations System of the Company maintained
at the office of the RTA. The Company makes efforts to implement the suggestions/recommendations
based on the audit outcome to the extent possible.

Information in respeet of clause 12(k)
() Distribution of shareholdings as on 31™ March, 2020:

Category (Ne. of MNo. of Percentage No. of Shares  Percentape
shares) sharcholders
Upto 500 1492 9247 163746 6.32
501 - 1000 78 4.81 54858 212
1001 — 2000 23 1.42 29964 1.16
2001 - 3000 10 0.62 25352 097
3001 - 4000 3 0.19 10588 0.41
4001 — 5000 | 0.06 4582 0.18
5001 - 10000 - = - =
10001 - 50000 - - - -
50001 - 100000 2 0.12 123522 477
100001 & above 5 031 2176878 84.07
Total 1614 100.00 1589490 100.00

(b) Shareholding Pattern as on 31" March, 2020:

] e T o oSt ——
Promoter! Promoter Group 19,40,878 74.95
Financial Institutions/Banks 7,012 0.27
Other Corporate Bodies 3,16,912 12.24
General Public 3,18922 12.32
Non-Resident Individuals 5,766 0,22
Total 25,89,490 100.00

13, CEO/CFO Certification
Shri Sanjay Hada, Managing Director & CEO and Shri Shiv Kumar Agarwal, Company Secretary & CFO
of the Company have provided compliance certificate to the Board of Directors as required under
Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

14.Decluration on Complinnce of Company®s Code of Conduct
The Board of Directors of the Company have formulated a Code of Conduct applicable to all its members
and Senior Management of the Company incorporating duties of independent directors which has been
posted on the website of the Company www.reliancejute.com. A declaration signed by the Managing
Director & CEO of the Company affirming compliance of the code of conduct by the members of the
Board of Directors and Senior Management of the Company is attached to this report.

15.Corporate Governance Compliance
The Company has complied with the requirements as laid down in the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the purpose of ensuring Corporate Governance. A
certificate to this effect obtained from Shri Navin Kothari of M/s. N. K. & Associates, Company
Secretaries (FCS No. 5935, CP No. 3725) of the Company, has been attached to this Annual Report.
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16, Other Disclosures
() Prior approval of the Audit Committee is obtained for all Related Party Transactions entered by the
Company. During the financial year ended 31* March, 2020, the Company did not have any ‘material’
related party transaction that may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large,

The Disclosure on Related Party Transactions forms an integral part of the Notes to the Financial
Statements for the financial year ended 31" March, 2020 as included in this Annual Report.

(b) There were no instances of non-compliances related 1o capital markets during the last years. No
penalty/stricture was imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchange or SEBI or any other statutory
authorities on such matters.

(e) The Company has established an effective Vigil Mechanism System under the Chairman of Audit
Commitiee. The Whistle Blower Policy of the Company is available on the website of the Company at
wiww rellancejute.com, No person has been denled access to the Audit Committee.

(d) All mandatory requirements to corporate governance under the Listing Regulations have been
appropriately complied with and the status of non-mandatory (discretionary) requirements is given
below:

ie)

in

(h)

0

i) The Chairman does not maintain any office at the expense of the Company;

ii} In view of publication of the Financial Results of the Company in newspapers having wide
circulation and dissemination of the same on the website of the Company as well as on the
websiie of the Stock Exchange, the Company does not consider it prudent to circulate the
half-yearly results separately to the Sharcholders;

ili) The Company’s Financial Statements have been accompanied with unmodified audit opinion
- both on quarterly and yearly basis;

Iv) The Chairman, Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the Company are two
different individuals; and

v}  The Chief Internal Auditor of the Company reports directly to Audit Committee and is a
permanent invitee to all the Audit Committee Meetings.

Subsidiary Companles
The Company does not have any subsidiary company.

The Board of Directors has adopted a Related Party Transactions Policy pursuant to the
requirements of Section 188 of the Act and Rules framed thereunder and Regulation 23 of the
Listing Regulntions. The said Policy has been uploaded on the website of the Company at
www.reliancejute.com.

Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities:

Information required under Clause 9(n) of Pant C of Schedule V to the Listing Regulations and
SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD 1/CIR/P/2018/0000000141 dated 15™ November, 2018 are
given hereunder:

The Company is exposed to the risk of price fluctuation of raw materials as well as finished goods.
The Company manages its commaodity price risk by maintaining adequate inventory of raw
materials and finished goods considering future price movement.

Since the Company does not have any commodity price risk exposure hedged through commaodity
derivatives, accordingly, other detils as required under SEBI Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMDI1/CIR/P/2018/000000014 1 dated 15" November, 2018 is not applicable to the
Company.

Further details relating to risks and activities including financial risk management have been
adequately disclosed in Note No.47 1o the Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31"
March, 2020.

No funds were raised by the Company through preferential allotment or qualified institutions
placement.

A certificate confirming that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company has been debarred
or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority, has
been received from Shri Naveen Kothari of M/s. N. K. & Associntes, Company Secretaries and the
same is annexed to this Report.
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(I} During the financial year ended 31" March, 2020, the Board has sccepted all the recommendations of its
Commitices.

(k) Interms of the provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act. 2013 (as amended) and Rules framed thereunder, the number of complaints received
during the financial yesr 2019-20 alongwith their status of redressal as on 31® March, 2020 are g5 under:

No. of complainis filed dunng the financial year 2019-20 Nil
No. of compluinis disposed of during the financial year 2019-20 Nil
No. of complaints pending redressal as on 31 March, 2020 Nil

()  Disclosure with respect to demat suspense account / unclaimed suspense account: Not applicable.
Other lems which are not upplicable 1o the Company have not been separately commented upon.

For and on behalf of the Bonrd

P. K. KANORIA
Ideal Plaza, 1071, Sarat Bose Road Chalrman
Kolkata, Dated: 29" August, 2020 (DIN:00305297)

/—nulurmnn regarding compliance of Code of Conduct as required under SEBI (Listing Obligations am-i\
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

I hereby declarc that pursuant to Schedule V(D) read with Regulation 34(3) of the Listing Regulations, all the

Board Members and Key Managerial Personnel (including Senior Mansgement Personnel) of the Company have
affirmed compliance with the Company's Code of Conduct for the financial year ended 31% March, 2020.

For and on behalf of the Board
Ideal Flaza, 5. HADA
1171, Sarat Bose Road, Managing Director & CEQ
Kolkata, the 31" July, 2020 DIN:00305476

- A

Chiel Executive Officer (CEQ) and Chief Flanclal OfMcer (CFO) Certification as required under Regulation 17
al the SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requiremenis) Regulatlons, 20015

To

The Board of Directors

Reliance Jute Mills {International) Ltd

We, Sanjay Flada, Managing Director & CEQ and Shiv Kumar Agarwal, Company Secretary & CFO of Reliance Juie

Mills (International] Lid. (“the Company'} to the best of our knowledge and belicfl and under our respective capasity

certify that:

A We have reviewed financial ststements and the cash Now stilement for the year onded 31° March, 2020 and
bued on our knowledge and belief, we state that

iy these stntements do mod contain any materially unirue statemen! of omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading,

(w)  these sttements ogether present a trse and fiuir view of the Company’s affairs and are in complimnce
with existing Accounting Standards, applicable laws and regulations

B There are, (6 the best of our knowledge and beliel, no transactions emiered into by the Company during the year
which are froudulent. illegal or violative of the Company's Code of Conduc.

C We acorpt responsibility for establishing and maintaining intemnal controls for financial reporting and have
evaluated the effectivensss of internal control systems of the Company peraining to financial reporting and we
have dischosed to the Auditors and the Audit Commities, deficiencies in the design or operation of such inicrnal
vontrols, IF any, of which we arc aware and the steps we have takon or propase 10 teke o rectify these
deficiencies.

D. We have indicated, based on our most recent evalustion, wherever applicable, to the Auditors and the Audit
Commitsee that -
(1} there bave not been any significant changes in miermal control over financial reporting during the
financial vear ended 31" March, 2020,
{it}  there have not been any significant changes m accounting policics during the during the financial year
ended 317 March, 2020 requiring disclosure in the notes 1o the financial datements,
{iii} there have nol been any instances during the yoar of significant fraud of which we had become aware
and the involvement therein, il any, of the menngement or an employee having o significant role in the
Company”s internal control system over Minancial reporting.
Place: Kolkata S HADA S K. AGARWAL
Bate: 31" July, 2020 Munaging Direcior & CEOQ Company Secretary & CFO
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

[ Pursuwant 1o Regwlation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C Clause 1041) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regularions, 201 5]

Tﬂb

The Members

RELIANCE JUTE MILLS (INTERNATIONAL) LTD.
Ideal Plaza, South Block, 4™ Floor

11/1, Sarat Bose Road

Kolkata-700020

We have examined the relevani registers, records, forms, retumns and disclosures recejved from the
Directors of Reliance Jute Mills (International) Ltd. having CIN: L17125WB1996PLC08 1382
and having its registered office at Ideal Plaza, South Block, 4" Floor, 11/1, Sarat Bose Road,
Kolkata-700020 (hereinafier referred to as “the Company’), produced before us by the Company,
for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, In accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule
V Para C Sub-clause 10(i) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 201 5.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verification (including
Directors™ Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered
necessary and explanations fumished to us by the Company & its officers, we hereby certify that
none of the Directors en the Board of the Company for the financinl year ending 31% March, 2020,
have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by
the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other

Statutory Authority:
e ke s BiN e T
No. Appointment in
Company
1. Mr. Pranab Kumar Mookerjee 00110648 22.01.2000
2. Mr. Piyush Bhartia 00154138 31.07.2007
3. Mr. Pawan Kumar Kanoria 00305297 18.09.19596
4. Mrs, Sonal Hada 00305420 20.06.2018
5, Mr. Sanjay Hada 00303476 01.01.1999
6. Mr. Pradeep Kumar Jain 00372338 18.08.2004
7. Mrs. Smita Poddar 01204391 30.03.2015
8.  Mr. Rohit Banka 07521288 11.12.2017
9, Mr. Vijendra Kumar Chaukhani 00309895 14.03.2012

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board s the
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
same, based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company nor of the efficiency or effectivencss with which the management has conducted the

affairs of the Company.
For N, K. & Assoclntes
Company Secrefiries
(MNavin Kothari)
Proprictor
Kolkata FCS No.5935, C. P. No.3725
Dated the 14" August, 2020 UDIN : FOO5935B000580872
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Practicing Company Secretaries Certificate on compliasnce with the conditions of
Corporate Governance wnder SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements )
Regulations, 2015,

To
The Members of Reliance Jure Mills (International) Lud,

We have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate govemnance by Reliance Jute
Mills (International) Limited, (the Company) for the year ended 31" March, 2020, as stipulated
in Regulations 17 1o 27 and Clauses |7 to 27 and Clause (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and Para
€ and D of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended (“Listing Regulations™).

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management
of the Company including the preparation and maintenance of all relevant supporting records
and documents. This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of
internal control and procedures to ensure the compliance with the conditions of the Corporate
Governance stipulated in SEBI Listing Regulations.

Our examination is limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the
Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of corporate governance. It is neither
an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of corporate governance as
stipulated in the above mentioned provisions of the Listing Regulations during the year ended
31" March, 2020,

We have been explained that no investor grievances are pending for a period exceeding one
month against the Company as per the records maintained by the Company.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

This certificate is issued solely for the purpose of complying with the aforesaid regulations and
may be suitable for any other purpose.

For and on behnlf of N, K. & Associates

Company Secretaries

{Navin Kothari)

Proprietor

Kolkata FCS No.5938, C. P. No.3725
Dated the 19" August, 2020. UDIN:F005935B000594952
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ANNEXURE - IT

MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REFPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31™" MARCH, 2020

[Fursuant jo section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Rewruneration aof Manageriol Personael) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members

Relimnce Jute Mills ( International) Limited
Ideal Plaza, South Black, 4th Floor,

1141, Sarat Bose Road,

Kolkata - TO0020

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence
to good corporate practices by Reliamce Jute Mills (International) Limited{hereinafier called the
company).Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
carporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, wehereby report that in our opinion, the
company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 315t March, 2020 complied with the

statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the Company for the financial year ended on 315t March, 2020 according to the provisions of;

i The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
(ii)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA") and the rules made thereunder;
{iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

{iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent
of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(v)  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (*SEBI Act"):-

a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

¢) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars 1o an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993;

d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018: Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period;

e) Securities and Exchange Board of India{Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014: Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period;

f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008:
Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period;
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g) Securities and Exchange Board of Indin (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible and Redeemable
Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013: Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period;

h) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009: Mot
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period;

i) Securities and Exchange Board of India(Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018: Not applicable
io the Company during the Audit Period;

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clausesregulations of the following:

(i) The Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
(il) The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 201 3as amended,

During the period under review the Company has filed few Forms with additional fees.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the observations as mentioned in

Annevure A",

We further report that,

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors,

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda
were sent al least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded, if any, &
part of the minutes,

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size
and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

For NK & Assoclates

Company Secretaries

Navin Kothar

Proprietor

FCS No. 5935, C P No.: 3725

Pince: Kolkata UDIN : FOO5%35B0006 10055
Dated: 24" day of August, 2020

Mote: This report is o be read with our letter of even date which s annexed as *Annexure A" and
‘Annexure B' form an integral part of this repon.
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‘Annexure A

Our observations on Secretarial Audit for the financial year ended 31 March, 2020 are as follows;

a)
b)

c)

d)

&)

B

h)

i

k)

There was delay in filing the statement for the December quarter under Regulation 13(3) of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requiremenis) Regulations, 2015.

There was delay in submission of the compliance report on corparate governance for all the quarters under
Regulation 27(2)(a) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 20135,

There was delay in submission of the statement showing holding of securities and shareholding pattern for
the December quarter under Regulation 3I(1)(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

There was delay in submission of the quarterly and year-to-date standalone financial results for the June
and December quarter under Regulation 33(3)a) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

There was delay in intimation of the proceedings of the annual general meeting under Regulation 30 of
SEB| (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2013,

There was delay in intimation of the outcome of meetings of the board of directors held to consider the
financial results for all the quarters under Regulation 30 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Reguolations, 2015.

The compliance under Regulation 23(9) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 was not done,

There was delay in submission of the copy of annual report along with the notice of the annual peneral
meeting to the stock exchange under Regulation 34(1) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 20135,

There was delay in submission of the voting results of the annual general meeting under Regulation 44(3)
of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The closure of rading window was not complied as per Clause 4 of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015,

The compliance under Regulation 74(3) of SEBI (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018 was
not done for all the quarters,
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To,

‘Annexure B’

The Members

Reliznce Jute Mills (Intemational) Limited
Ideal Plaza, South Block, 4th Floor,

11/1, Sarat Bose Road,

Kolkata — 700020

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

L.

Maintenance of secretarinl record is the responsibility of the managemem of the company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit,

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the process and practices, we
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.Further, due to the current pandemic situation we had
limited scope of audit.

In view of applicable financial laws like direct and indirect tax laws, financial records and books of
secounts being subjected to audit by the Internal Auditor and Statutory Auditor and relying on the reports
submitted by the above agencies from time to time, we have not separately verified the financial records
and books of nccounts of the company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation sbout the compliance of laws,
rules and regulations and happening of events etc,

The compliance of the provisions of corperate and other applicable laws, rules and regulations, standards is
the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test
basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as 1o the future viability of the company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For N.K & Associates

Company Secreraries
Navin Kothari

Proprietor

Place: Kolkata FCS No. 5935, C P No.: 3725
Dated: 24" day of August, 2020 L'DIN : FOO5935B000610055
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ANNEXURE 111

Form No, AQC =2

|Pursuant to clawse (h) sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rale 8{2) of the
Companies { Accounts) Rules, 2014]

This Form pertams 1o the disclosure of pariculers of contractsfamangements entered into by the Company with related parties
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including cortain wrm’s length tmnsactions under thind
provso theneto,

1. Detalls of contracts or arangements of transactions nol at arm's length basis: Nil

2 Details of meterial confracts or arrangement of transactions at arm's length basis for the Financial Year ended 31° March, 2000

are 0s Follows
Nome of Related Party  Natore of Duration of  Salieat terms Datefs) of Amount Transaciion
and Natore of coniraciy conlrael’ of the approval by puid in Amiunt
relutionship srrangements)’ arrungement’  Contracts or the Board. il advances {Rs.000)
trunsactions rransactlons  aremngements any on 3™
or transactions March,
2020, Iif any
Shri Pawan Kumar Lonn tsken O poing The relsted Simce these  No sdvance 23,700
Kanoria-KMP & M/s. Intcrest paid party transactions  waos paid for 902
Pawan Kumar Kanoria transactbons Were in any
(HLUF) cniered during  ordinary transaction
Smi. Smita Poddas- Renl pavinent On going the year were in  course aff nited 672
KMP Sequrity Deposit ordinery course buginess and  above. 3,000
of business and  were on
Smt. Ushn Kanoria- Loan taken On going on arm's length arm's lengih 17,000
Reluiive of KMP Interest paid buasls, basis
appraval of
Smt, Vinita Ahmed- Rent payment On going the Bourd S04
Relative of KMP Security Deposit WS ol 2,250
rogquired,
Smit. Sonn! Hada- Lo taken On going However, 30,000
Relative of KMP Inigrest pald members” 1301
approval for
Smi. Ashima Jain- Hent payment On going ahove 504
Relotive of KMP Security Deposit transactions 1,250
were
Shri Vihaan Hads- Loan taken On going oblained on 7300
Relntive of KMP Imterest paid 25 1nr
Remuneration Seplember, 120
2018 in
Excelient Dealers LLP-  Service apguirod On going Annual 144
KMP & Relatives of Rent Peyment Ceneral 48
KMP exercise Meeting for
controlisipmificant five years
mfluence over it and also
being
Vanila Tracom LLP- Rent pasd On going npproved / 240
KMP & Relatives of ratified by
KMP exercise Board in
controlsignificant subsequent
mfluence over it meetings
Vapl Investments Lid - Purchase of rw On going T6847
KMP & Relatives of juin
KMP exercise
control'significant
influcnce over it
Valio Merchants LLP- Rent payment On going 18
KMP & Relatives of
KMP exercise
controbsignificant
influence over it
For and o6 behulf of the Baard
P. k. KANORIA
Ideal Flazs, 1171, Sarnt Bose Road, Chalrmin
Kolkatu, the 29 day of August, 2020 (DIN:ON30529T)
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ANNEXURE = IV

Information under Sec. 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule B({3) of Companies ( Accounts)
Rutles, 2014 forming part of the Boards' Report for the financial year ended 31" March, 2020,

A CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

Awareness towards energy conservation is further enhanced by forming core group consisting of
Department Heads and monitoring arcas of further improvement with the help of outside experts.
Some of the measures taken are as follows:

i) All prime movers are regularly checked and monitored for containing power consumption.

i) Installations of Philips make LED tube lights of 18 watt in place of 28 watt, Asian make T tube
light fittings,

iii) To reduce consumption of lubricants for energy conservation drive, Measures taken by using
self lubricating bushes like oilite and nylon high quality bushes for minimizing lubricants
consumption in different machines. Using best quality oil to avoid wear and tear of costly parts
in Spreaders and Drawing machines.

iv) Power losses are being eliminated and minimized by taking necessary measures in changing
proper make of electrical switches and appliances,

v) To save power consumption and improve P.F. by adding new capacitors and replacing defective
capacitors regularly as and when required.

vi) Using Teflon coating on steam cylinder for saving power and also re-utilization of condensate
water for different purposes.

vii) To use individual drive motor in place of group drive motor to save power consumption,

viii) Installation of VFD (Variable Frequency controlled Drive) in few machines'EQOT Crane to
reduce power consumption,

Additional investment and proposal, if any, being implemented for reduction of consumption of

ENCTEY :

During the period under review, several suggestions of energy audit carried out by an outside agency
were implemented, some of which are as follows:

(i) Installation of Power Capacitor to improve line Power factor.
(i) Replacement of important parts / portion of machines to make them more power efficient,

Impact of measures at (a) and (b) above for reduction of energy consumption and consequent impact
on the cost of production of goods — The measures taken shall lead to saving in the consumption of
power in future,

Total energy consumption and energy consumption per unit of production — as Form *A'

FORM ~-A
1A POWER AND FUEL CONSUMPTION
Current Year Previous Year
On42019 01042018
To To
3L032020 3032019
I. ELECTRICITY
8. Purchased Units 1,10.25,032 1.42,38.896
Total Amount (Rs.) 10,09.27.989 11,89.14,406
Rate per Unit (Rs.) 8.39 8.35
b.  Own Generation through Diesel
Generator (Unit) 207 -
Unit per litee of Diesel Ol 1.96 -
Cost per Unit (Rs.) 24.31 -
2, COAL
(B Grade. used for peneration of sieam in boler)
Quantity (M.T.) .60 B398
Tatal Cost (Rs.) 18400 767,975
Average Rate (Rs.) per M.T, 10,923 8,145
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i) CORSUMPTION PER UNTT OF PRODUC TTON

Products: Juie Goods Unit

Production M. T, 24,820 20,249
Consumption:

Electrigity Linit 485 487
Coal K.G, 0.10 2.87

. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
€. FORM A

Research and Development (K & D)

Specific areas in which R & D carried out by the Company, benefits derived as a resultof R& D
and future plan of action:

There is no specific area where R & D has been carried out by the Company because there is not
much of research and development work in individual unit of Jute Industry. However, there are
continuous activitics to improve the process and mechanical condition of equipments adopting new
technologies and improved mechanical gadgets as well as testing system to cope with the rigid norm
of export yarn quality and value added products. Dust extraction equipments are being adopted at
Spreader stage for berter environment. New jute geo-textiles are being developed for newer uses /
development projects, We are involving outside expents in the area of process development and fibre
up-grading by using latest developed chemicals and enzymes. Further, Indian Jute Industries’
Research Association (LJIRA) of which the Company is u member, is carrying out research and
development work for Industry, The Company participates in many schemes of technology transfer
to the shop Mloor conducted by LJIRA and Institute of Jute Technology.

Technology absorption, adaptation and innovation

(i) Efforts in brief, made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation:
The Company is making continuous efforts in installing the modem machines by keeping track
of latest development.

(ii) Benefits derived as a result of the sbove efforts eg. product improvement, cost reduction,
substitutions, etc.:
Improvement of operational efficiency and in quality.

(iii) Details of imported technology:
No technology was imported during the year under review.

‘. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

f.  Activities relating to expons, initiatives taken to increase exports, development of new export
markets for product and services and export plan;

The Company continues to explore nvenues to increase exports. Every possible effort is being taken
for exploration of export business.

g. Total Foreign Exchange used and earned during the period
{Amount in Rs."000)

(i}  Total Foreign Exchange Used ; 8,701

{ii) Total Foreign Exchange Eamed : 12,472
For and on behalf of the Board
P. K. KANORIA
Ideal Plaza, 11/1, Sarat Bose Road, Chalrman
Kolkata, the 29" August, 2020 {DIN:00305297)
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ANNEXTURE - V

Informution us required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies
{Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

Requirements of Rules 5(1) = Details |
= e e ==} |
(i) The ratio of the remuneration of each directorto | ¢ ShriP. K. Kanoria | 5409 | S409% |
the median remuneration of the emplovees of the Shri S. Had 7071 | ST |

company for the financial year Shri V. K. Chaukhani® 17.25:1 1725%

. | ShriS. K. Chatterfjee®® | NA NA

Lii) The percentage incrense in remuneration of each | @ | Directors: !
Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chiel | | gpeip K ; :

B ontatin o 4 S | | Shri P. K. Kanoria | Nil

Manager, if any, in the financial year _Shri . Hada |__Ni |
Sm.S.Poddse | NA_|
Shri V. K. Chaukhani® .
_Dr.P.K.Mockegjee | NA
| Shri P. K. Jain | NA
| Shri P. Bhantia | NA
| Shri Rohit Banka | NA.
| Shri S K. Chatterjeg** NA. |
| Key Managerial Personnel: ’
| i |
| | ShriS. K. Agarwal | Wil |
(iiij) | The percentage increase in the median | : Nil |
| remuneration of employees in the financial year '
e e e |\l 1 -
{iv) = The number of permanent employees on the rolls = ¢ | 4.200
of Company | ,
|
- 2 e T A |
(v)  Average percentile increase already made in the | : | Average salary increase of mon-managerial
salaries of employees other than the managerial | employees is Nil
personnel in the last financial year and its |
comparison with the percentile increase in the | Average salary ncresse of managerial i
| managerizl remuneration and justification | employees is Nil '
| thereof and point out if there are any exceptional
circumstances for increase in the manmsgerial There are no exceptional circumstances in
Femmuneration increase in managerial remuneration. [

(vi)  Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the | : | Remuneration paid during the year ended Z.i.l'|

remuneration policy of the company March, 2020 is as per the Remuneration
| Policy of the Company.

*Resigned w.e.L. 12* June, 2020.
** Appointed w.e.f, 12™ June, 2020.

MNote:

&) The Independent Directors of the Company are entitled 1o sitting fees and commission on Net Profits as per
statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per terms approved by the Members of the Company.
The details of remuneration of the Independent Directors of the Company have been provided in the Corporate
Governance Report. The ratio of remungration and percentage increase for the Independont Directors'
Remunerntion is, therefore, not considered for the purpose above,

b) Percentage increase in remuneration indicates annual total compensation increase, as recommended by the
Momination and Remuneration Committee and duly approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

P. K. KANORIA

Place: Ideal Plaza, 1171, Sarat Bose Road. Chairman
Kolkata, the 29™ August, 2020 (DIN:0030529T)
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INDEPENDENT AULDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Rellance Jute Mills (International) Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Reliance Jute Mills {(International) Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as a1 March 31 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statemeni of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the nforesaid
financial statemenis give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act read with Companies {Indian Accounting Standard Rules), 2015, As amended, (Ind AS)
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2020, its loss (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for
the vear ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the *Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
{ICAl) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules there under, and we have Rulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Materinl Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw your attention to note 41 of the financial statement regarding the preparation of the statement on
going concern basis, for the rensons stated therein, The Company has accumulated losses and have incurred
cash losses during the current year ended March 31, 2020. As on date, the Company's net worth has been
completely eroded and its current liabilities are substantially higher than its current assets. These conditions
indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as & going concern. The appropriateness of assumption of going concemn is critically dependent on the
management’s capability of tuning around the business and its ability to raise requisite finances. Our opinion
is not modified in respect of this matter.

Emphasis of Matter

Attention is drawn to Note no. 12.1 of the financial results regarding recognition of the insurance claim and
interest thereon based on the favorable arbitration award by the Company, although the timeline permitted to
go for an appeal by the Insurance Company has not expired till the signing of this report. Our opinion is not
madified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

K.ey audil maiters| are those matiers that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020, These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thercon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these maters,

Key audit matters that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concemn in
accordance with Standards of Auditing (SA) 570 (Revised) — Going Concemn are described in the “Material
Uncertainty related to Going Concern™ section of this report. Apart from these key audit matters, we have
determined the matter described below to be the key audit matter to be communicated in our report

ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20 -



m | RELIANCE JUTE MILLS (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

Key Audlt Matters

Inventory Valuation & Existence
{Refer to note 7 to the financial statements)

As described in the accounting policies in note 3.1 o
the standalone financial statements, inventories are
carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Inventories valuation and existence is a significant
audit risk. This could result in an overstatement of the
value of the inventories if the cost is higher than the
net realizable value. Furthermore, the assessment and
application of inventories provisions are subject 10
significant management judgement.

Assessment of livigations In respeet of Sales Tax
and Value Added Tax matter
[Refer to note 34.1(a) to the financial statements)

The company has litigations in respect of Sales Tax
and Value Added Tax matier which has been
disclosed under Contingent liabilities as at 31 March,
2020.

Significant management judgment is required 1o
assess these matters and to determine the probability
of material outflow of economic resources and
whether a provision should be recognized or
disclosure to be made.

How our sudit addressed the key audit matter

We have carried out following procedures with
respect 1o the existence of mw jute and finished
goods as at the year-end:

We completed 2 walkthrough of the inventory
valustion process and nssessed the design and
implementation of the key controls addressing the
risk durlng the Interim period. Management had
carried out the physical verification of inventory on
March 31, 2020. On account of COVID — 19 related
nationwide lockdown, we were unable to carry out
inventory verification at the year end. Consequently,
we have performed the following alternite
procedures to audit the existence of inventory:

i} To verify the closing stock as on March 31,
2020, we have checked the Sales and Raw Jute
Consumption for the quarter ended June, 2020 1o
confirm the closing stock.

ii) We also tested sample of inveniories items to
ensure they were held at the lower of cost and
net realizable value,

iii) We also evaluated manasgement judgement with
regards to the application of provisions to the
non-moving and slow moving inventories,

Our Observation - Based on the audit procedures
performed, we did not identify any significant
deviation to the process of Inventory valuation.

i) We obtained & detailed understanding, assessed
and tested the deslgn and operating effectiveness
of controls surrounding assessment of
litigations.

ii) We discussed with the management the recent
developments and status of these matters. We
have also gone through recent judicial
pronouncements, wherever relevant, to establish
appropriateness of disclosures.

ili) We performed our assessment on the underlying
calculations supporting the disclosure made in
the financial statements.

iv) We assessed the adequacy of the Company's
disclosures.

Our Observation- Based on the audit procedures
performed, we did not identify any significant
deviation to the asscssment made by the
management in respect of disclosures made under
Contingent liabilities in respect of Sales Tax and
Value Added Tax matier in the financial statements.
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Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s Annual Report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thergon. Cur opinion on the financial statements does nol cover
the other information and we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is 1o read the other information
identified above when it becomes avaflable and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materinlly misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information we are required to report that fact. The other information is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Boeard of Directors is responsible for the matters siated in section 134(3) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the
Company in sccordance with the asccounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the relevant Rules, as
amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
sccounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability 1o
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 1o going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic altemutive but 1o do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Respansibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the apgregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 5As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+  |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide o basis for our opinfon. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+  Obtain an understanding of intemnal control relevant to the audit in order 10 design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls
system In place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management,
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«  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material unceriminty exists related to evenis or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. [f we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 1o draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, If such disclosures are inadequate, to madify our
opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concemn,

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation,

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (il) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial stnlements,

We communicate with those charged with govemnance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters (hat
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communijcated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statemenis of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters, We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that & matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected 1o
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

Report on Other Legnl and Regulatory Requirements

. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Ordar"), issued by the Central
Government of Indin in terms of sub-section (11} of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1™
a statement on the mariers specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143{3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books;

{c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended;

{e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(N With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these financial swtements and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2" 1o this report;
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(g} In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 1o the explanations given to us, the
managerial remuneration paid / provided by the Company to iis directors during the year is in
accordance with the provislons of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act; and

{h) With respect 1o the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 1|
of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given 10 us:

i. Pending litigations (other than those already recognized in the accounts) having material
impact on the financial position of the Company have been disclosed in the financial statements
as required in terms of accounting standards and provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 -
Refer Mote 34.1 1o the Ind AS financial statements;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-lerm contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any materinl foreseeable losses;

lit.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred 1o the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company,

FordKVS5S& CO

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No, 318086F

{Suprio Ghatak)

Partner

Place: Kolkata Membership No, 051889
Date: 31" July, 2020 UDIN:Z00S1889AAAAFLLITRL
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ANNEXURE - 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

{Referred to in paragraph | under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our
report to the members of Reliance Jute Mills (International) Limited of even date)

We report that:
i In respect of its fixed assets:
a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situstion of fixed assets.

b) As explained to us, fixed assets have been physically verified during the year by the management at
reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such physical verification. In
our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its nssets,

¢) According to the information and explanaticns given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

ik As explained to us, Inventories were physically verified during the year by the management at
reasonable intervals. The discrepancies noted on such verification were not material and have been
appropriately dealt with in the books of sccounts,

iil.  The Company has not granted any loan to parties covered in the register maintained under section 189
of the Companies Act, 2013, Accordingly, pamgraph 3(iii} of the Order is not applicable.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
given any loan, not made any invesiment and have not provided any guarantee in respect of which
Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable, Accordingly, the paragraph 3(iv) of
the Order is not applicable.

V. According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not sccepted any deposits
from public during the year.

vi.  We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by Company in respect of product, where
pursuant to the rule made by the Central Government of India the maintenance of cost records has been
prescribed under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act 2013 and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the
prescribed records have been maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the
records with a view 1o determine whether they are accurate or complete.

vii,  (a)According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including
provident fund, employee's state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, goods and service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues with the appropriate
authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of provident fund, employees' state inserance, income tax, sales tax, service mx, goods and
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues
were in arrears as at 31" March 2020 for a period of more than six months from the date they became
pavable.

{b) According to the information and explanation given to us, the dues of sales tax, income tax, duty of

customs, duty of excise, service tax and value added tax which have not been deposited on account of
any dispute and the forum where the dispute is pending as on 31® March, 2020 are as under:-

[ Name ofthe | Navorc of thd — Amount | Vearmwhich | Forum where dispute Is pending !
| Statute | Dues i iRs.) amoont relates ; |
[ WBSTACL 1% | ‘SplesTax | 2443452 200403 ? Appeliate and Revisional Board (WB Commercial Taxes)
| CSTAct 195 | SalesTax | 7272668  2004-05 | Appeliate and Revisional Board (WH Commercial Taxes)
CSTAt, 19% |  SelesTax | 4143033 200506 | Appeilae and Revisional Board (WB Commercial Taxcs)
CSTACL 1956 | Seles Tax | 19090200 2006-07 The Hon'ble High Court st Kolkata
| CST Act, 1936 Sales Tav | 2408937 200708 | Appellate and Revisional Board (WB § Commercial T Tanes)
CST Act, 1936 Sales Tax 11,9297 W008-09 | J\Hﬂllﬂtﬂlﬂdﬂﬁﬂw Board (WB Commercial Tuxes)
CSTAct, 1956 | Sales Tax | 1.02,64,416  2010-11 I@p"ﬂcmdﬁwhml Board (WB Commercial Taxes) |
VAT Act. 3003 VAT I 3101678 3010-11 | Appelinie and Revisional Board (WB Commercial Taxes)
CSTAcL 1956° | Sales Tax | 13,17,321]  2011-12 | Appellnte and Revisional Board (WB Commercial Taxes)
| CST Act, 1956° 1™ Sales Tax 15,58,5120  2012-13 | Appellatc and Revisional Board (WB Commercial Taxes)
[CST Act, 1956* | Sales Tax 493011 23013-14 | Appelluie and Revisional Board (WB Commercial Taxes)
CST AcL 1936° | Sakes Tax __5_;.{56.19'95 2016-17 | Semior Joint Commissioner Carporate Divigion N
CSTAct 1956% | SalesTax | 1045068  2017-18 | Senior Joint Commissioner Corpornte Division

*Nel of Amount Deposited under nH:ﬂi
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Vil

1 8

xii.

xiid.

xiv,

Kv.

xvi.

Based on our sudil procedures ond aceording w0 the information and explanations given to us, we are of the
opimion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues 1o banks or financial institutions, There were no
debentures outstanding at any time during the year.

The company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer including debit
instrumenis during the year. However, the Company has riised Term Loan for purchase of motor vehicles during
the vear and has applied the same for the purpose for which term loans are raised.

Acconding to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the Company
by lts officers or emplovees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audil

According to the information and explonations given to us ond based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has paid‘provided for managerinl remuneration in sccordance with the requisite
npprovals mandnted by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V 1o the Act,

In our cpinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not & Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, parsgraph 3{xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According 1o the information and explanations given (o us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, transactions with the related partics are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where
applicable and detalls of such transsctions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable secounting standards.

According 1o the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
converiible debentures during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.
Accordingly, paragraph 3{xv) of the Order is not applicable,

The Company is not required (o be registered under section 435-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

ForJKYS& CO
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No. 318086 E

{Suprio Ghatak)
Partner

Place: Kolkata Membership No. 051889
Date: 317 July, 2020 UDIN:200SIB89AAAAELI T8I
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ANMEXURE - 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

{Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under *Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our repon
to members of Reliance Jute Mills (International) Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the financial statement under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2003 (“the Aet™)

We have nudited the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statement of Reliance Jute Miils
{International) Limited (“the Company"”) as of Merch 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the linancial
statemnents of the Company for the year ended on that dage.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company’s menagement is responsible for establishing and maintmining intemal financial controls based on the
internal financial controls with reference (o the financial stalement criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stted in the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note™) issued by the Instituie of Chartered Accountants of India {*ICAI"). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemmal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's
policies, the safeguarding of its sssets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the nccuracy und
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of relinble financial information, as required
under the Companies Act. 2013,

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls with reference to the
financial statement based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, issucd by 1CAI and deemed 1o be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, 1o the extént applicable to an nudit of intemal financial controls. Those Standurds and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
shout whether adequate intemal financial contrals with reference to the financial stalement was established and
mainisined and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our sudit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the intemnal financial
controls with reference 1o the financinl statement and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of intemnal financial
controls with reference to the financial statement included obtaining an understanding of intemnal financial controls
with reference to the financial statement. assessing the risk thel @ materinl weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
sclected depend on the suditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due 1o fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our nudit
opinion on the Company's intemal financlal controls with reference to the financial statement.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

A company's internal Mnancial controls with reference (o the financial statement is a process designed 1o provide
reasonable assurance regarding the relinbility of financial reporting and the preparation of financial stalements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial
controls with reference to the financial statement includes those policies and procedures that: (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the ransactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance thot transsctions are recorded ns necessary o permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in sccordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition. use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
slalements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Because of the inherent limitations of imemal financizl controls with reference to the financial statement, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to emror or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to the financlal statement to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with
reference to the financipl statement may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorte,
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OFINION

In our opmion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adeguate internal financial controls with reference
the Minancial statemnent and such [mernal Mnancial controls with reference 1o the Nnaneial statement were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the miernal financial controls with reference to the financial statement
criteria established by the Company considering the cssential components of internal control smted in the Guidance
MNiote.

Ford KV 5& CD
Chartered Acepuntants
Firm's Registration No. 318086E

(Suprio Ghatuk)

Partner

Pluce: Kolkatn Membership No, 051559
Date: 31" July, 2020 UDIN:20051889AAAAELI TR
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CIN: LITIZSWB1996PLCUB1382
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020

Amouni (b Rs" 600)

Particulars Nate No, As ot As ol
Muarch 31, 2020  March 31, 201%
[]]
1) NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plamt and equipment d 702,695 715,061
Other Intnngible Asset 5 658 1,033
Calver mon-Curment assets ] 3,826 8,006
712,179 724,100
1) CURRENT ASSETS
Inventones T 20452 1,87 864
Financal assets
Trade meceivahies & ¥.579 15693
Caaly and cush eguivalents 'l 21,808 5,543
Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash egurvalent 8] 5274 7,503
Loans 1] = :
Cnber curvent financeal pssets 12 104,086 43,552
Current Tax Assets (Net) 13 4974 5,835
Onher current assets 14 12,642 102,555
533818 300,265
TOTAL ASSETS :II&D'H Iw
) EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1) EOUITY
Equity Share Capital 13 25,495 25,893
Orthar Egquity L] 127, 570) 42,718
TOTAL EQUITY (1,675) 68,673
1) LIABILITIES
1] DO
Fmancial liabilitie
Bomowings 17 T2,8Th 36,739
Provisisns ] 281,015 274918
Other Non-current habilites 19 60T 12953
1.63,798 344,610
i}
Fimancisl lnbedities
Borrowings 20 262,594 17327
Trade payables 21
4) Total outstanding ducs of mcro enterpise and smiall enlerprise - -
b} Towl ousmnding dues other than micro enterprise anc small enterprise 4.99,169 inang
Onher cwrrent fimancial liabilities n 50,708 39,350
Camroct linbiliises E ] 289
Other curmeni Labiliies M 25304 16,948
Provisions 23 B4, 100 57.292
BASATI [ATH N
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1247069 9.55,652
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1 i 1
Semmary of Significant Accountmg Palicies ]
The necompanying notes are an integrul part of the Flaancial Ststements
As per our Repon annexed Om behalf of the Board of Direciors
ForlKVS& Ca
Chanered Accoummanis Pawnn Kumar Kanoria
FRN Mo - 11 8086E Chairman
{DIN . 003035297)
SUPRIC GHATAR Sanjay Hada Raohit Banks
Parimer Managing Director & CECQ Director
Membership No. 051859 {DIN - DO305478) (DN - 07521288)
P.K Jain S K Agarwal
Diroctor CFO & Company
Kolkata, the 315t Day of July, 2020 (IN - DO3TIAFE) Secretary
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CIN : LITIZSWBI1996PLCIR 1382

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2020
Amouni (in Rs' 000)
Particulurs Motes  For the year ended  For (he yesr ended
J1st March, 2020 31at March, 2019

I} Ineome
Revenue from Operations 25 1850, 769 21,8).993
Cxher Ingame 17 1,160 T1636
Total Income (1) 18,91,929 1154629
Il) Expenses
Cost of Materials Consumed 28 11,773,363 1230801
Changes in Inventories of Fimished Goods and Work In Progress 25 {77.563) EB313
Emplovees benelits expense R [i] 622983 110477
Finance Costs Ef| 31,101 61,123
Depreciation and  Amorization expense 2 13,662 132
Oeher expenses 1 16].713 128 RES
Totnl Expenses {11) 10,285,013 24,34 876
M} Profie (Loss) befere Exceptional Tiem & Taxation ( 1-11 ) (1.33,084) (1.80,247)
IV} Esceptional ltems
Exceptional Gain In Insurance {Refer note 12,1) 68,420 -
68,420 s
V) Profit/ (Loss) before Tuvation (II1+1V) {64,664} {1.80,247)
Vi) Tax Expenses
Currem Tax - -
Deferred Tax (Refer nowe 43) - .
Ineorne Tax for eartier vears 18 183
Totsl Tan Expenses 1] 353
Vi) Prafiv (Loss) for the year (VY1) (@4,682) { 1,80,630)
VIl Diber Comprehensive Income (OCT)
Oxher comprehensive income not to be reclassified to stement of
profit of loss in dubsequent periods
Re-Measurement gains{losses) on defined benefit plans {5.668) (7.526)
Income my effect on above - -
Other Comprehensive Income for the yvear, net of tax E“‘l (7,526)
X} Total Comprehensive Income for the yesr (VIE-VII) L70,34%) {1.88,156)
Earnings per share - Basac and Dreluted [in INR) 36 {24.98) 169, 76)
Summary af Sigrificant Accounting Policses 3
The accompamying notes anc an infegral pan of the Financial Statements
As per our Report snnexed (in behalf of the Board of Direcioes
ForJKV S & Co,
Chartered Accountants Pavsan Kamipr Knnors
FRM No. - J18IS6E Chairman
(DN - 00305297}
SUPRIO GHATAK
Partner Sanpiy Hoda Rishit Banks
Membership Mo, 051485 Mansgmg Drrector & CED Drector
(DI - 00305475) {DIN ; 07T521286)
P K Jan 5 K Agarwal
Dhrector CFO & Company
Kolkwia, the 3isi day of July, 2020 (DI - D03T2I38) Secrelury
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CIN : LITIZSWBI1996PLC081 382
Statement of Changes In Equity for the year ended 315t March, 2020

Al Equity Share Capital Amount (in Rs' 000)
Balance #s a1 March 31, 2018 25,855
Addi{Less}. Cha in Share C g the .
Balance as 01 March 31, 2019 25 895
Add/(Less): Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year -
|Balance as st March 31, 2020 15,895
B1Other Equity
Particalars Reserves and Surplus Ttem of other Total
Comprehensive
Income
Capital | Geseral | Retaloed Re-
Hedemption| Reserve | Esrnings | Measurement of
Reserve defined benefil
plans
Balance #s at March 31, 2018 35001 az19| 2248 230,934
Proft/ (boss) for the vear - - (1.80,630) {1.80,630)
Tranafer of OCT « Remezisrement o Reétained Eamnings . - (7.428) 7524 -
|Remensurement Gain/ {Loss) {Net of Defemed Tax) - - (7,526 {7,526}
Balance a5 uf March 31, 2019 3,500 e 36,059 - 41,778
| Profit/ (igas) for ihe vear . . (64, 682) - (0e1,502)
Transfer of OC] - Remeasuremsent to Retained Esmings . - (5.666) 5 66l
Remeasurament Gzind {Loss ) (Net of Deferred Tax) - - - {5.655) 15,665
Balance us ot March 31, 2020 3,500 3119 (34,289 - 7,
Significant accounting policies 3
The sccompanying nodes are an intcgral pan of the Financipl Simements
As per our Repon annexed Om behalf of the Board of Directors
ForJKY S5 & Ca, Pawan Kumar Kanoria
Chartensd Accountants Chairman
FRM No. - 315086E {DIN : 00305297)
SUPRIO GHATAK Sanyay Hada Rahit Banks
Partner Managing Direcior & CEQ Director
Membership Mo, 0514889 (DN - 00305476) (DIN : 07521284
P K lnin S K Agarwal
Diwector CFO &
Kolknts, the 3151 day of Jaly, 2020 (DIM - 00372338) . Company
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Az

CIN : LITIZSWEBI99%6PLCOS 1 352

Cush Flow Statement for the vear ended 3 1t March, 2020

Amaunt (in K" (05}

Partlculars j‘hlflr-dd J‘\;’nr -ului‘
Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Met Profitf (Loss) Before Taxes s per Stalement of Prodit and Lives (1.33,084) (1.80.247)
Adjustments For ;
Depreciation / Amortaation {Net) 3,663 52T
{ Profll Floss on Saleidiscard of Propenty, plant & Equipment - (62,149}
Frnanee Cost 3,100 &1,11
Sundry Balances written ofT & 6l
Defarred grant incoms i4,374) (5,405
B Dhebst wirirten ol - 418
Interest Income (657) {2,46T)
{ Prodli Loas on Sale of Noa-Curreni Investmenis - {33
Lishilities no longer requined written back in {2,63%)
Operatiog Profit Before Working Capltal Changes (93.,38T) (1,75, 164}
Mevements in Warking Capltal ; -
Decrense / (Increase) m Inveniores (94,588} 24T 604
Decrease / (Increase) i Trade recelvables (&0, 886) 100,188
Decrease ! {Incrense) in Financial Axsets {BEG) 7047
Decrease [ (Increass) in Non Fimancizl Assets 6,057 1,762
Increases (Decrease) in Trade payable 135257 {1.93.942)
Imcrense / {Decrense) in Fmancial lnibilitics 18,520 (21.008)
Increase / {Decrease) i Non Financial laibedities 11,057 (17.013)
[nerensel {Decrease) in Provisions 7540 28,136
Caush generated from Operating Activiths {51,108 (21,490}
Direct Taxes pabd | met of refunds) 843 {1,280}
Net Cash genersted i used) from Operating A ctivities (50,265) (22,770
: Caah Flow Frem lavestimg Activities
Purchase of Frued Assets meluding CWIP and Capial Advinces i221) (17,027
Sale of Fixed Assels - 1,018,110
Proceeds from maturity of fived deposit hving maturity more than 3 months (net) {£72) 6,566
Sake of Invesiments - 42
Interest Received o9 1,688
Rezeipt of Capsal Subsidy - 4,986
Net Cash generated{used) In Iavesting Activities (701) 1,13,363
Cush Flow From Financing Activities
Proceeds from Long term bofrovaings {2.0568) 1,525
Repayment of Long term bortowings 17,250 (41,100
Proceeds / [ Repayiment jfrom shor torm borrowings (Met) 89,323 (31,483}
Interest paid (37,306) (35,743}
Net Cash generated/{used) from Financing Activities 87,211 (1.06,501)
Net Increase [ (Decrease) in Cush and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 16,245 {16,208)
Cash and Cash Equivalenis as al the beginning of the year 5,563 nmm
Cash and Cash Equivalonts as ot the end of the year 11,508 5562
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Nodes to the Cash Flow Statement
I} Components of cash snd caxh equivlents

Balance with Banks:

On Currem Accoants 21,413 5,108
Cash on hand 33 453
Cash and Cash Equivalents { Refer Note 9) 11,808 5563

2] The sbove Cash flow statement hos been prepared under Tndirect Method' as se1 out in [ND AS-7, “Statement of Ciish Mows®
3 Stwtement of Reconciliation of finsncing activitics

MNon Current
borrowings
Particulars (includi Currenl Borrowiags|
maiarithes)
Balance os at 188 April, 2009 {inchuding intorest accrusd therson) 2, 1.73,271
Cash Flow (MNeth 15,194 #9323
Mon Cash Changes |
Fair value change . .
Interest expense 6,875 22862
Imerest pasd { 13,0800 (22 863
|Balance a5 st 315t March, 2020 (including interest sccrued thereon) 81,235/ 2,62,594)
4)  Figures in brackens represents outflows! deductions
5} Previous years figures have been regrouped’ reclnssified wherever noceaanry
As per our Repon annesed O behalf of the Booard ol Directors
Ford K V5 & Ca,
Charigred Accountanis Pawan Kumar Kanoria
FRN No. - JIBOSSE Chairman
{DIN . 00305207)
SUPRIO GHATAK Sanpy Hadn Fohit Banks
Partrer Managing Director & CEQ Drirectin
Membership No. 051889 (DN ; 305476 (1N ; O7521288)
PK Jain S K. Agarwal
Director CFO & Company
Kolksts, the 31 5 day of July, 2030 (E¥N - DO3T2118) Secretary
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31" March 2020

I'l

CORPORATE AND GENERAL INFORMATION

Reliance Jute Mills (International) Limiled (the Company) having its registered office at 11/1A, Sarat Bose
Road, Ideal plaza, South Block (4™ Floor), Kolkata- 700020, The Company is a Public Limited
Company domiciled in India & is incorporated under provision of Companies Act applicable in India. Its
shares are listed on the Caleutta Stock Exchange Lid, The Company manufsciures jute products and jute
fabrics with flexibility 1o cater 1o both domestic and international market, The mill is located a1 Bhatpara,
24 parganas (North) in the state of West Bengal, India.

The Financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 31" July, 2020

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

2.1

2.2

2.3

Statement of Compliance

These financial statemenis have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
{“Ind AS") as prescribed by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act"), read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 {as amended), other relevant provisions of the Act and other accounting principles generally
acoepted in India, i

Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for following:

¥ Financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that is measured at Fair value/
Amortised cost;

# Non-current assets held for sale - measured at the lower of the carrying smounts and {air value
less cost 1o sell;

¥ Defined benefit plans - plan ossets measured s fair value;

Functional and Presentation Currency

The Financial Statements have been presented in Indian Rupees INR (*000), which is also the
Company's functional currency, All financinl information presented in INR (*000) as per the
requirements of Schedule 111, unless otherwise stated,

Use of Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of financial stalements require judgements, estimaies and assumptions to be made
that affect the reported amount of assets and labilities including contingent liabilitics on the date of
the financial statements and the reported emount of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Difference between actual results and estimates are recognized in the perlod prospectively in
which the results are known/ materialized.

Current vs. non-current classification

The Company presents assets and labilities in the balance sheel based on ¢urrent! non-currenl
classificarion. An asset is classified as current when it is:

* Expected to be realized or intended 1o s0ld or consumed in normal operating cycle;

= Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

¥ [Expected 1o be realized within twelve months afier the reporting period; or

# Cash or cash equivaleni unless resiricted from being exchanged or used (o seitle a liability form
least twelve months after the reporting period.
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All the other assets are classified as non-current,
A liability s current when:

11 s expecied 1o be settled in normal operating cyele;

Itis held primarily for the purpost of trading;

I is due 1o be settled within twelve months afier the reporting period; or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the Hability for at least twelve monihs
after the reporting period.

VYV

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred Tax Assets and Linbilities are
classified 0s non-current assets and liabilities respectively,

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are
ns given below, These accounting policies have been applied consistently 1o all the periods presented in the
financial stutements,

31

al:

33

3.3.1.

3.3

Inventories

= Stores and Spare pans are valued at cost, which is computed on weighted average basis.

*  Raw Materials are valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower. Cost is computed on
individual lot basis and includes procurement charges, Materials and other items held for uses in
the production of Inventories are not written down below the cost of the finished products in
which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or sbove cost.

* Finished Goods and work in process are valued a1 lower of the cost or nel realisable value. Cost
is estimated cost which represents direct material and appropriste portion of direct labour and
manulfacturing overheads.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheel comprise cash st banks and on hand and short term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk
of change in value,

Income Tax

Income Tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
except 1o the extent that it relates to an item recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive
income.

Current Tax

Current tax liabilities (or assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount
expecied io be paid to (recovered from) the taxation authorities using the tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted, at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred Tax

# Deferred Tax assets and liabilities shall be measured at the tax rates that are expected 1 apply 1o
the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

¥ Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for
thxation purposes (1.e. tax buse).
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Deferred tax assets are recognized 1o the extent thut it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused
tax ecredits and unused tox losses can be utilized,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period. The
Company reduces the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the benefit of part or that entire
deferred tax assel 1o be wtilized, Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the Smtement of Profit and Loss is recognized
either in other comprehensive income or in equily. Deferred tax items are recognized in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OC1 or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax lisbilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by
the same tuxation authority and the Company intends to senle its current tax nssers and liabilites
on a net basis,

3.4 Property, Plant and Equipment
3.4.1. Recognition and Measurement;

=

¥

Property, plant and equipment, except Freehold Land, held for use in the production or/and
supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet ot
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses (if any).

Frechold lund has been stated at fair value considered as deemed cost on the date of transition,
The difference between carrying amount of such land and fair value less any impairment loss
along with amount lying under revaluation reservie as on the date of transition has been adjusted
in Retained Eamings under the head “Other equity™.

Cost of an item of property. plant and equipment acquired comprises its purchase price,
including imporn duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting any trade discounts
and rebates, borrowing cost, if capitalization criteria is met and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the assets to its working condition and location for its intended use and present value of
any estimuted cost of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is
located.

In case of self-construcied assets, cost includes the costs of all materials used in construction,
direct labour, allocation of directly attributable overheads, directly anributable borrowing costs
incurred in bringing the item 1o working condition for its intended use, and estimated cost of
dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. The costs of
testing whether the asset is functioning properly, afier deducting the net proceeds from selling
items produced while bringing the asset 1o that location and condition are also ndded 1o the cost
of sell-constructed assets,

1T significant pans of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then
they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Profil or loss arising on the disposal of property. plant and equipment are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.4.2. Subsequent Expenditure

»

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount, enly when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the cost incurred will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for
s & separale asset is derccognized when replaced,
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3.4.4.

3.4.5.

15

¥ Major Inspection/ Repairs’ Overhauling expenses are recognized in the carrying amount of the
item of propenty, plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied,
Any unamortized pant of the previously recognized expenses of similar nature Is derecognized.

Depreciation and Amortization

» Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on straight line method at the rates determined based
on the useful lives of respective sssets as preseribed in the Schedule 11 of the Act except in
"Plant & Muchinery™ where the useful life is considered ns 20 years which is in excess than life
prescribed under Schedule - Il as estimated by Chartered Engineers on the basis of technical
eviluation.

» Each part ol items of property plant & Equipment with a cost that is significant in relation o the
total cost of the item is deprecinted separately. Certain components of property plant &
Equipment as identified by the company have been depreciated at their respective useful lives
ranging between 5 and 13 years,

#» Depreciation on additions (disposals) during the vear is provided on a pro-rata basis i.c., from
{up w0} the date on which asset is ready for use (disposed of},

¥ Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end
end adjusted it appropriote.

Disposal of Assets

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benellts are expected to arise from the continued use of the assel. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plani and equipment is determined as the
difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in
the statement of profit and loss.

Capital Work In Progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost which includes expenses incurred during construction
period, interest on amount borrowed for acquisition of qualifying assets and other expenses incurred
in connection with project implementation in so far as such expenses relate 1o the period prior to the
commencement of commercial production. Advances given towards acquisition or construction of
PPE outstanding st each reporting date are disclosed as Capital Advances under “Other Non-Current
Assets”

Leases:

Ind AS 116 supersedes Ind AS 17 Leases including its appendices. The standard seis out the
pringiples for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires
lessees 1o recognise most leases on the balance sheet,

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective method of adoption under
the transitional provisions of the Standards, with the date of initial application on 1st April. 2019.
The Company also elected to use the recognition exemptions for lease contracts that, at the
commencement date, have a lease term of twelve months or less and do not contain a perchase
option (short-term leuses), and lease coniracts for which the underlying asset is of low value (low-
value assets). There is no impact of adoption of Ind AS 116 on the financial statements of the
Company which has been described under Note 40,
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3.6

3.6.1.

Revenue Recognition

* Revenue Is recognized upon transfer of control of promized products or services to customers in
an amount that reflects the consideration which the Company expects 10 receive in exchange for
those products or services, Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the
consideration, adjusted for discounts, price concessions and incentives, if any, as specified in the
contract with the customer. The Company exercises judgment in determining whether the
performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time or over a period of time. The Company
considers indicators such as how customer consumes benefits as sérvices are rendered or who
controls the assct as it is being created or existence of enforceable right to payment for
performance to date and alternate use of such product or service, transfer of significant risks and
rewards to the customer, scceptance of delivery by the customer, etc.

¥ The Company recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is
probuble that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met
for each of the company's activities as described below, The mmq'm:f bases its estimates on
historical results, aking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the
specific of each arangement,

Sale of Goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized upon transfer of control |of ownership to customers
and the company retains neither continuing managerial involvement 1o the degree usually associated
with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold. Revenue from the sale of goods is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivables, net of retums and
allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates,

3.6.2. Interest Income

3.6.3.

3.6.4.

3.7
3.7

al?lzi

For financial instruments, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shomer period, where appropriate, 1o the grass carrying amount of the
financial asset. '

Dividend Income

Dividend Income from investments is recognized when the Company’s rllght to receive payment has
been established. '

Other Operating Revenue

Export incentive and subsidies are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that the Company
will comply with the conditions and the incentive will be received.

Employee Benefits

Short Term Benefits

Short 1erm employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as
the related services are provided. Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits
that are expected (o be settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employees' services up to the end
of the reporting period.

Other Long Term Emplovee Benefits

The linbilities for carned leaves that are not expected to be setiled wholly within twelve months are
measured as the present value of the expected future payments to be made in respect of services
provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method.
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The benefits are discounted using the government securities (G-Sec) at the end of the reporting
period that have terms approximating 1o the erms of related obligation. Remensuremnents as the
result of experience adjustment and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in statement of
prafit and loss.

3.7.3. Post Emplovment Benefits

3.8

3.9

The Company operates the following post employment schemes:
* Defined Benelit Plans

The lability or asset recognized in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan ussets. The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit pluns is
calculated separmely for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employess
have earmed in the current and prior peripds. The defined benefit obligation is calculated
annually by Actuaries using the projected unil credit method.

The linbility recognized for defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the reporting date less the fair value of plan assets, together with adjustments for
unrecognized actuarial gains or losses and past service costs. The net intérest cost is calculated
by applying the discount rate 10 the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair
viilue of plan assets. The benefits are discounted using the government securities (G-Sec) at the
end of the reporting period that have lerms approximating to the terms of related obligation.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit obligation, which comprise aciuarial gains and
losses, the return on plan assets (excluding intercst) and the effect of the asset ceiling, are
recognized in other comprehensive income. Remeasurements recognized i other
comprehensive income are reflected immediately in retained camings and will not be
reclussified to the statement of profit and loss,

Defined Contribution Plan

Defined Contributions to Provident Fund, Pension Scheme and Employees’ Stale Insurance
Scheme are delined contribution schemes and are charged (o the Statement of Profit and Loss of
the year. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards employees provident
fund to & trust administered by the Company as well s to provident fund plan operated by the
Regional Provident Fund Commissioner, The interest which is payable every year by the trust to
the beneficiaries is notified by the Govemment. The Company has an obligation to make good
the shortfall, if any, between the return from the investments of the trust and the notified interest
rate.

Govermment Grants

Government grants are recognized al their fair values when there is reasonable assurunce that the
grants will be received and the Company will comply with all the attached conditions. When the
grant relates 1o an expense item, it is recognized as income on o systematic basis over the periods
that the related costs, for which it is intended 1o compensate, are expensed. Grants related to
purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred income
and are credited 1o profit or loss on o straight line basis over the expected useful life of the related
asset and presented within other operating revenue.

Foreign Currency Transactions

¥ Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the spot rates of

exchanges al the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
curencies are transimted at the functional currency spot rate of exchanges ot the reporting date,
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3.10

in

S

‘P

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation of monetary assets and liabilities are generally recognized in profit or loss in the
year in which they arise except for exchange differences on forelgn currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future productive use, which are included in the cost of
those qualifying nssets when they are regarded ns an adjustment to interest costs on those
foreign currency borrowings, the balance is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss within
finance cosis.

MNon monetary items arc not retranslated & period end and are measured at historical cost
(translated using the exchange rate ot the transaction date).

Borrowing Cost

F

5

Borrowing Costs consists of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowings of funds. Borrowing costs also includes exchange difference to the extent regarded
s an adjustment to the barrowing costs.,

Borrowing costs direcily attributable (o the acquisition or construction of & qualifying asset are
capitalized a8 a part of the cost of thal assel that necessarily takes a substantial period of time 1o
complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. The Company considers a period of
twelve months or more as a substantial period of time,

Transaction costs in respect of long term borrowing are amortized over the tenure of respective
loans using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. All other borrowing costs are recognized in
the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they ire incurred.

Financial Instruments

A [inanclal instrument Is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one enlity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity,

3.11.1. Fingneial Assets

F

Recognition and Initial Measurement:

All financial assets are initially recognized when the company becomes a party 1o the
contractual provisions of the instruments. A financial asset 18 initlally measured at fair value
plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded m fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset,

Classification and Subsequent Measurement:
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four catepories:

Measured at Amortized Cost;

Measured a1 Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCH);

Measured ot Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL); and

Equity Instruments measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
(FVYTOCI),

Q0 oo

Financial asseis are not reclassified subsequent 1o their initial recognition, except if and in the
period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Measured st Amortized Cost: A Financial Asset is measured ot the amontized cost i both the
tollowing conditions are met:

* The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash Mows; and

& The contraciual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates 1o cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,
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After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective Interest rate (EIR) method,

o Measured at FVTOCT: A Financial Asset is measured m the FVTOCI if both the following
conditions are met;
*  The objective of the business model is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial nssets; and
*  The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPIL

Financial Assets meeting these crileria are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs.
They are subsequently measured at fair value with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognized in other comprehensive income, except for impairment gains or losses and foreign
exchange galns or losses. Interest calculated using the effective interest method is recognized in
the statement of profit and loss in investment income. Where the sssel is disposed of, the
cumulative gain or loss previously sccumuiated in other comprehensive income reserve is
transferred in Profit and loss ststement,

o Measured st FVTPL: FVTPL is 8 residual category for financial assets. Any financial assets,
which does not meet the criteria for calegorization as of amortized cost or as FVTOCL, is
classified as FVTPL. In addition, the company may elect to designate a financial asset. which
otherwise meets amortized cost or FYTOC criteria, as at FVTPL. Financial Asset included
within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
staternent ol profit and loss.

o Equity Instruments measured &t FVTOCH; All equity invesiments in scope of Ind AS - 109 are
measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are, held for trading are classified as at
FVTPL. For all other equily instrumenis, the company may make an {mevocable election to
present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the falr value, The company
makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable. In case the company decides 1o classi{y an equity instrument as at
FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in
the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI o P&L, even on sale of investment,

¥ Derecognition

The Company derecognizes a financial asset on trade date only when the contractual rights
to the cash fows from the mssel expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks und rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity,

# Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. Ind AS - 109 reguires expected credit losses (o be measured
through a loss allowance. The company recognizes lifetime expected losses for all contract
nusets and/ or all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction, For all other
financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12 month
expected credit losses or at an amount equal 1o the life time expected credit losses if the
credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

3.11.2.Financial Liabilities
# Recognition and Initial Measurement:

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as &t fair velue through profit or loss,
losns and borrowings, payables or as derivatives, as approprinte. All financial liabilities are
recognized initially st fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.
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Subseguent Measuremeni:

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability
is classified as FVTPL if it is classified ss held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated
as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities st FVTPL are menssured at fair value and net
gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial
liabilities are subsequently measured &l amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.
Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in prolil or loss, Any gain
or loss on derecognition is also recognized in profit or loss,

# Derecognition

A

2

financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the lability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

Offsetting financial instrumenis

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when
there is a legally enforcesble right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
setile on a net basis or realize the asset and sentle the liability simultancously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business und in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptey of the counterparty,

3113, Derivative fina 2

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments viz. foreign exchange forward contracts,
interest rate swaps and Cross currency swaps to manage ils exposure o interest rate and foreign
exchange rate risks. The Company does not hold derivative financial instruments for speculative
purposes.

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered
into and are subsequently remensured 1o thelr fair value at the end of each reponting perlod, The
resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss immediately.

3.12 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

# The Company assesses, ot each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may

be impaired. An asset is treated as impaired when the camying cost of the asset exceeds its
recoverable value being higher of value in use and net selling price. Value in use is computed at
net present value of cash flow expected over the balance useful lives of the assets. For the
purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are |argely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or group of assets (Cash Generating Units — CGU),

# An impairment loss is recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year

in which an asset Is identified as impaired. The impairment loss recognized in carlier accounting
pertod is reversed I there has been an improvement in recoverable amount,

3.13 Provisions, Contingent Linbilities and Contingent Asseis

3.13.1.Provisions

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a resuli of a
past event and it is probable thal an owflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the best
estimate of the expenditure required (o settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) ot a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the linbility. The unwinding of the discount is recognized ss finance cost.
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3.13.2.Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liability is a possible obligation arising from past events and the existence of which will
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more unceriain fulure events not
wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events but is
not recognized because it is not possible that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit
will be required Lo settle the obligations or rcliable estimate of the amount of the obligations cannot
be made. The Company discloses the existence of contingent liabllities in Other Notes to Financial
Swtements.

3.13.3.Contingent Assets

Contingent assets usunlly arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rlse 1o the
possibility of an inflow of economic benefits, Contingent Asscts are not recognized though are
disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

3.14 Intangible Assets

3.14.1.Recognition and Measurement

Intangible assets comprise of computer software, expecied to provide future enduring economic
benefits are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment, if any. Cost comprises
purchase price, non-refundable taxes, duties, and incidental expenses after deducting trade discounts
and rebates related to the acquisition and installation of the assets.

3.14.2. Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount, only when it is probable that fiture
cconomic benefits associated with the cost incurred will flow to the Company and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other expenditure is recognized in the Statement of Profll &
Loss.

3.14.3. Amortization
# Intangible assels are amortized over & period of three years under straight line method.

# The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed mt least at the end of each
financial year. If the expected useful life of the assets is significantly different from previous
estimates, the amortization period is changed accondingly.

3.14.4.Intangible Assets under Development

Imangible Assets under development is stated ot cost which includes expenses incurred in
connection with development of Intangible Assets in so far as such expenses relate to the period
prior to the getting the assets ready for use,

3.15 Non-current nssets (or disposal groups) held for sale and discontinued operations

# Non-current assets (or disposal groups) ere classified as held for sale if their carrying amount
will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and &
sale is considered highly probable. They are measured at the lower of the carrying amount and
the fair value less cost to sell,

# An impairment loss is recognized for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset (or
disposul group) to [air value less costs to sell, A gain is recognized for any subsequent increases
in fair value less costs 1o sell of an asset (or disposal group), but not in excess of any cumulative
impairment loss previously recognized. A gain or loss not previously recognized by the date of
the sale of the non-current asset (or disposal group) is recognized af the date of de-recognition.
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3116

3.17

3.18

¥ MNon-current assets (Including those that are part of a disposal group) are not depreciated or
nmortized while they are classified as held for sale. Non-current assets (or disposal group)
classified as held for sale are presented separately in the balance sheet. Any profit or loss arising
from the sale or remeasurements of discontinued operations is presented ns part of o single line
item in statement of profit and loss.

Earnings per Share:

Basic earmnings per share are caleulied by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity sharcholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
For the purpose of calculating diluled camings per share, the nel profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity sharcholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive polential equity shares,

Exceptional ltems

Exceptional items are disclosed separately in the financial statements where it is necessary to do so
to provide further understanding of the financial performance of the Company. These nre material
items of income or expense that have 1o be shown separately due 1o their nature or incidence.

Measurement of Falr Values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair
values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Falr value s the price that would be received to sell an asset or pald to transfer a linbility in on
orderly trensaction between market participants at the messurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the lability
takes place either:

¥ In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
¥ In the absence of & principal market. in the most advantageous market for the asset or lisbility.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the assel or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. A
fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic beneflits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it 1o another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriste In the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available 10 measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which foir value is measured or disclosed in the financinl statements are
cotegorised within the fair value hierarchy, described ns follows, based on the input that is
significant 1o the fair value measurement &s a whole:

* Level | — Quoted {unadjusied) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilitizs

# Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that ure observable for the
assel or linbility, either directly or indirectly; and

# Level 3 — Inpuis which are unobservable inputs for the asset or linbility.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets & liabilitics. Involvement of
external valuers is decided by the management of the company considering the requirements of Ind
As and selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained.
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4. Significant Judgemenis and Key sources of Estimation in applying Accounting Policies
Information about Significant judgements and Keyv sources of estimation made in applying sccounting
policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is
included in the following notes:

-

W

W

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets: The extent o which deferred tax assets can be recognized is
based on an assessment of the probability of the Company’s future taxable income against which the
deferred tax assets can be wtilized. In addition, significant judgement is required in assessing the impoct
of any legal or economic limits.

- i rible): Management reviews its
mlmm of lh: uuful hvn nf ticpqﬂlcnhlw' umuminblc assels al mh rtpul'ﬂng dme, based on the
expecied utility of the assets. Uncerininties in these estimates relate 1o actual normal wear and tear that
may change the wility of plant and equipment,

Classification of Leases: The Company enters into leasing arrangemenis for various asseis. The
classification of the leasing arrangement as a finance lease or operating lease is based on an sssessment
of several factors, including, but not limited 1o, transfer of ownership of leased asset ot end of lease
term, lessee’s option to purchase and estimated certainty of exercise of such option, proportion of leuse
term 1o the asset's economic ife, proportion of present value of minimum lease payments to fair value
of leased asset and extent of specialized nature of the leased asset,

Defined Benefit Obligation (DBOY: Employee benefit obligations are measured on the basis of
actuarial assumptions which include mortality and withdrawal rates as well as assumptions concerning
{uture developments in discount rates, medical cost trends, anticipation of future salary increnses and
the inflation rate. The Company considers that the assumptions used to measure its obligations are
appropriste. However, any changes in these assumptions may have & material Impact on the resuliing
calculations.

Provisions and Contingencies: The assessmenis underaken in recognising provisions and
contingencies have been made in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 37,
‘Provisions, Contingent Liabllities and Contingent Assets’, The evaluation of the likelihood of the
contingent events is applied best judgement by managemeni regarding the probability of exposure 1o
polential Joss.

Impairment of Financial Assets: The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at
amortized cost annually, or more frequently when there is indication of impairment IT recoverable
amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment lass is accounted for,

4 : The Company makes allowances for doubtful debts through
appropriate estimations of irecoverable amount. The identification of doubtful debts requires use of
judgment and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such dilTerence
will impact the carrying value of the trade and other receivables and doubtful debis expenses in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.

C gments: When the fair values of financial assets and
ﬂnmcml Iiubllilim mnurdnd in lh: buhm:: shu: cannol be measured based on quoted prices in active
markets, their fair volue is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow
model. The input 1o these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this not
feasible, a degree of judgement is required in estoblishing fair velues, Judgements include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.

5 Recent accounting Pronouncement:
Minisiry of Corporate Affairs (*MCA") notifies new standard or amendmenis o the existing standards.
There is no such notification which would have been applicable from st April, 2020,

ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20 -



R ‘ RELIANCE JUTE MILLS (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

E T
1

T

]

i3]

BT

SIll

" [ e
o] Tis ! - 3] [Ty [Ty B [N owrl Aoy
WMFIr ey | a7 irm ey BITIEIMEY | (reduipayes | Juakaml and | W1P010 1% 5y T Ip e sy | peedageges | meyiippy UM ey
), Bmiiingy oy [T anjey, Bunlie) swain) S ._
TO00 .71 W ey
(T e [ [ [T ST el
(] e [ : 31 HH] W T - WL SEngos Seduo |
SIUIE NNy | OTEO I NY | OUAWIf oY | (wiedmopesy | swakogi 304 | 6190109 oW | OCEOIE oY ORPY | Gl I0mEY
anpry Bulliny oy ] ampe,y, Baylio ) waury .....u_t-.._
om0 v W) ineEy -
104 o e i ey e g o) wona g 40 0| 1 (momepiagy puy B ) per] eedi J0 o Bodes pen nopduiscs s s ) Ty Ekly Aeseosy [
nsindmbey g fos,g ‘Ausdolg v somsbon oy iewEmmnne [WELENEIN00 W SISO NSAR W) P Ey - S0 S £
Auneckee 7 g A ABmaod o palpod mesusdelyy 3 )| *Aiodoig B0 sonTULHN ) (F B [ - 200 gy |y
CETN TWsIL AT {353 sl BRLET ] [T Toe sl ARl
7] ol [T - [T TiTE [T . [T o r
T LEL ail’r . [T FIL SEE P £ 6 15T
i Liv [T - [ uel [T - . [T
[TTE] 160 8 T5000 e BIT T T arcal AL BT I T
el SI8 80| TTHIKG - [[334] B0 A - Lih BT Y
Il (7 aq] Tier E T BCLE VoL Ll - 061 BERE1
TN PV NS : : : . VIFINE TR . oAl s 0
BRI ESY | sUEFIEeey | plwicesy | predngaps | oalsgiog | gIri0i=sy | GIT0IEWey | pedngees | seoaippy RIHO10 W 5y
T [FLY el S, By Laiw g Wity
T =01 ) junemy
o1 L ST TSI T Tyl PALT Wriws 0l e armai e
Ind (1T Ol t [173 Pre 0or v 71 [TTA EETTT)
T3 it Fig] Wi BITE G I BLF 5
Lsr T8t HA [ 901 [ [ i puy sare|
60 h ML T W $50°01 Aol il EIETE
LB DL &8 R el 0l T3k Y34 e weoscr | ¥ A
T el LIS ] (1143 [T [ TN
TLY IR PLYIES - - - - PV IR S : TLFING 3]
BIEIIE PNy | DEEOIE M oY | GLO0IE Moy | (esdagoyes | sealogdiod | GIT010 %Y | OCCOICm oy | redmims | waiiipy Ml
soge Boplainy 1oy impepasdag anpe,, TR ) sy ..__l-n:._-l_

(s 5y i) juiiimiy

TURmdiAbS pue jue[d "Aadaig v
OTOT "MAIERA 151§ POPUS JUAA 311 J0] SIUIMINEIS [EIDUELL] 0) SJ0N]

ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20 -




Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

R ‘ RELIANCE JUTE MILLS (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

Amoant In B’ 000
R March 31, 020 _March 3, 2019
Prepasl Rent . [i7]
Prepasd Expenses o HEE
Dot agavnsl demand under dispuie 1817 546
Crbvers a ALl
H ARG Liloe
T Imvesderie As af As ut
March 31, 2000 March 31, 2019
{As valued and certified by the Management)
Ranw Mdotenals | s Jutg) 46,569 0883
Finanbsed Goods | Juse Gioods )
Ar Sl T 21,9594
Wark«in-Projress 1,504 132,381
Ssored amd Spanes 13,639 12,606
EL L N
7.1 Refernole - 3.1 of ugnificant sccountmg policy for mode of valuston of inventones
7.3 Refer note - 20 (1) for information on Lvemienes pledged s securiey by the Csmpany
Anst A i
A Trwde receivabio 23 0 18ie
Tiraike Reoervaliles Comlersd Good. Socured . =
Tinde Rocevables Conakdered Good. Unsocaned 9,479 8593
Trasde Rocervables Credit Impasred 3348 334z
1025 42,041
Less: Allowance for tmpasment | Refer sote. 47 () ik {3,345} (3348
Bi Refer node - 20 | for informsion on oade recoivables pledged a3 secuniy by ibe Compaiiy
B2 There are no amoenti recevvable from dewcion and officers of ihe ©ompesy
* Caaadomh sentaion March 31,2020 Mareh 3123019
C'nsh on hand EL%] 455
Hplance with Hanks
« In Curremt Accounts 21,413 3,108
tlp FXTA]
10, Bisk Bal piber thas Cash and Cash sanival A ad As wl
March 31, 2008 March 31, 2019
Enrmarked Balanoes with Basks
Fsiesd Dieposies with Banks beld s Marges boney® 8.3 7.803
8,174 TR0
* Apmensl Hink Cusrmitee. Leties of Cradit & Tenmi Lo
Al At
it March 31,2000 March 31, 2019
Lonms to Body Corporate | scluding sconwed imeress) 15,000 15,000
Less: Provisson for Doulstilel sdvances (Reler mote: 47 () (M1 {18,000 [ 15.000)
Armt Anml
1L Ouher cyrvem: Angacinl suscts u 3 M
Umserured, Considerod Goaed
Interest on lousn fo Body Corporsies s B
Less Provisan for Doubefl advances (Refer nose 47 (a) {hi) (R3E) (RIR}
Govermment Subsidy Recervable 18,877 18934
Secumty Deposits | Rafer Mo 3.2} 7.500 16,018
Aperusd |nberest on Deposing 197 192
Advance o 1a58 i,m3
Other Receiveble { Refer Note; 12.2 & 12.5) G434 6625
35668 40,55
Imsurnnce Clasn Receivable (Refer Mote 12,1) 41,080 41,080
Leas; Provision for doubiful recervable (Refor mote 47 ja) inii (41,080} (41 080}
Add: Reversal of Provision for Bosheiial receivable (Refornote 121 & Nose 47 mb il 3B .

interess o | msrance roccieabie {Refor Moie 12.1)

25,486
S aiE
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March 2020
Amount in B’ 000

121 The company has recerves] an smount of B | 10.78] sgainsi am msurance claom of Ra 152905 in respect of fire 2 finished poods pedowns in Seplember, 2014 and made
prosasdon of Ba. 41,080 for the remasing smoust on posnds of prdetice Subsequently, o not biing sucossafl m the spplicston for appoutmess of & Arbareior before
Hom'ble Hgh Cown sl Kolknis, the Comparsy filed & reveew persnon wieh the Hon'ble High Court m Kolloms, which, vide i ondes deted éch Jaby, 2015, appointed s Arbsmior
o the matier an per Sectwon | 116 of the Arbizration & Congilintion A, 1996 The kesmed Arbitrstor pased s awand on Jad March, 2000 in favow of the company by which
wn emous of B 36709 jowards balsnce smoum of mmeance claim, Ri2, 1% 1owanl cosls of the procosding along with interes thereon and also serest on R 1], 781 for
the delay in secthement of claim a2 percont above the hsnk rte’ cultent fmle of mkeedl win illowsd The 1otal smowst recevable apio 315 March, 2020 in respe of the sbove
award wisald be R 68,420 which his boen sccounsed Thr @ the curment sccoones. The mansgmend i hopedul of recerveng the clasm snd sdpusimneni, if sy, reguired will be made
on schal receipt of the smount m this respes

122 The company his sceousted fov ander “Oither Inoome™, & chitim of K 5148 hased on an order dased 297 Awgust, 2018 issued by o Hoo'ble High Court s Kollein directing
governiner agencies 10 disburss (e sdditional cow incemed by the juse mills due o emendimes in Peymest of Bomus Acy, |96 pomaining &0 the period Jusary 10 Asgul,
& The compemy 2 hepefl of recesving further ciaim of Rs 4,557 (approa) in thin respect fior the period from April 1o Decernber. 2015 which shall be sccouwted for after
rocgspd of Brvoursbie order from Hon hie High Court ot Kolkits

127 Crhers receeable meludes imierei cliamed on withheld mnoum of jue goods suppled 10 govemment agencees accounied for under "Other Income™ during fw previou yest
basod on fevoursbls order from the Homble Hegh Cown m Kol

13, Curvent Tax Assers (Set) Aust ke
Advasce Tan (et of provisson Rs. 3.103) 4974 T 15
) iy
14 Oty CUroE st o e
Muargh 31, 3020 Mlarch 30, 2019
Unsecured, Convidered Good
Adlvasce spmmat igply of Goody & Services TAIn -
Halances with Govenmess Auiboniies 3326 LY
Prepasd Rom . 1 2466
Prepasd Expenics 1407 1,279
Oihers 1,591 1,738
IJ_..HI 10,955
1% _Equipy Share Caplial Aot March 31,3020 AsetMarch 31,3009
Sumber Amount S ber A aiant
Autharized:
Equity Shisres of Ra 100 aach M3, 10,000 30,100 30, 10,000 30,100
%% Redeomable Comulanve Prefenenos shiares of R (00 each 16,00,000 161,060, 000 1,000,000
130} 130,100
Tusued & Subscribeed Capital
Equary Shares of Ra 10/~ sach bLE L H 15893 1359490
4% Releomable Cumulstve Preference shaies of Bs 100/ esch £ 00,000 ﬁ 500,000 ﬁ
Peid up Capital
Equuty Shares of Ba 10/ gach 25 50 490 15,803 2589490 29808
%% Redesmable Camulsve Preference shares of W 100/ ench 5,00.000 30,000 5,00.000 50 04
T5.E9% TEN9S
Lesa Inseremend classified a3 Fnancal lakiiity (Refer mose 17,30 1$0.000) — [50.000)
—iS —S

151 Righis Prefereaces & Restrictions atisched 1o shares

1) The equary shares having pas walue of Ka. 10 per share. Each bolder of ordimary shares is entitled io one vole per share snd equal nght Tor dindend.  The divadend proposed by
ity Moardd o Dhrecaors is sabject b the spproval of sharcholders o thie emumg Annasd Ceneral Mesting. excepl m cxse of insenm dividend In the event of ligadabion, the agulty
sharehaldery sre elyprbie 10 reoerve the remmanmony assety of the Company afler paymess of sll prefesential smounis, in proporon to eir sarcholdmg

) The company has &% Redesmable Cumulstive Prefermce Shares of Ra 100/ oach. The Preference sharcholders shall be antitlod 1o sl nghis and privilepes s wre availsble
under the Companses Aol 2013

151 There has been mo change nxsvements  number of shares oulstding & the beginnmg and s (e end of ihe reporting period
153 Thwe Company does nol have amy holding company ultmste holdisg company
154 Detwh of sharchodders holding morne than 5% shares in the Comgpany

Anat Aswi
Equity Shares of Ra, 10 each folly paid March 31, 2020 March 31, NS
No.of Shares | % lloiding Na. of Shares % Hoiding

hir Pawen boumne banona 829112 no [ ¥ TH 3103

it Ushi Fanons T FENT] 3.54 L
E‘F Limined = = — si307 197k 512078 _"H".I'%'

Lo Hodimabls Cymfarh ePoufience Shanes LR B ravh Tlhy pan] =
[ Business Entesprise Limiied 134000 3 35500 7100
Lo 120,000 2400 50,000 1

Ajmy Investment Enserprisg | imsted - 110,060 100 . !'ﬂ'
Valhio Merchanis LLP { Valio inerchants privass [l sl | 1-02-2020) 12.00

Arnati Niwga Private limiad 33 000 11.00 ﬁ

WS Family Truat 30,000 400 0 280
Cishe Kanona Famsly Tres : : 3%.500 30
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Notes to Financial Statements for the yvear ended 31st March 2020

133

157

(E3 ]

Mo Equity Shares have been reserved for isses uider aplions and comrachy commitmenls for (he wde of dures'dainvestiness as o B Dalance Shool dane

The compasy hay neiler allosed amy sty shares B comuderation other than cash noe bas s @y bome shares o bas bought back sy hares during the period of five
years preceeding the date a1 winch Balenoe Sheoal 15 prepased
Mo scurmen. which are conventible mio Fguiry Preferenor shares have been swsued by the Compesry dunmg the yenr

Mo calls srw unpasd by sy director o allicery of the company dsring the year

Ik As ot Al Wl

(b Lo March 31, 2030 Murch 31, 2019
. lﬂfﬂ:.m 3 500 3 200
AR per

3,50 3500
General Reserve
Ax gor ast Finmncal Staement 3319 321%

19 ]
Hetmined Exrnings
A per lns Fanancal Stnsmen 36049 24213
Add Profie’ (Low) for the vear 64,582) (1806307}
Add Hememsuremsents of Deiined Benefii Coblipaisom (4,68 ﬂijﬂ-!
[+

L
162

163

e Description, Mature and Parpese of cach reserve quity ar

Cupital Redeim Reswrviez 10 reprevents reserva crasbed an a resill of redeinption of cniliilve prefenence share capial of the Compairy Thia reserve ciin be wbibined n
sccordance with the provwsons of Comparnies Al 1003

Genernl Reserve: This reserve v omated by s appropristion (rom one compomenet of equity (penerslly retssned earndiggs) 10 anodber, nol being an item of Ouher
Comprehensive lncome

Reiwimed Exrnimga: This reserve ropeesents the cumulative profins of the Compary snd eifeci of remessrements of delined benefls obligation. This reserve can be utilissd in
aceondance wilh the provisions of Compamies Aol 2013

As st March 31, 3026 As uf March 31, 2009
17. Berrpwing Mo s Currest B ' Currest
Maturities Matyrities
Secured
Wighsthe Loan from Hank AXT AT 0,77 (Jhrk}
Wehsthe Losn from others Bbh Bl& 1482 T4
1,000 136 3,258 Low4
Unsexured
Rizpee Loan from Body Corporsie 50,060 - 33,800 -
Rugpes Loun froen Metibers 8150 - 7,800 .
6% Cumuisnive Redeemable Preference shares: 13333 - 12,681 .
473 - S1.4810 =
Less Aumvose dischoried wnder the head “Oither Current Lasbudity™ (Note 22) - {23837 * (2064 )
1178 . %,109 <

171
1n2

173

—

Ruper Loans fram Body Corparaie & Members: The sbove loany ste repugable after March 51, 2071 and carries inserest mee G2 0= 1% pa,

Preference Shares The company has issecd 500000, 6% Redeemabie Cwmulotve Preference Shares of Rs 100 cach on Odth November, 2005 & | 28h February, 2016
redeemabie & par within 10 years {rom ihe date of slksiment. However, the compamy may o ity discretion of Board of Direceors & ey (e rodeem the shases @ par oul of the
distributable profies of the Compary. Payment off redemption would be made by choque within & penod of 30 deys Trom the date of recespt of the duly discharged share
certificate

Viechicke Losms: Vehicle Loans sre secured by by pothecanon of speofic velickes. The serms of repayment @ given belos

Haie of | Ouistanding as|  Equsied | Pending so. of | Starting Date | Ending Date
Same of Bank' Financial lastinsition Interest | sn 31wt March Mowthly Instaliments
Ludip tmatillmeai
TCHCT Bank (Loan - 1) L L] | st w 12 March, 2018 himrsh, 2071
1CHCT Bank (Loan - i) 64 1T 4 14 Jume 3018 hzy, 2021
Wes Bank Lid 900 a0 2 3% Avgst, 2008 Iy, 2023
[KMHHIMLH LB 1462 ki X Jamuary, 3019 | December, 2021
174 There i no deloui as on the balsnce sheet (abe 10 (s repayenent of Bomowings and mieres theroon
I8 Provisiom Ax sl Aawit
Muprch 31, 2020 Mlarch 1, 2019
Proveien fur Emplayes Bearfit
Gratuiry | Refer Mode No, 15) 168119 263513
Leave Encastanen 12196 L'-I'If"i?l'
pEIETE I,

asnuaL rerorT 201920 [N



.m | RELIANCE JUTE MILLS (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the vear ended 31st March 2020

Amount in Ha' 04
As ot As nt
_Mareh 31,3000 Aaroh 31, 2019
-n% 11953
[FEEA]
301830 IIE-1%
LL =L x 19,720
1,976
4374 3 400
4,306 334
3,607 12,953
As At As ot
Murch 31, 2000 March 31, 3009
Wiarkimng Capwad facilivies from Banks
Casly Credui 177308 138 35
Butyer's Crodel w Local Cornmiy 21,186 35
Unserured
Rupes Loan from Dewectors 15,400 -
Rupor Loan froim Members 44,500 =
161554 [(REEL

M1 Workng Cagutal borrowimgs and Buyer's Credit are secured by lypothecation of stock of rew materials, work-in-procesa, fimshed poods, sores and spare parts, book debis and
chaspe created om cortmm propesty, plant & equipean and plso socured by corporase puarantee of Ms Bhagwatl Appartmend Pvilid and personal gpusrantes of Mr Pesan
Kumar Kanora, Dwector and M. Lshe Kanona, ex-Director of the Company

102 Theie m o deliuli i oo the bolence et dads o il reprvemeni of Dorowsngs ind meresl iheroos

Aawl Ai il
41, Lrads payabley g %
For Geods and Services
Total cuisimidimg dues of micro enizrprisss and seall coierpreses | Refier Note Mo M) - -
Total oumseandsng dues of credaors ather tan mecro esterprosgs and wmnll eaterpnie I‘E 169 :l%ﬂ!
1. Other curreat financial i bllities Asal At
- March 31,3000 March 3], 2019
T laremt matarities of long4erm debi (Refer feote 17) 1343 2,064
Interes: pconsed b mod diee on bormowings 09 13,443
Interent payublo (other Huas bormwsiigal 12843 23842
Dieposit agsinsi T form 7 33
Duyndenad  Accrund on Cumalsiive Preferece Shares (Refer “oie 41) - '
Linkilitses for Capaal Expendinee . 401
Payabie 1o Employes 19,190 465
50,708 N5.550
11,1 Payable io Employess meludg Rz 1,212 {Asm 3 1w March, 2017 Ba 131 j 1o Relaed Parnes'M ey managerial persanmnsi T
2. Contrat labilitin o qom
Muarch 31, 2000 March 31, 2019
Advance from Customers l]ﬁ ﬁ'
. Oiher surrent labilties et s
March 31, 2000 March 31, 2019
“Santusory tues paysble 20,958 11634
Deferred Revenue (Refer Sowe 19 1) 4306 334
Cither Payabbes [}
) TaRE
28 Provisions fa e
—Murch 51, 3030 March 31, 3019
Lmpleyer Benelis
Crntuaty GLAd6 30,000
Leave Encashment 1287 im
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'R I RELIANCE JUTE MILLS (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

MNotes to Financial Statements for the year ended 319t March 2020

A i (n B 000
= a Ao nanc For the yenr paded For fw yrar ended
‘i of pruchace (Refer Sabe 48y
[T IRAT AT A%
Eori P LF] [
Heruss Deconing
LLAg L] e L ]
Chthar Dparabing Bivem
Serag Saben LEIA 4263
Sawing & Tupdag LT3 (L]
Datierrwd R v i Iex o i Rader Saie 190} ANt A A
Eagoe Incamive {MES Dun Drawies & Fao Maris Sohane) —_— s — | | 1
— P —— AR
|E‘NI' JLE1 )
Far the pear eaded For i yrad anded
gy Minrch 31, 3039 Marchs 31, 2019
lmssrwat bncaing
O Banks Depasits e L
30 Daheri 1 1%
On Faur vabsation of Secumn Deposs 132 1,785
a7 Ldbi
(Onispr Son Operenmy nrama
G on sadwidiagand of Froperty, Fim & Egpapees iNeo =88
Cimn Lok} on sale of Nos-sareni Wvesimemiin i)
o i ¢ (Lot om Foreign Cunesey Tnemsciion: Transissen sy
Provmion for Tioubfial Dielas ariies bk ¥ *
Lamirdary no langer mzumrmd = noven imch 1 LhAYT
S, Hiongs haid 335
461 i
1 1s LAl
C [ Maderials C i Far the vear saded For e year ended
Nureh 11, 2030 lmrefs 31, B0
Bas Migiorads (Bas Juini 11,7308 (a0 Y
11,7, L1801
Far ther penr woudeid For e your wseiled
Cgengers bs Byeste iy of Finishad (Gusds amd Wark Ia Propres " ™ . 34, 1S
\mssmnan i A, thi beceinmine of B vear
T urahed Coods R &2
Whork An-Process | ER M| [E
144278 EEERA 1Y
Ezemrnries ni (e yond o e one
Prsthed Geeds, T J1,004
Wark b Fengms (K ] 2
LIE A AT
liswrenne] | Dincrema i bnvesiceim of Frsbel Gaods & WTP (T [ STF]
Cmadares Semelin Eanenn Foar et punr podel For e year smiled
Maren 31, MM Ml 30, BIY
Satanes & Wages oL O
Comiributios i Pravaleni & Oihes Funds Lo e [ % TH
S1adT Wellatw Bxpesty 155 15
M TABATT
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m I RELIANCE JUTE MILLS (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the yenr ended 31st March 2020

A b s
Four the pewr emded Far the yvar snded
M Dmange Cats Marh 3, M50 Blmrwh 31, 3019
Imimwns 1 ey
On Term Loan . n
T £l T s P PR
0 Lsswcured Loan B g0 [FReT
i Buwwrs Credi LET0 140
InierEd an Proleenc Sane 1142 1,03
O O L i} lam
AT A4
bk Narramisg O avl
Appligabia W Gan (| Less on Fomngn Curmenoy Trmnescson /Tonslmes " i
Ot Pmnsarszinl Chiryies 1 25,3m1
Dvidend on Prefarence shares - a
NE—) : 1 S—
i I\l=ul
Fur the year reded For fee yesr ended
3. Penoteisiio AR5 1R YT $ L Mol 11, Jod8 Plirri 31, 3019
Degarocimman an Propeny Pl asl Equygsnen 1Ly [EATH]
Amarilvsmon Cypmary on Intmnpste A 15 1%
[EXTY] 3
MANUFACTURING
Sazem & Spabimn conmarmad AT T
Paianr & Pl | 3D LA
Rty Ti Wiaihemry Ll A2
Rt To Duildigs il 1388
bniranes —h] _ 4m
(b 18 b nad
SLLLING AND ADMINISTRATION
R [ ] LAl
Wi L o ujiisn: ] 1517
Towelling Expensey LEM L
men & T 1338 Liw
Rarpairs Ter Cithen 5 LT
Profemoa Servs Chegs w421 f.oai
Expor Expantan imelidmg Froghs B 563 Provao vesr B 1803 a4 1123
ity B oo
Aa Rtamsan Asdn Fem 78 s
Fou Temanen Mausry L 0] i
T {nhar Uapaca 175 wn L3 i
Fors arthing & Deeirvery corges. (LR HiZIM
Mrikarpgn & Comemesiion s Sals Ly 1550
Sumdry Batarces wnnen off (e h SR
ot Cain [ iLonn) e Fovmgs Cormey Tresacouss | Toslason Ty
ew Cimin  {Loss) on Fonsgs Cavssesy Dervemne susamon 3
el dabiis = petion T 1
Less Proveson or Doubifisl Debix - - . =
Dercton sainy e W 1itd
Charey & Donstioe - LKl
L ny LIl N
18 TLATH 4300
Tetnl = fa)= (I m _“

BN Sl and apaies covmnams e ludes e 87T (Presicus venr e U] e sogous o Repins 1o Machmens (Pully o) e |
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‘R I RELIANCE JUTE MILLS (INTERNATIONAL} LIMITED

MNotes to Fimancinl Statemenis for the year ended 3ai March 2070

H,
34

a

b)

]

u)
L]

ELN |

pLE

Amouad bn ' 000
Avar Aawi
— st Muewh 2008 ist March 3010

Sales Tan & VAT pavabile due to non-collectson of commin declaranon fonms end the donand pending under appsal permming o

fimnncial yoms 200403 10 101710 Agminar the above, an smoum of To THIT (100 March 205 Ra, fo i} hums bowm paid 40334 BL0a%
relevant authonmes s depodin agmns] appeal

Land vevirss under The Wes Benpsl Land Refomm (Amenidenent) A, 2000 jnd Kolkeis Lasl Revemue Act, 3001 The
Company b recoived no dess orter undes (e shove sei by e Governiment ol West Beagal dated 28.05-2015 1y
The Ham'ble Sapeeme Courl of badin (“5C") by iheir order Juted Februssy ZH, 2019, in ithe cane of Surys Roshass Limited vis EPFO, ast ot ihe principhes hased on shich
dlowances pasd 1o the employees should be identified for inclusion in beshe wages for the porposss of computanon of Providest Fund conmibunion. Subsequensly, & revew
petition againat thiv deciaion bk bem (iled ond m pending befory the S fise disposal

The Company is swaining e oeaine ﬂlhtmlup-hn-ddmmmEm-[q.h-:-.ypuuqmmmcm-u__qm
mdjusimments have hos made i the baoks of sccounts

Ligtg ; The amoum shown sbeve represmes the best possible estimste armed of on the basis of svailble informanon. The uncermintics ano depandent on outcame of differont
legal procossss. The rming of fmere cash Nows will be deierminabls only on receipl of mdgemswindecinion ponding with varieas e s'ashonises. The Compuy doss net
NPT by e bursements agnins ahove

Caplial & Ober Commitments

Thare i Mil smount of consraces semaining 10 be exocuted on cupitsl sceoisst nel of lvance'depesii

The Compamy has Emponsd cemain Flant & Machsnery doring the fimencasl yene 2016217 undes Zero Duty Expont Promenon Capinl Goods (EMCG) Scleme luving
suthorumeion dased 2312 2006, Under the abve shema, Ihe compasy had i Tulfill expon abigation smoansny 1o Ke. 20,029 wailin & years from the daie of suthortention, the
e b been flal filled by the Compuny during the curreni fmasical year,

Emplezet Beneln

I acoordance witl bsd-As 19 on Employes Benefits, the requisiss diselonire e & follawi

Deflned Coniribution Plns  The company makes somribution wwands Provesen Fund, £SIC, Seperunssation Fund so o deflnod contiibution retiverment besefil plan Tor
gualifying emplovess. The Provident fund plas & opersssd pandy by Regioaal Provident Fund Commissioner und parthy by an independent trus,. ESIC by gavernment ngencies
and Saperammsation Fand ey & ires crested for the purposs Under the snid schenses the compamy | muuinnd i coniribaie & pesific persenangs of pay roll coa m rospect off
ligible emplayees o the retrament benefit schame to fund the benefits. The ampust recognized = expense fo the Defined Comtribation Plind. are s under -

" i For the year ended | For the yrar ended

e 313t March, 1030 | 31ut March, 2019
Employer's Comtrilnaici b Prosident Fund B, 75& LR 5]
Eployer's Coatribusion bo Sepermnmuntivs Fuad ] EL]

Employer's Contribuson to Pension Schems 19,691 11973
|EEE Conribisn b Enjliveds Siake Inssrance Scheme 16,070 24,358

Bafined Benefis Flassi

Fost Employmsmi Benelit m the fonn of pratury Hhﬁﬂlﬂﬂﬂ:ﬁlnﬂhlﬁnﬁ]w.mWwﬂmhwtﬂwuhmwmdmh
entilled o jramsity on terma not less fveurnble than the prenasions of the Payment of Grasusty Act, 1972, The presert value of obligation is deterssinnd basod on acturial
valuation using the Propcied Ui Credit Method, whadh recogmises sach pemod of service ns gaving rise 1o sdditionsl uns i emploves benefit entitiement snd messures ssch
wnit separmiely s beikd up the final obliganan

Rish Exposure: Dofised bemafit plans expose the Company 10 nchunnal risks such s interess ruie nsk, salary risk & demojgraghis sk
-:l-mmm-mmum-ﬁwwmu---dmmhmﬁ.n-mmnrmmmmmmmwun
RS

b Splury rlak ; Higher ihan evpeciad increasos in salery will increnss the defined benefln obliganon

¢} Demographie rak : This i the nsk of vaniatsbity of resuln doe 10 snsysematic satere of decremests ihas include martality, wishdrawal, dissbility snd retmement. The effec
of thest decroments on the deflned benefit abligation is not sraighs forward und depends wpon the combination of wlary incrense, discoust rafe and vesing eriserin. 1t is
imporinat nof 0 oversinle withdrswals bocaus: i the fmancisl analysis the retirement benefit of & short carcer employee rvpleally costs lems per yeur as comparsd b a bing
wervice employes

The Follewing nble uemmsiee he comgoann of s mmwmummpmmmﬂmmumumm = ihe
balamce shaet for the pian

Parnculan i Ax st
3 w0 Murch, 3020 | ¥t Margh, 20019 |
Presesn Viddue of funded oblzpaboms 11;.2“ 3,001,500
\Eaie vghun o plan aiens 13,50 3, 0.7
\Linhlizies In respest of fonded obligathons on scfunrial yabuston basl 3,31 565 1,93.511 |
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R | RELIANCE JUTE MILLS (INTERNATIONAL} LIMITED

Motes o Fimancial Statements far the sear ended 315 March 2030

I Chamges m vhs presost viles of defined funded obliganon regresentay reconuilisbon of opening and dosing balances therss! s foliows:

Particutan = Ad = At ]
|_3hat Mwrch, 3919 |
Presem valus of defined besefit oblsganon at the begmming of the yemr 3,01.%00 2.E7.038|
Employer Sarvioe Coul II.!I] 1ol
|inseres Cost 20,030 XN E39
Plan Amandmemis: Vested pornon s the emd of perniodipast serace) . _
Actunrial Gaim {-) / Lesa [+) [ &5
i [®1Z) (%430
ENLETTY gaﬁl
m
Ay mi Axmt
3l Mureh, 2000 | Jia March, 2019
1987 4537
524 (R
3,500 11500
rﬂ!:l (29404
m [T ]
13,681 1
3]
For tha year enided | For the year ended
JIEMH_;I_ 3ot Murch, 2019
Siervice Cost - Oty (Funded) 18,380 17811
l'u1 Sﬂtuuhuﬁﬂ- . a
4l gl op all] 19, 504
i i
Y, Renpsssremes recognsed in Other Compreheniive Imcome Amount in Ry’ 900
For the year ended | For the year ended
i 3134 March, 2020 | Stas Masch, 2019
Achusnad (gasm) | losss
+ change i demourphic sasurmgring . -
- chisge in fmancial spamptions 19,457 1,165
- enpeence sanance (e Aghial expeetumes v s pmtians | I!‘J,.’HI! 4881
- ofhers -
[Ferarm om plon -m.n-:hm -n-un—:.m-dn-'lmm mlu tmp [EL ]
666 TS24 |
1
. Ayt Ax
Particulars Jim M 1 "
(g e polley l 00%
Vi The o ihe Binnes Shaet
Asal Ax ot
it March, 2010 3181 March, 3019
TALM 2006-2008 Llmmues TALME 20062008 Lihmsse
[ T.0%
4005 O long term binsis i hes been | 4 00% O lomy serm basis |f ket been
maurmod of 6.0D0% mnamed ol 0.00%
4 Yearn 38 Yemn
WHL A quansstarive sy anslynis for signaficand sssumpnan s a3 1 SManch 2620 i shoem below:
Imerease! Decruase in present value of defined benefit obligation Bl Ll 30 -Mar-10 Mar-1%
Increass Lhex trane Dcrease
Drscours Rnie 0,50 328453 | 3 L85 604 314384
; 0 50% 383,60 ENENS 1,690,364
an i 0, 50% 972 ) 067 3,00,933
Mveortaliey ral 0 5% L] 342904 5
The sensanivity analyses sbove heve boen dstermined besed on o method thar exrspolases e mpact on defined beneflt ohlygation ns @ resuli of remsonnble changes in ey

msmgions cozsrring i the end of dee reponing period.

L4 Cash Flows over the neat {wal

Particulars A
Jlss Mpreh, 2900
Within fhe nexi 12 moaths 60,749
Berween I and 3 years 03 531
Berween & and 10 yoan 104,881
[Beyand 10 yows 480,69

Ax il ¥l March, 2020, the weaghied average dussson of defined besellt abligsiclon was |7 years
The Company expects s conmribuie R5.30,000 (P. Y~ Rs. 30,000) 10 its granary fund

=R

The watirsmses of future sinry mereases. contidered i nctwmrial sadunton, ke scoust o inflation. semiodty, peusmation and eaher televant factor
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m I RELIANCE JUTE MILLS (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

Sgers io Finsncisl Simiemenn for e year ended 3o March 2020

M. Earmings Per Share (EFS|

Farticular

Far tha Year ended | For the ¥anr onded
Hwd Wiareh 2020 | Flet March 2019

he o for ihe Ve (B |

tosmennl ¥ alue of Shares (Re )
{Bass: & Daiuted EPS (R )

(64, GE2) 1,8 630

s & ' exghies pverage nairher of Tauity Shanes oulsssduny dursny, tee ven fal D 15058450
w 10
24 15926},

¥T. Segmecor Reporing

The © omuery opevates wiifun o ungle busine sapgenent o0 fute md Jule Prodec and sccordmgly hes considered e [issssss Sagoment b be the Primery Segment

FLI Geegraphionl egmenn

The Compasy prmarily operates m India snd erefiore the goographicul segmeat consmdered for disdlcsures on (e basas of sales sre o ondey -

Parficalan

evenue from operalion [Sale of Juie Coods)
|M|E|m'- Assesi Chiber thae fimancesd msmemenis®

7,12,17%

Indim Orverveas
FIELEI L
124,100 -

* Mo Cigrent Adiseis iy than financal insremenes mchudes Propeny. Plam & Equipment, Capital Wark-me progress, O bntesgible Assets sl other Mon Current Assy

172 [Exiinl en felinnee 06 melir fuilomer

Revenee from povernmes agescies smowntmg 1o Bx 14,79,097 (spprox 4% of revense ] [FY 201819 Re 16,635,069 {77 % of revense) srung on wie of fute mcking bays

vt {nclia

38, Bulated Party Tranapctiony
Relsied Parry disclosures s sdessified by the Mansgement w. por Ind-AS 24 are grven below
MR Mamed of Ralated Purtics
I Krs Mupagerial Personnel (RMP)

| Shri Pawan Kumar Kanaria - Executive Chairman

2. Sl Samgey Hindls - Managing. Director & CED

A Shri Vijemdr Kamar Chaukbasi - Whole tee Directir (retired w g [ 11-06-2000)

4 Shri Iranab boumas Mookerpes- Independest Dinectn

6, by ihaan Hisda
1l Entities over which KMP and relatives of KMP evercise Contrelf Significant influesce
1. B P Investmens Limised
1. Excellent Denlers LLP
3, Vanila Tescoen LLP (Viniln Tracom Private Lid. ol § 2-07-1000)
d, P K, Dusines Enserpross Limsed

7. Devang Tradecom Py Limited

B, Arwwall Nives LLP { Arwvabi Novas Privane Lid, 1l 17-02-2620)

Q. Az Investmens Enterprisg Lid

10 Shraddia Invessmenss Lid

11 Pywnn Kumar Kanana (HUT)

12 Aubomsiion Tracom P, Lismied

11 Valio Merchanss LLP [Valio Morchamin provabe lesied ol 1 |-02-2020)
IV Post Empleyment Benfit plan sntithes

Relance bemx Mills Co Lisd Employees Pravedent Pl
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‘R | RELIANCE JUTE MILLS (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

Moten b0 Fimanoal Smiement for fe yesr endod 30w March 2070

I Pemculsrs of Tommacuoss durmng the yeur ended 3 s March, 2026

Amsunt ls s D00

Manare of Transaction Feriod Key Managemeni | Relatives of Key | Entities where Pout Employment
Fervinne! Ylanagrmeni cosbrel eukin | benefli plan emibies
Persanmel
| emmiimermmon * 0|93 VLT 110 .
WIR-19 12912 120 - -
Prarchane of Raw Juie 201920 TER4T
Mnae KAk} -
Rt PridSarvice U haiges Pl ] 672 1 oK dow -
WIN-19 7 1008 06 .
St Foes 01520 ™ ] -
01819 4] 12 . -
|bneezest Pt 01920 . 1418 ang -
01819 1107 L0 "7 .
Service Charyes 092 - 144 -
WIR-19 - 144 -
Comtribution isde o PF Trust (meluding Employess’ share] 2019-28 . ol AT
10I8-19 - - - L1364
Loas Takes W90 20450 4300 1230
01819 nmo 11040 500 *
Lown Hepaad Y- L1930 800 500
01819 1T 450 .
Sasle of Lasd 161930 - - -
01519 13,200 50.000 51500
Balance susanding st e year god
lm Deepoant I Mareh 2020 3000 4300 = -
30w Warh 2019 48H 1,280 - -
Linam Nl March 2J020 19,500 #4.300 L}50 -
I March 2019 - - T.600 -
irverest Pesable 3t March 3020 . LI Bz =
Yl March 2019 w7 1L2m) T4a -
|PF Contribwrion Payabile Jls March 210 - . 7.2%
Jm Sarch 2019 TS
Trade Paysble Jim March 2020 - 76,847
J1m March 2019 - - 10,540 -
* Tha rgmumeration af key massgemen porwnned dogs ol inglude posl empleyment benefity boisg provison made for granaty and leave eacashmenl as the g i desermingd
om setunrial wnkustion basss for the Company s n whole,
Partlcular Vil Shrl Pawam | Shel Sanjay Hadn | Shel Vijmdrs
Kumar kansrhs Kumer Cheskhoni
10 338 T80 .47
Short Term Employee Brnefin 1018-19 5.2i0 1820 1152
J0ER-20 150 150 109
Pt Sapimment Semfn 201819 1] 12 100
201520 - L
s fosiminosinnn 01810 5 =
" 014920 N x
kb 201810 ] .
20152 5 5
oot Suield payronh Wik10 g 5

* AN the eranancisny with Relmed Parses have bees done om Armm's Lengh prce
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‘m | RELIANCE JUTE MILLS (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

“otes fu Financisl Statements for e year mmded 3 1ar March 2030

3 o] om v anfcemazice availsbly sl the company from sendorn reganding theie distus wiider the Micro, Smal| sd Medie Diserpross Developmens Act 2008, tere we no
vmtslanifing duey b sugiphers | servics providers overed under Metro, Small aed Medum Emerpriss Development Ad. 1006 "MSMED' ) The disclosures i roguerod wssder
(bl i Al rw i urider .
R ¢ Ax i At
138 Miareh, JOO0 | 3ss March, 3019
i | Principal smoum md meees des o Sepplee snder MSMED sen snd remasning sspasd . '
i) | lweeeal paid and my paymment made io sipplier boyond apposnted Ssie (under section 18 of the Actl
Wil | Imovest dse and pevable 0 Suppinces ssdes MSMED Act . .
wl | lmiereat sosrued wsd romasneny ungied
] |Imizeest remmning due aed prysble under sectian 13 of the Ac - -
#0. Lawses (Operating Leases)
The Compasyy: has adopsd Ind AS | 18 “Lensss™ wish she dee of misial applicasion heing |51 Agnl, 27609, there b5 no onpscy &5 6l lesses me shon e @ nsare
A1, Ciwimg Comcrrn
1) Ia the meneh of Moy sl Juse, HH%. there were nots and polimcal disserbancss i the srem where mill (o smiatod wihich adversdly effcoed mill workssg Theve was saspenison
af work s compasy "y mill From 00 08 3019 w 07 60 2019 asd DE 01, 2020 40 13 07 2EM0 dor o Inbesr problem and from 23,00 2000 w 11 03 2020 dee to COVID 19, winch
s comnbmaied o hegh s
&2 Ihvidend em 0% Cumulative Redeemable Preferesos thare
Besesf om the regees) imade by the compary md comsiderng, the scuie fisencisl sires as 8 esull of recarmny, lowses o the las few yean, the preference sharpiolden have
wceorded fhett comsent 8 wnineg by saving e comulnive preference drvidend poysble 10 them upto 31w March, 2000 The s mstier was takon on recand by the Bosrd of
Prececn of the Company ol thewr messing beld on | dik My, 2019 and Ra |, 107 bas mot been recogresed for the cememl financial yess
43,  Deferred Tas Assein | MNai)

The company ke sssewed the ashes of Defiored Tox Assri (MNeth on of the reporting date. Howeves, in sisence of reasonable certainsty of fionene tuable profits snd om the
rennds of prudesce, the Company e nol ecognesed defersed tan nsei (ned). Henee, oo provision of curvemi snd defomed ion o botn conidened i ihe Stmtement af profl
e s Thee deasds of which i given m below

3103, 3030/ 32019
8,160 73,380
LitTom 112,557
5 5,783
08 438
% T — 1
104,85 206,14 |
858 10 2a%
i ALY
16,974 17,587 |
187,07 148,384 |
44 Disclosure a1 per IND AS 113
A Merure of pooils snd services: The Conspamy o enpaged = the manulacioring sed wle of Juie goods s ihe ssmie & only e roporable segmeni of the Conpany
B Dmaggregarion of revense: In the (oliowing mhle. revenor = dissgzropaind by prionany geogmphecal market mnjor prodoces lines il mang of revenss recognition
Markens sy a0 30 3019)]
I1RAT 4T3 I, 14
12472 [T
15,79, 508] ll,ﬁ
[T 2170
The fal Lable infirmiiateon alaon ooty ablen contiact muts and costricl Labilitbes from conmrach with cusiomen
3 3 hi
Heorrvnbies, which s inchidest o s recevahles . 479 pl WL
|Consact auets i A
Conmmct hbilines | Advisse from Cusiomes) | e 2849)
(Tutal | Ansesr: Linbifitm) 5 28,404
D, Cuder Infi 1
1) Tramsaction prie sllocsed 1o the remsaing perlivrmance obligmm fu
a0l reverwe recognd s the curren) year the was wechuded @ the opening contract liabiiry balence A
ilij The amownt of revenss recognssed m the ceven| o oibdiganicns s fled fully or parteslly in previous ves el
rinrmancy ohlignnoss- The © ormpee ufy the peria ot chlijganon oo ip deelvery hil
v} Semnaficani penvrimml e
| Financimg Ceenponen |
Vobume Descoani il

oo [l
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"ades on Financisl Ststements far tee year ended 3ot Mareh 1020 Amisun i its’ 900

4% Caphal mansgement
The Compamy s obypective o manags ity capeal 15 (0 endide contisuy of busines winke at the same nme 4 able o 1ts varkon siakebolders b
ke mvocissed conti under cortral In arder 1 acheese this, regueremene of caperal w reviewsd perssdically with reforesce to oporatng and busness plass shat ke
mlo sccount capial expendiiure The Conpany maiages 18 cspeal snsctee ond makes adpooments in bght of champss 1 cconomic condinom wnd the
requiremanis of the financial covenans. Apan from istermal scersal, sowring of capial b dome thivugh judicioes combuation of equsty snd barrewing, both dhort
term el long term The Compasry w not sobyesr 1o mny willy smposcd caputal requrements. The Compary monataes copiisl using sumens snd debi couiry me.

Quanticative duin As @i Anmi
Currens Lisbslities !%l-‘l'l 610082
Curreni st [0

et * 107651 LILHR
Edjuits 11,679) [TV
thebt Equiry ruti (183.47) il

* Dl = Mo current bomowangs + Currsnl manunibes of long lerm borrosmigs= current homowings- cosh sod cesh equavabent- cther bunk balances
4d, FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

A, FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
The fellunisg table shows e carrving amount and Tair valises of fimancial saset and labilithes by categor:
Y 1N Macch 31,2019

FYTPL ocl Amaortised Canl FYTPL FYOLC] Amoriised Cost
Finuncial Assets (Non Current)
b Investimenss - Egeiry [nsrumens - . . . . .
(1) Lowns P 0 & » Z S
Tatal fa) = = - - - =
Financinl Assens (Carrent)
(%) Trude receivabibes . . WA . . RLY%
(i) Coeshy and 2ash egquivalents - . 11,508 . . 3563
iein) Bank Blalances other than cash and
o ety . . 1T . . T.803
i | Lioana - - - - . .
Iv) Oy crarvend finamcasl assets . . Y1852 . . L
(1) Onher Receivable = B34 - [
Totul (b} : - 133,747 - - ]
Total Financial ssseis (n+h) : . 113747 . - TN

- March 31, 2010
FYTIL Amartiied Coat Ao rined Cisg

Finumcinl Liabilities {Non-Curreni)
T4} Bttt . A% - $%.7%
(i) Owheer Firsncinl Lishiloes = - - -
Totnl ju) - R [T
Financial Liakilines (Carrent)
1) Berrowings B 282,90 - L.mm
{14} Temcde Payubiles - 4,55, 165 - 313512
(i) Ohar Finamcial Liabdleties L -
Tatal (b} a 1.% i _:iﬁ'
Tainl Finsncial Lishilities (a+b) C BAS 34T - £91.071

B FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS & LIABILITIES
The Falkywing is the comparison by clais of the carrying nmounts snd faw value of the Company's lnanclal sstrements that are measured o) snortized cosr

[ iw Varch 2030 Sl March 3019 |
Carrying
Carrybag Amsunt Falr Value Far Vius
w3 W, RLXCH] .69 |
2 3, 1,961 353 |
1,274 i 7a01 7 E
04 08¢ 104 086 43,551 13351
133,747 293,747 611 LT
TLATE TLETS [TRAL] 76,139
ISR Tad. 50 KAV (KEFi
4,50 160 4,59 168 3038 113,912
40708 0,70 7] :%
Ha5 347 AASI4T | 53371 |
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4T

Sple it Fimancial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2010 Amount in Rs* 000
The managemeni bas assessed thar the far values of cash and cash equevalenia, srade rrceivablon, rsbe peyablew. short wemn borrowegs, snd other currpss finascnl
hiabibesss approvimmes thew carrying smenssa |argehy due 10 the shon-wrm matarine of these minaremis. The managermest e sssesied thm the far vadue of

flonteng rate mstramenis spprocsmates their carying value

C. FAIR YALUE MIERARCY

Falr vabie of e Raancial instraments is classified i varlous fair velae blerarciies based oo e following three bevels:

Far valise of the finaoc il s roments o closifiad m yanon far valoe eerarchees hassd on the following thros levels:

Lawel 1: Cheoted pricen |umailjusted ) in sctive markes for idemiscal sissin or ludabitg

Level I: Inguts piber tham quoted price includang watiun level 1 o are observable for ihe asset or Tixbilay, cither direcaly (e as prces) or sndmectly (i derived
o prages

The faor welos of finencial meswmests thet are not meded m @m0 sctive marker 8 determueed using valuabos echmigues whichk muomze the wse of
obwervable marker dals sl peky e lnle e posaible on eitncepeadic suenates |1 s fomn gt regusred 1o Gnr valer s seiresenl s observable, the
mstrumen i mcluded in Level 2

Lawel 3 Irjatn for the massts of lbslites ihiat s not based on observalis maret dabs {unobseryvahle inpsts)

If ore or mere of the sypmficans inpusy & not bassd oo chservable market dacs, the fur value i determaned sing penerully sccepied pricing models based oo o
dispounted cash flow anakyss, seth the most sgmificam oput beng the discount ase ths reflects the eredit nak of counterparty. Tha ia the case with listed
snstfiamenids whete marked s nol bgusd snd for unliiled msthemenes

BFINANCIAL ASSETS AND LAIBILITIES MEASURED AT AMORTISED COST FOR WHICH FAIR VALUE ARE DISCLOSED:

—__Marsh 31,3020 MarchJL 300
Lavell  Lewel] Leveld Larved | Loveld ~~  Leveld
Financial Aweis (Nen Current)
i) Eguiny | - . - . . -
(i} Lowrs. - - . - i =
Toisl in) . - - . . .
Financial Awets (Carrent)
(k) Traade receivables - . %509 - - 38893
(i) Conby v cualy wgquivalends . . 11808 . " 5580
iiel) Bark Balwnces other than canh and
canh ey valents = i RN i .
fiv) Loams . . . -
i) Onher curen fimmncial aasois - - L L s mT
iwi} Ouaber Receivabsle - . 64 M . . [ T84
Total (k) : . 135,747 = = 95611
Total Financisl amets (w+b) - - 1387147 = : LT
Muarch 31, 2026 Muarch 31, 2019

— Lavel | Level 1 Lavel Level | Lovel 1 Level 3
Finmoxial Liabilitses {Nos-Current )
1) Bosrav = = ¥ .
Tormt 2 : - Siate : : iy

March 31, 2020 March 31, 1009
Lavel | Lavel Leveid Level 1 Lavel 2 Level )

Financial Lisbllbthes (Current)
1) Borowings - 14159 - - LA
() Trnde Pavables . ] 4,59, 169 . . 1sn
{nDher Financinl Liahidimes - - 5 - - 39350
Total (b) . - % . . 536,83
Total Finsncial Lishilites (a+b) - - BAS 34T . + €93 171
Finmncial risk masagement abjectives and paliches
The Coirmarm i striiied expoie of 0 ihe foloweig ki
a) Credit ik
b Ligusdity rigk
2} Marka ek
) Credll sk
Creedio mak s ther riuk dhant cowimor garty sl mon nier s obdgations ander o fi ‘ & O comrict beading i o financisd loss The Compamy i

expeied 10 gradil vk Thom 0n eperitng Retvotiel (pnomanly inkde eopivallen) and from e fineecing sciivises imchading depossis with baoks and flnancial
MR, Ierp e kogis. avgamenin. forespm svchangs ransaorioes and athes financual instrusments

i1 Trade receivables

Cimtomer creds risk in msnaged by the Company subject 1o the Compaery s established palicy, procedares and cosrol relating 1o cusomner crodil nak massgement.
Dutaissding customer recervables are regulnrly monsersd sed major customers are geerally from povernment sgences. Az 8 prcncal expediem, the provinon
muirin is propared based on histonaally chaerved defiull rates over the euptcied i of srnde rece|vable and i adjusted for forward looking estimstes. The provison
mairin af the end of reportng penod s geen below -

Ax at Jhu Murch, 1028 Ax at Yiar March, 1019
Particalars Lew than Wore than Tossl Lits than ‘More than Soad
dywnim | leesns _2years 1 years
(i € wwryang Amowil 9. 134 L0257 JaEa3 AL Al
M 100% % 100%
Expocted credit losses : . LR 3048 . 3.8 34
Camrving amounl of wade receivabl
. “l 99579 . ATy 18,093 . 38,653
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Notes om Finsnclel Ststementy for the yoar ended 3050 March 2020 Aot im Fa® (00

i) Lownn gnd Chiiver Fimanclal Avsei

The Company exposs (o cedic risk in relation s imer corperate loans, mrvesiment in deposi with banks s other receivables The credin nek on sar conpormle
Fodns sl depotil wsh band 1y limsusd becasen the counter parien s bamks' pthes corporstes with high croda rating. As & practics! expedient, the provision mairs
o prepared based on finkndsal ssbihity of the coundes party, hrstoneally observed defsult rates over the expecred fife of finsncisl mssets ad in adjusted for Forward
loukeng salimsies

1030 ApstdluMarch 00
More than L than Maore than Total
1 yeury oz 3 pers 1ymany
13,828 150 - [EEE] 15,628
10ty (] 106
13,828 13824 - 15,528 15828
e Axm )Ly March 2000 Axwt st March 2018 |
=2 yeur Mure thas Lt e 1-2puer Mure tham
. al : 41 a0
1% 100 i 5% 1oy
41,080 . . 41,080
(s
. MM -
w57 Lisss Al i Trade Loans to body | lnsuramee Claim
o Reosivable 1 Corporgte | cecwlvable
Lows sllowance a6 om 3 st March 309 I M8 15838 41,080 |
in Lows Allssanoe [mel ) . - lm
Lons wilowsnce an om 3o March, 1020 A [EX 7] 146
[ 7] l_Jq-h.IIr; ik

Laguidiey risk  the rsk thae the Compasy will encowster difficulry s mesting the obligsnam smonmsed with it financial liabdais thar are seied by delvering
canh or gracher finencui] muset The Company s spprosch 1o msnaging Hgusdiy is io anaare. us far an possible. that it will alwsys hive sufficeens bguidisy bo meet i
mainlties whem due. snder bosh normal end sirevsed conditions. witheur incerTing snaccepeable bosies or nsking damage 10 the Company s reputataon. Typically the
Compry oniares that it has nufficient caah on doimsnd 1o moe! expected short o operational espenies. The Company's obgective @ 10 muintem 8 balance
between contmuty of fundmg and fexbifity teough the use of bank Joms/internsl accruals The table below provides demils regarding the remaining contractund
maturites of ugnificans finsncinl lahiliters ot the roporting date.

T - . 5353 [AEF1] 12876
I o 4000 1R, ¥ = . 24 FH
4,59 169 L a 4,50 169
( . FETY] = . 234
duz on E 6,054 z = 6,096
) : 23640 : - 12841
[ . - = . =
. 19,3590 B o [ERET]
Toul 6400 708184 (X ST B45.030
10880 FINTT S670 |
7 - 7ian ; : 173371
321802 - - 323512
segrund bim nol due on bormow . 1 - 3]
} - 13643 . . 22847
ul v - [T - = [T
. L6 . . ant
1 . 10,438 45881 A28
) Murkal Risk:

fetarket rusk i the nak that the faar value or future cosh fows of » financil instrument will flachste boommse of changes in market prces. Market risk comprisess two
type of naks: Fameign Exchasgs Misk and Inseres Rme Raik

il Foreign Curremcy Exchange Risk

Iz 18 the mak that the fr vabee or future cash Mews of s expossre will fuctmte because of changes in focegn exchange raies. The Compesy has Foreign Currency
Exchangs Rusk on iegpons of Raw Materials & Capiesl Equipmenii ). Buyer's Credis in foreign ewrrency snd export of Jise goods fior it busiess. The Coumpany
evahustes the mmpact of foresgn exchange rate Muctzanons by mssessmg WS exposure 10 exchange rale ks, To mingare the risk, s Company adop & pobicy of

silautive hodging based o ik perceplicn af Uhe maiagesient wsing onswd conirss
The Company docs ot have amy foveipn sarfency expoiures as on 3i-03-2000
ot rerort 201920 [N
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Sutes o Flasiiclal Statemenis for ibe yvear emded 3ai March 220

iy Literest rule rish

RELIANCE JUTE MILLS (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

Aot im B B0

) Tha Company o axpossd (o ik du bo diveresl tais (hactunbion oin borrowings. Sech bamowings ary besed on Bxed s well as fosting sserve raie isierest e
ik i devermuned by curven) markel imssrdsl tates. projecied debe servicmg capabilin and vew oo futuse mieress rose Such mierew e nsk 1 sctively evalmated
winid o manamed dwemich ponfubo diversdfiostson and eercne of gepayvmenL relEiiRc siiens where comisdesd necesary.

| Particulars 3hat March 2029 St March 2013
[Flued Hate Insirumenss
ol Assers &1 1.3
Fimancasl Liakalulies 160 423 91,719
168,699 101,522
Varisble Rate Instruments
Fmancal Assera ~ .
Fenancial Lsstufities 177,308 1,308,354
177308 1 AEISE

The folluwing tabls dermonstinies the semsitiviny w o reasomahly possihle change m insrross rases om thal portion of looms snd borrowmga affecied With sl ather
variabies held conman, the Company's profin befose tx is $ected thrsgh the mpnct on flosting ree borewings, a3 fallows:

Ihrlilﬂln

Effect an profit

Ineresse/decrense

i Bl e ot Efect va Equiry
+50 <AET -7

As a0 Nist March, 020
“ 50 W7 (T3]
+50 543 4457

At 3iat March, 2019
30 2] A2

4L The COVID-ID owtbreak snd resslted national lockdown smposed by the Oovernmens from 15t March, 2020 kas coused o Pan-ladia darupion of busineses.

The Company has considered the possble nek that wary rewll frem the pandemic relaring 1o COVID-19 an the sarmyimg ameunts of ussets inchuding imventones,
mmlun-dmmm-ﬂmﬁuul miets. for which the Company hai wed the principles of prodence m applving judgmensy, permater and
assurmptions mchidng semssivaty anahyves o8 el s the insemal | exeernal informaison svailable up 1o the date of approval of thess financial resuls and the e
dogs mot have amy matenal imgect on thew financal rewslie. However, the impast sssesament of COVID-19 i o continuing process givim ihe encertaintion
associated warh g nanre end durmnion. The smpact of the gobal bealth pandesme may be differend from that cstmaied s s the dute of approval of thess Francial
el and the Compary will commne 1o closgly momitor sy mutemal changes w fotere sconomac condition.

A%, Proveous yes figune have boen regrouped ¢ rarranged whereever comssdernd necesary

A e our R mmnened m bebalf of he Board of Direeton
ForJKVE& Ca
Chaneted Ascountesia Pawan Kumsr Kanong
FRN Na - J1IR08GE hemireman
[DiN : 0003297}
Sy Hsda Rahit Banks
Mdmnaging Derecior & CED Director
SUPRIO GHATAK (DIN - DOI03ET6) (DIN | 07521288)
Parine
Membership No, 031889
P K Jsin K. Apurwnl
| Dieoctor CFO & Company
Nolkars, the 31 doy of Juty, 2030 (DIN _00372338) Secretary
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